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Dear Citizens of the District of Columbia:

[ am pleased to present the District of Columbia's Fiscal Year 2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR). The audit opinion is unqualified for the tenth consecutive year. We completed Fiscal
Year 2006 with a General Fund balance of $1.4 billion.

The District continues to be an attractive place to live and to work with growing investment in
residential and commercial projects throughout the city. The District’s own investments are supported
by strong ratings from the bond market, “A+” by Standard and Poor’s, “A” by Fitch Ratings with a
Positive Outlook, and “A2” by Moody’s Investors Service with a Positive Qutlook. Through hard
work and fiscal discipline, the District of Columbia has earned another budget surplus, and enjoys the
respect of Wall Street and the rest of the nation. The District’s fiscal strength enables us to invest more
resources in residents’ policy priorities.

To build on the progress that the District has made, we know it is essential to improve the quality of
the public education system. It is time for the District to adopt new thinking, streamline
accountability, and implement the best practices of successful reform efforts in other urban school
systeras. If we are successful, we can honor the promise of opportunity made to every young person
and we can make the District a better place to live. Nothing less than the future of our city is at stake.

I am very proud to be your Mayor, and I look forward to working together with you to make the
District of Columbia a world-class city.
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202-442-8200
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Dr. Natwar M. Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the Government of the District of Columbia (District) for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, is herewith
submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the District. To the
best of my knowledge and belief, the enclosed financial
statements and schedules are accurate in all material
respects and are reported in a manner designed to present
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds and component units of the District. This
report includes all disclosures necessary for readers to gain
a useful understanding of the District's financial activities.
The city of Washington, D.C. is referred to in this CAFR
as Washington, also as D.C., and as the city. This
Transmittal Letter does not discuss the District’s financial
operations and results. To obtain a better understanding of
the District’s financial condition, refer to the
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A), which
begins on page 19 of this CAFR.

Report Sections

The CAFR is presented in three sections: introductory,
financial, and statistical.

Introductory Section
The introductory section includes this letter of transmittal,
the District's organizational chart, a list of principal
officials and the Government Finance Officers
Association's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting.

Financial Section
The financial section includes the independent auditors’
report, Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A),
the basic financial statements, the notes to the basic
financial statements, required supplementary information,
and other supplementary information which includes

January 26, 2007

combining and individual fund statements and schedules.
The MD&A is an analysis of the financial condition and
operating results of the District and is intended to
introduce the basic financial statements and notes. The
MD&A must be presented as required supplementary
information in every financial report that includes basic
financial statements presented in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the
United States of America.

Statistical Section
The statistical section presents detailed information that
assists readers of the CAFR in assessing the overall
economic condition of the District. The tables in the
statistical section differ from the financial statements,
because they usually cover more than two fiscal years and
may present non accounting data.

Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government and its component units. The primary
government is the District, which consists of all the
agencies that make up its legal entity. Component units
are legally separate organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The District currently has six component units: (1)
Anacostia Waterfront Corporation; (2) Housing Finance
Agency; (3) Sports and Entertainment Commission; (4)
University of the District of Columbia; (5) Washington
Convention Center Authority; and (6) Water and Sewer
Authority.  The financial data for these discretely
presented component units are reported separately from the
financial data of the primary government.

The Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation is
presented as a blended component unit, as required by

District of Columbia #*%** |
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GAAP for state and local governments. The District of
Columbia Housing Authority, The National Capital
Revitalization Corporation, and the District of Columbia
Courts are related organizations, because the District is not
financially accountable for their operations.

Current Economic Condition and Outlook

Washington, D.C. Attractions and Tourism
Millions of visitors are attracted to the more than 400
museums and historical landmarks in Washington, D.C.
each year. Tourists also visit other popular attractions
located within the Washington Metropolitan area. Citizens
of the United States and international visitors enjoy the
many popular attractions along the National Mall as well
as the monuments to U.S. presidents and the war
memorials. Tourists also discover reminders of their
American heritage at the National Arboretum and the
Kenilworth Aquatic Gardens in Northeast Washington, at
Fort Stevens and at the National Museum of Health and
Medicine at the Walter Reed Army Medical Center.

Washington, D.C. hosts, on a permanent basis, more than
170 foreign embassies and recognized diplomatic
missions. In addition, a number of international
organizations such as the International Monetary Fund, the
World Bank, the Inter-American Development Bank, and
the Organization of American States call the District home.

In calendar year 2005, approximately 14.1 million U.S.
citizens visited Washington D.C., an increase of about
2.2% from the revised 2004 figure of 13.8 million. An
estimated 1.3 million international visitors traveled to
Washington, D.C. in 20035, an increase of about 8.3% from
the 2004 revised figure of 1.2 million. Overall, visitors to
Washington, D.C., both foreign and domestic, increased
from the revised figure of 15.0 million in 2004 to 15.4
million in 2005, or about 2.7%. The 2006 calendar year
visitor figures are not yet available. Hotel occupancy has
increased from 73% in 2004 to 75% in 2005, The city’s
tourism industry generated more than $5.1 billion in direct
spending in 2005 and directly supports 59,397 jobs. This
direct visitor spending continues to generate additional
business activity in related industries and is boosting local
as well as regional economic growth. This trend is
expected to continue.

Income Trends
In a report prepared by the Center on Budget and Policy
Priorities and the Economic Policy Institute issued in early
2006, “Pulling Apart: A State-by-State Analysis of Income
Trends,” it was concluded that the gap between the highest
and lowest income families in the city grew substantially
between the early 1980s and the early 2000s. Middle-
income families experienced only modest growth in
salaries.  These findings demonstrate that increasing
economic growth will not, by itself, reduce economic
inequality. The District continues to request that the

federal govemment address the District’s revenue
limitations. The District must target and manage programs
and services directed at the poorest and at-risk families
more effectively, while also making it more attractive for
middle-income families to remain in the city.

Employment

Total employment in the Washington metropolitan area
increased to approximately 3,006,400 in FY2006 from the
revised 2,934,200 for FY2005, representing a slight
increase. However, these numbers exclude the self-
employed, domestic workers, and military and foreign
government personnel, which represent a significant
portion of the actual work force of the region. The
employment of Washington, D.C. residents has remained
at approximately 23% of the metropolitan area’s total
during the past three years. The seasonally adjusted
September 2006 unemployment rate in Washington, D.C.
was 5.9%, compared to the September 2005 rate of 6.1%.
Total employment within Washington, D.C. increased to
687,900 in September 2006 from 680,700 in September
2005. Some of the references to the 2005 employment
numbers may be different from those shown in the FY2005
CAFR because of updates and revisions.

As the nation's capital, Washington, D.C. is the seat of the
three branches of the federal government and headquarters
for most federal departments and agencies. The total
September 2006 federal work force in the Washington
metropolitan area totaled 338,400; with approximately
192,000 federal employees located in Washington, D.C.
and 146,400 additional federal employees who worked
elsewhere in the Washington metropolitan area. Although
both the District and the federal government employ fewer
employees than in the past, new business operations,
especially in the service industry, continue to fill the void
and are strengthening the local economy. The increased
spending by the Department of Homeland Security is
helping to stabilize federal employment in the region.

Labor Market ('000s): September 2006

D.C. Metro area

Employed residents 2711 5.9 2,858.8 66.3
Labor force 2883 58 29476 61.3
Total wage and salary employment 687.9 94 3,006.4 722

Federal govemment 1920 -11 3384 -20

Local government 373 0.2 2922 34

Leisure & hospitality 56.5 15 2612 7.1

Trade 226 06 348.1 9.3

Services 3037 5.1 11742 474

Other private 758 35 §92.3 7.0
Unemployed 172 Q.1 88.7 -5.1
New unempl. claims (state program) 12 -0.1

Sources: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) & D.C. Dept. of Employment Services (DOES)

2 S District of Columbia
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Minimum Wage

Effective January 1, 2006, the standard minimum wage for
employees in Washington, D.C. increased from $6.60 to
$7.00 per hour. District law requires that the minimum
wage rate for Washington, D.C. employees be at least
$1.00 per hour greater than the minimum wage set by the
federal government. The federal minimum wage rate is
currently $5.15 per hour, and it has been at that rate since
September 1, 1997. The House of Representatives
approved legislation on January 10, 2007 to increase the
federal minimum wage from $5.15 per hour to $7.25 per
hour, to take effect over a period of two-years. This
legislation is pending approval by the U.S. Senate and the
President of the United States before it becomes law.

Wages and Salary:
Earned in the District and Earned by D.C. Residents
(% Change from Same Period of the Previous Year)

8.0%

6.0% N e

4.0%

2005 q1 2005 q2 2005 q3 2005 q4 2006 q1 2006 q2

-4~ Earned in DC —— Earned by DC residents

U.S. Census Bureau
The U.S. Census Bureau estimated that in July 2005 there
were 550,521 permanent residents in Washington, D.C. It
later revised this estimate upwards to 582,048. The U.S.
Census Bureau has estimated that in July 2006 there were
581,530 permanent residents in Washington, D.C., a very
slight decrease of 518 from the revised July 1, 2005
estimate of 582,048. The annual Census estimates are
based on birth and death records, changes in tax return
filings and estimates of the number of immigrants who
move into Washington, D.C. each year. District officials
have consistently disagreed with the Census Bureau
because these estimates do not take fully into account the
effect of increased residential construction, property
transfers and undocumented individuals.

There is very credible evidence that the U.S. Census
Bureau has been historically low in its estimates of
Washington, D.C.’s population. These estimates can
seriously affect the amount of Federal dollars that the
District receives, which is based on the Census Bureau’s
total population reports. As a result of the District’s
challenge to the July 2005 estimate, the U.S. Census
Bureau increased its estimate of D.C.’s population for July
1, 2005 from 550,521 to 582,048, an increase of 31,527, or
5.7%.

Factors Affecting the District’s Financial Condition

Structural Imbalance

In May 2003, the United States Government
Accountability Office (GAO) issued the report “District of
Columbia — Structural Imbalance and Management
Issues” to address the District’s known structural
imbalance. Structural imbalance is defined as the fiscal
and economic imbalance caused by being required to fund
the services of both a state and city. The District also
provides, without any tax benefit, for the presence of the
Federal = government and numerous  non-profit
organizations. The inability to tax revenue earned by non-
residents, and the inability to tax Federal properties, tax-
exempt properties, and non-profit international entities put
a severe strain on the District’s limited resources.

The following bullets provide highlights from the report:

e  The cost of delivering an average level of services
per capita in Washington, D.C. far exceeds that of
the average state fiscal system due to factors such
as high poverty, crime, and the high cost of
living.

e The District’s per capita total revenue capacity is
higher than all other state fiscal systems but not to
the same extent that its costs are higher. Revenue
capacity would be larger without constraints on
its taxing authority, such as its inability to tax
federal property or the income of nonresidents.

e The District faces a substantial structural deficit
because the cost of providing an average level of
public services exceeds the amount of revenue it
could raise by applying average tax rates. The
District’s structural deficit is estimated to range
from $470 million to $1.143 billion annually.

e Even though the District’s tax burden is among
the highest in the nation, the resulting revenues
plus federal grants are only sufficient to fund an
average level of public services, if those services
were delivered with average efficiency.

e  The District’s underlying structural imbalance is
determined by factors beyond the District’s direct
control.

Please visit GAO at http://www.gao.gov/index.html to
view the full report or contact GAO on (202) 512-3000 to
request a copy of GAO-03-666 report.

FY2006 CAFR
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Major Projects and Initiatives

The New “Washington Nationals”
Baseball Stadium

On May 4, 2006, the District broke ground for the
construction of a new baseball stadium to house the
Washington Nationals Baseball Team. The team, formerly
known as the Montreal Expos, was relocated to the District
through an agreement made with Major League Baseball
(MLB) on September 29, 2004. Under the agreement, the
District must totally finance and construct a new baseball
stadium by the start of the 2008 season. The Washington
Nationals are currently playing their baseball games at the
renovated Robert F. Kennedy (RFK) Stadium until the new
stadium is completed.

The construction of the stadium, plus land acquisition and
infrastructure, were estimated to cost $534.8 million. On
May 15, 2006, the District issued $355 million in tax-
exempt, fixed rate bonds, and $179.8 million in taxable
bonds to pay for the construction of the new baseball
stadium. These bonds were issued at an interest rate of
4.97% and 6.4% respectively, for a blended rate of 5.37%,
to be paid off over 30-years. The new stadium is being
financed by a bond issuance backed by a fee on District
businesses with over $5 million in annual gross receipts, a
percentage of the gross receipts tax collected from utilities
for non-residential services, rent payments from the team
owners, and a sales tax on baseball goods and merchandise
sold at the stadium.

The new baseball stadium will be located in the Southeast
sector of Washington, DC along the Anacostia River in a
new mixed-use entertainment zone. It will have both
Metrorail and highway accessibility and will be one of the
main centerpieces in the development of the Southeast
D.C. Waterfront.

The new stadium will occupy more than 1 million gross
square feet and include: 41,000 seats; luxury suites;
restaurant/bar; conference center; team store; kids training
area; arcade; family area; and 30,000 square-feet of office
space. Stadium construction is expected to support 3,500
jobs and generate $5 million in new tax revenues. Annual
team and stadium operations are projected to create more
than 350 jobs and nearly $30 million annually in new tax
revenues.

Unified Communications Center

On September 26, 2006, the District celebrated the grand
opening of the new Unified Communications Center
(UCC), located in Ward 8 on the grounds of St. Elizabeth’s
Hospital. The $116 million, 127,000 square-foot facility is
now one of the nation’s premier public safety, emergency
response, and integrated call centers. The grand opening
was attended by numerous federal, state and local
government representatives, including directors of

emergency preparedness from the states of Maryland and
Virginia, and high-ranking officials from the U.S.
Department of Homeland Security. The UCC will
consolidate the District’s “command and control”
functions of police, fire, emergency medical services,
emergency management agency, and public services.

Washington Convention Center and
Headquarters’ Hotel

The Washington Convention Center, located in the heart of
the nation’s capital, provides the District with 2.3 million
square feet of space, the latest technology, and nationally
branded dining outlets such as Wolfgang Puck’s. It
enables the District to maintain its position among major
cities as a leader in conventions and conferences.

The Board of Directors of the Washington Convention
Center Authority (WCCA) has decided to develop and
own a 1,200-room headquarters hotel with 100,000 square
feet of meeting and ballroom space. This decision was
followed by six-months of intensive predevelopment
activities to determine whether the hotel could indeed be
built at a site next to the new convention center on 9th
Street between Massachusetts Avenue and M Street, N.W.
After analyzing the options and financing feasibility of
both the 9" street and the old convention center site, the
Board concluded that the 9™ street site is the best location
for ensuring continued long term success of the
Convention Center. This decision now allows the District
to move forward with plans for a mix of housing, office,
retail, and cultural facilities on the site of the old
convention center.

D.C. Department of Transportation

The District of Columbia Department of Transportation’s
(DDOT) mission is to enhance the quality of life for
residents and visitors by ensuring that people, goods, and
information move efficiently and safely, with minimal
adverse impact on residents and the environment. DDOT
manages and maintains transportation infrastructures
which recently included the replacement of the Taylor
Street Bridge, located in the Northeast sector, and the
Thomas Circle restoration project at 14" and
Massachusetts, Avenue, N.W.

DDOT currently has two major initiatives in the city; the
Anacostia Waterfront Initiative and the Great Streets
Initiative.

The Anacostia Waterfront Initiative is a broad-based
project to improve access to, across, and along the
Anacostia River and to improve neighborhood connections
to this valuable natural resource. Currently, the Anacostia
River is the District’s most undervalued and underutilized
natural resource. The plan is to transform the Anacostia
River and its banks into an area that will support
recreational activities, such as swimming, boating and

4 AR District of Columbia
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fishing, and the creation of parks, neighborhoods and
cultural venues.

This initiative created the Anacostia Waterfront
Corporation (AWC) in 2004 to oversee the development of
the Anacostia River and its banks. The AWC seeks to
ensure that the social and economic benefits derived from
a revitalized waterfront are shared by those neighborhoods
and people living along the Anacostia River. Early
projections show that the cost would be approximately $8
billion and take at least 25 years to complete.

Please visit www.anacostiawaterfront.net to follow the
progress of this exciting and monumental task.

The Great Streets Initiative targets major boulevards in the
city to improve the condition and function of the streets
and roadways and to promote local business enterprises
and improve neighborhood quality of life. It is a
multidisciplinary approach to corridor improvement.
DDOT has committed more than $100 million over the
next four years to define, improve, and maintain the public
realm of the corridors. The six target corridors are:

(1) Georgia Avenue and 7% Street, NW, from Eastern
Avenue to New York Avenue

(2) H Street, NE, and Benning Road NE/SE, from North
Capitol Street to Southern Avenue

(3) Nannie Helen Burroughs Avenue, NE, from
Kenilworth Avenue to Eastern Avenue

(4) Minnesota Avenue, N.E./SE, from Sheriff Road, NE, to
Good Hope Road, SE

(5) Pennsylvania Avenue, S.E., from the Sousa Bridge to
Southern Avenue

(6) Martin Luther King, Jr. Avenue and South Capitol
Street from and including Good Hope Road to Southern
Avenue

Please visit www.greatstreetsdc.com to view the plan and
progress of this effort.

Neighborhood Revitalization

District Government Projects
Washington, D.C. continues to consolidate its position as
the world’s capital for finance, technology, government
and history. The city has become a vibrant community
that includes world class arts, sports, entertainment and
dining facilities.

New residential construction is occurring in all sections of
Washington, D.C., and range from single-family
dwellings, to townhouses, to apartment buildings and
condominiums. The District’s Housing Finance Agency

helped finance a total 67 affordable single-family units and
1,165 affordable multi-family units in fiscal year 2006.
These various ongoing efforts are creating a more vibrant
downtown residential neighborhood, in addition to
expanding residential development throughout
Washington, D.C. The rapid reconstruction and
renovation of vacant warehouses, commercial buildings
and residential structures, and new construction in all areas
provide incentives and a very strong marketing tool for
attracting new residents and workers to the Nation’s
Capital.

Since 1999, the District’s Housing Finance Agency (HFA)
has issued more than $2.2 billion in mortgage revenue
bonds to finance more than 24,500 affordable rental units
and single-family homes throughout the city. The HFA
continues to work closely and collaboratively with its
government housing partners to help increase developers’
ability to access various government resources to assist
with their development plans. In total, HFA financed eight
multi-family housing developments. The HFA issued
$71.2 million in tax-exempt and taxable bonds and $42.7
million in Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, and supports
the construction or preservation of new and existing
affordable housing units.

The District’s Office of Planning is involved in projects
that impact just about every area and neighborhood.
Among these are projects from each of the city’s eight
wards, listed in order: (1) the Columbia Heights Public
Realm Framework Plan; (2) the Downtown Action Agenda
Project; (3) the Upper Wisconsin Avenue Corridor Study
Strategic Framework Plan; (4) the Upper Georgia Avenue
Area Land Development Plan; (5) the North of
Massachusetts Avenue Vision Plan & Development
Strategy; (6) the H Street Corridor Revitalization; (7) the
East of the River Project; (8) the Anacostia Transit Area
Strategic Investment Plan.

National Capital Revitalization Corporation

The National Capital Revitalization Corporation (NCRC)
is a publicly chartered corporation focused on stimulating
real estate development, business investment and job
creation in neighborhoods. NCRC is helping to revitalize
DC neighborhoods by attracting private sector investments
that create jobs, generate revenue, attract and retain
businesses, and empower citizens. Together with its
affiliates, NCRC is bringing more than $1.6 billion worth
of investments to DC neighborhoods, developing two
million square feet of retail space, building 2,000 new
homes, and providing 2,000 new jobs for DC residents.

FY2006 CAFR
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Below are two development projects currently under
construction:

Anacostia Gateway  ®* 63,000 square feet mixed-use

@ MLK Jr. Avenue development
& Good Hope Road Project Cost: $19 million
SE * Includes 49,000 square feet of

office space & 14,000 square
feet of retail space
s Completion in 2007

DC USA » 546,000 square feet shopping
@ 14" Street & Park and entertainment complex
Road NW Project Cost: $140 million
= Retailers include; Target, Best
Buy, Bed Bath & Beyond,
Washington  Sports  Club,
Staples, Modell’s and
Marshalls
»  Completion in 2008

Please visit www.ncrcdc.com for a description of all the
completed and ongoing NCRC development projects in the
city.

Federal Government Projects

The federal government has shown renewed interest in the
District as the place for consolidating agencies, functions
and staff. The construction of the U.S. Department of
Justice’s Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and
Explosives’ (ATF) new headquarters building is in its final
stages. The decision to locate the 422,000 square foot
building at the intersection of First Street and New York
Avenues, N.E. helped the District obtain matching Federal
and private commitments of $50 million to pay for the
Metrorail station near that location.

The federal government has announced plans to increase
its employment presence in the Southeast Federal Center
(Center), which already houses a number of U.S. agencies.
Plans are under consideration for the long awaited
development of federal lands near and adjacent to the U.S.
Navy Yard. The U.S. Department of Transportation
(DOT) is nearing completion of a new headquarters’
building, covering 11 acres, at the Center. The new DOT
headquarters will provide 1.35 million square-feet of space
for 7,000 employees. The redevelopment of the remaining
44 acres of the Center will include 1.8 million square-feet
of office space, 2,800 residential units, and as much as
350,000 square-feet of retail space.

Afier decades of holding the St. Elizabeth's west campus,
the Federal government finally designated the site for the
Homeland Security headquarters, beginning with the Coast
Guard. The construction of the Coast Guard headquarters
will be historic because it marks the first time the federal
government has brought development east of the Anacostia
River. The District believes that the major federal

construction will stimulate long sought development along
the Martin Luther King, Jr. Avenue,

In 2003, the federal government announced a proposal to
transfer approximately 170 acres of federal land to the
District. The proposal, approved by Congress, will allow
the District to push forward several critical initiatives.
These initiatives include a new state of the art hospital in
Ward 6, recreational opportunities at Poplar Point, east of
the Anacostia River, restoration of the old Naval Hospital
in S.E., and better control of land near the Convention
Center. As part of the agreement, the District will
surrender five abandoned buildings on the St. Elizabeth
Hospital’s campus to the federal government. In addition,
the District will relinquish administrative control of a
handful of smaller parcels, most of which are already
being used as parkland and will not be altered in any way.

The Pentagon’s Base Realignment and Closure
Commission voted in 2005 to close the Walter Reed Army
Hospital (Walter Reed). The timetable for the closure of
Walter Reed, and future uses of the property have not yet
been decided, but the District is encouraging the federal
government to move quickly to turn the property over for
productive uses that will benefit the neighborhood, the city
and the region. The Walter Reed site encompasses a 73-
building complex over 113-acres. Walter Reed has been in
operation on Georgia Avenue in N.W. Washington, D.C.
since 1909.

Privately Funded Projects

Construction is continuing at 555 Pennsylvania Avenue,
N.W. on a new and expanded Newseum — the world’s first
interactive museum of news. The Newseum, owned by the
Freedom Forum, originally opened in Arlington, Virginia
in 1997. In 2000, the Freedom Forum purchased the
former site of the District’s Department of Employment
Services (DOES) with the purpose of building a much
larger and more ambitious Newseum. It will feature six
levels of displays and expand the exhibit area to 70,000
square feet, which is three times larger than the original
Newseum. This 600,000 square foot development is
estimated to cost $400 million and will house the Freedom
Forum’s headquarters, an 11,000 square foot conference
center, and 145,000 square feet of housing in addition to
the Newseum. The Newseum is expected to be completed
and opened to the public in 2007,

Economic Tax Incentives

The District has created two annual sales tax holidays.
The first sales tax holiday is in August, to assist families
with their Back-to-School purchases, and the second one
starts the day after Thanksgiving. In calendar year 2006,
the sales tax holidays ran from Saturday, August 5 through
Sunday, August 13, and from Friday, November 24
through Sunday, December 3. These Sales Tax Holidays
are available for use by both residents and non-residents.

6 A District of Columbia
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The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 (PL 105-34) established
the District of Columbia’s Enterprise Zones. The zones
consist of the previously existing enterprise zone
communities plus all other census tracts for which the
poverty rate is at least 20%. The law also increased the
limitation on tax-exempt economic development bonds to
$15 million. It eliminated the federal capital gains tax
through December 31, 2007 on business stock, partnership
interest, and business property held for more than five
years in all census tracts for which the poverty rate is at
least 10%. The federal Homebuyer Tax Credit, provides a
maximum $5,000 income tax credit for first-time buyers of
principal residences. The Act was recently extended for
purchases closed through December 31, 2007, and made
retroactive for all of 2006.

The Tax Parity Act of 1999 created a schedule to lower
District taxes on both income and real property by the end
of FY 2004. The new tax rates make Washington, D.C.
more competitive with the neighboring suburban
jurisdictions. The Act streamlined the tax code and
eliminated duplications and discrepancies. At the same
fime, the District moved from a property assessment
schedule of every three years, and one-third of city
properties every year, to an annual assessment of all
properties.

The District uses the Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Program to encourage new economic development projects
that may not occur without this program. TIFs are
supported by the collection of increased sales and use and
real property taxes in the areas associated with each TIF
project. Once the TIF bonds are repaid, these tax
collections will go into the District’s General Fund. The
Embassy Suites Hotel and the H&M retail development
were two of the TIF projects that were funded in FY2006.
The TIF Notes issued for these two projects were $11
million and $3 million respectively. A $10 million TIF
Note was issued on December 20, 2006 for the
development of the Capitol Hill Towers.

Accounting System

The District's accounting systemn is organized and operated
on a fund basis. A fund is a group of functions combined
into a separate accounting entity, having its own assets,
lLiabilities, equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.
The types of funds used are determined in accordance with
GAAP, and the number of funds established within each
type is guided by the “minimum number of funds
principle” and sound financial administration. Specialized
accounting and reporting principles and practices apply to
governmental funds. Proprietary, component units and
pension trust funds are accounted for in the same manner
as business enterprises or non-business organizations.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Fund balances in the governmental fund financial
statements will generally differ from net assets in the
governmental activities of the government-wide financial
statements due to the measurement focus and basis of
accounting used in the respective financial statements.

e Fund financial statements focus primarily on the
sources, uses, and balances of current financial
resources and use the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

e The government-wide financial statements focus on
all of the District’s economic resources and use the
full accrual basis of accounting.

The District’s financial statements are prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

Internal Control

Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the
assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are
processed and summarized to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The
internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurances that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
the application of estimates and judgments by
management.

Budgetary Control

The District maintains budgetary controls designed to
monitor compliance with expenditure limitations contained
in the annual appropriated budget approved by the D.C.
Council and the U.S. Congress. A project-length financial
plan is adopted for Capital Projects Funds. The level of
budgetary control (the level at which expenditures cannot
legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established by
function within the General Fund. The District also
maintains an encumbrance recording system as one
technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Generally,
encumbered amounts lapse at year-end in the General
Fund but not in the Capital Projects Funds.

By law, the budgetary general fund includes both the
general fund and the federal and private resources fund.
However, for reporting purposes, the federal and private
resources fund is reported separately as a special revenue
fund. Additionally, the budgetary basis of accounting used
to prepare the budgetary comparison statement presented
in Exhibit 2-d differs from the GAAP — basis general fund

FY2006 CAFR
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and federal and private resources fund due to other basis
and entity differences, as follows:

e  Basis Differences - The District uses the purchases
method for budgetary purposes, and the consumption
method to account for inventories on a GAAP basis.
Under the consumption method, a governmental
expenditure is recognized only when the inventory
items are used. Under the purchase method, purchases
of inventories are recognized as expenditures when
the goods are received and transaction is vouchered.

e  Entity Differences - This basis relates to inclusion or
exclusion of certain activities for budgetary purposes
as opposed to those included or excluded on a GAAP
basis for reporting purposes. Such activities primarily
include the following as detailed in Exhibit 2-d:

- Fund balance released from restrictions
- Proceeds from debt restructuring

- Accounts receivable allowance

- Operating cost from enterprise funds

The “District Anti-Deficiency Act of 2002” (the Act)
became effective on April 4, 2003. The Act requires
District managers to develop spending projections, by
source of funds, on a monthly basis, which show year-to-
date spending, approved budget, year-end projected
spending, explanations of variances greater than 5%, and
in the occurrence of overspending, corrective action plans.
Spending projections are required to be submitted to the
agency head and the agency chief financial officer.
Summarized spending projections must be submitted to the
District’s CFO no more than 30-days after the end of each
month.

The District’s CFO is required to submit reports to the
D.C. Council and the Mayor on a quarterly basis indicating
each agency’s actual expenditures, obligations, and
commitments, each by source of funds, compared to their
approved spending plan. This report is required to be
accompanied by the CFO’s observations regarding
spending patterns and steps being taken to assure that
spending remains within the approved budget.

Congressional mandate required the District to accumulate
and maintain an emergency cash reserve equaling 4% of
the total budget allocated for operating expenditures by the
end of FY 2004. An additional contingency cash reserve
was also established, which equaled 3% of the total budget
allocated for operating expenditures. The District met both
of these requirements. Beginning in FY 2005, the District
is only required to maintain a combined balance of 6% of
the general fund expenditures less debt service. The 6% is
comprised of a contingency cash reserve of 4% and an
emergency cash reserve of 2%.

Cash Management

Generally, cash from all funds of the primary government
is combined unless prohibited by law. Any cash that is not
needed for immediate disbursement is invested in
securities which are essentially guaranteed by the federal
government, such as mutual funds consisting of federal
government  obligations or repurchase agreements
collateralized by federal agency obligations.

The Financial Institutions Deposit and Investment
Amendment Act of 1997 (D.C. Code 47-351.3) authorized
the District to invest in certain obligations that may not be
guaranteed by the federal government. Such deposits and
investments are fully collateralized with approved
securities that are held by the District or by its agent in the
District's name.

Bond Rating Agencies

Rating agencies assess credit quality of municipal issuers
and assign a credit rating based on their analyses. An
acceptable credit rating enables the issuer to access the
market. Because the municipal market contains so many
issuers, rating agencies provide vital information to
investors as to the relative risks associated with rated bond
issues. The three primary Rating Agencies that rate
municipal debt are: (1) Fitch, IBCA, Inc.; (2) Moody’s
Investors Service; and (3) Standard and Poor’s Rating
Service.

The District’s bond ratings for the past three years are:

Bond Rating History

Fiscal Year
2004 2005 2006

S&P A A+ A+

Moody's A2 A2 A2

Fitch A- A A
Risk Management

The District retains the risk of loss arising out of the
ownership of property or from some other cause, except
for health care and life insurance benefits for employees.
A liability is established in the government-wide statement
of net assets to reflect certain contingencies; however, this
amount is not intended to include all assets that may be
required to finance losses. Rather, certain losses are
recognized in the affected funds when they occur. The
District is self-insured for unemployment and disability,
also known as worker’s compensation, as well as for
general liability.

8 3 District of Columbia
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Independent Audit

District law (D.C. Code 47-119) requires an annual
financial audit of the District by independent certified
public accountants. The audit must be conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and Government Auditing
Standards  published by the US. Government
Accountability Office. The financial statements must be
prepared in conformity with GAAP. The District has
complied with these requirements and the independent
auditors' report is included in the financial section of this
report.

U.S. Office of Management & Budget Single Audit

The District is required by the U.S. Office of Management
& Budget (OMB) to conduct a financial and compliance
audit of all federal awards. OMB Circular A-133
(Revised) outlines these requirements, and sets forth
standards for obtaining consistency and uniformity among
federal agencies for the audit of states, local governments,
and non-profit organizations expending federal awards.
This Circular is issued pursuant to the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996, P.L. 104-156.

The Office of Internal Audit and Internal Security, Office
of the Chief Financial Officer, has completed all required
A-133 Single Audits through fiscal year 2005 and the
District 1s in full compliance with the Single Audit Act.
The results of the District-wide Single Audits are
presented in a separate report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the District for its comprehensive annual financial report
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. The District
has received this award for twenty-two of the last twenty-
four years. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious
national award that recognizes conformance with the
highest standards in the preparation of state and local
government financial reports. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report whose contents
conform to program standards. The report must also
satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

GFOA also gave an award to the District for Outstanding
Achievement in Popular Annual Financial Reporting
(PAFR) for fiscal year ended September 30, 2005 for the
third consecutive year. The PAFR was prepared and
submitted by the District for the first time for FY 2003.
The PAFR presents the District’s financial results in a
format and language that is intended to be more easily

understood by the general public. The PAFR is not
required to present the same level of detail as the CAFR.
It contains very few financial statements, and the use of
graphics and photos is increased.

Both awards are valid for one fiscal year. The District
believes that the FY 2006 CAFR continues to conform to
the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and
it will be submitted to the GFOA for review and approval.
The District also expects that the FY 2006 PAFR, which
will be prepared within the next month, will conform to the
Award for Popular Annual Financial Reporting Program
requirements. It will also be submitted to the GFOA for
review and approval.
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Sherryl Hobbs Newman

Cyril Byron, Jr.
Barbara D. Jumper
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Interim Associate CFO, Government Services
Associate CFO, Human Support Services

Associate CFO, Public Safety and Justice
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Executive Director, D.C. Lottery
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

District of Columbia

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2005

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

& .
Z\ cpanation /S, President
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Executive Director
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Financial Section Independent Auditors " Report

BDO Seldman, LLP 1250 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suile 200
B D O Ac and Consul Washington, D.C. 20036
I 4 Telephone: (202) 2613565
———— Fax: (202) 261-3563

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Mayor and the Council of the Government of the District of Columbia
Inspector General of the Government of the District of Columbia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the apgregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Government of the District of Columbia (the
District), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006, which coliectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the District’s management. Cur responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative
information has been derived from the District’s 2005 financial statements and, in our report
dated January 23, 2006, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective financial statements
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with avditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial slatements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examicing, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Government of the District of Columbia as of September 30, 2006, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general and federal and private resources funds for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
26, 2007, on our consideration of the District’s internal control aver financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 19 through 35 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principies generally
aceepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opigion on it.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the other
supplementary information presented in the financial section as listed in the table of contents, and
the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the basic financial statements. The statements and schedules described as other supplementary
information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section have
not been subjected to the anditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

2DO Seidraar, LLP

Washington, D.C.
January 26, 2007
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis Financial Section

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 30, 2006

(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities
of the District of Columbia (the District) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. This discussion and analysis should
be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and the related note disclosures, which follow this discussion on
pages 37 through 98. In addition, it is important to also read the Transmittal Letter, which begins on page 1, in conjunction
with the MD&A.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components:

(1) Government-Wide Financial Statements - Exhibit 1-a, Statement of Net Assets, and Exhibit 1-b, Statement of Activities
on pages 38 and 39 respectively, present information about the financial activities of the District as a whole. These two
statements provide an overall view of the District’s finances.

(2) Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Exhibit 2-a, Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, Exhibit 2-b, Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, Exhibit 2-c, Reconciliation of the
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of
Activities, and Exhibit 2-d, Budgetary Comparison Statement on pages 40, 41, 42, and 43, respectively, show the
District’s financial position at the end of the fiscal year and how governmental activities were financed during the current
year.

The fund financial statements focus on the most significant District funds and present operations in more detail. The
fiduciary funds report activities for which the District acts exclusively as a trustee or agent for the benefit of entities or
individuals external to the government.

(3) Notes To The Basic Financial Statements - Present additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, and can be found on pages 51 through 98.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ In the government-wide analysis, assets exceeded liabilities, resulting in total net assets of $2,508,355. The total net
assets consisted of netr assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $975,988; restricted net assets of
$1,335,588; and unrestricted net assets of $196,779. The total government-wide net assets included $2,114,026
generated by governmental activities and $394,329 generated by business-type activities.

e There was an increase of $383,647 over the previous year in the government-wide total net assets. This increase is
attributable to a $1,576,519 increase in total assets, which was offset by an increase in total liabilities of $1,192,872.
The increased collection of taxes and other revenues accounted for the majority of this increase. (See Table 1, Net Assets
as of September 30, 2006 on page 22.)

e The governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $2,489,622 which was an increase of $880,659 over the
previous year. The fund balance of the general fund was $1,435,142 or 57.6% of the combined fund balances, and
represented a decrease of $(149,541) over the previous year. This reduction was due to management’s decision to use
$528.4 million to finance various projects such as: $252.7 million in capital improvements; $138.0 million for other post
employment benefits and $75.2 million for advancement in health care, education, and the arts and humanities.

e $1,045,560 of the general fund’s fund balance is reserved for specific purposes: $293,649 is legally set aside for
emergencies and contingencies, $262,640 for bond escrow, and $87,987 for PAYGO capital, with $401,284 reserved for
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other purposes. Of the $389,582 unreserved general fund’s fund balance, $41,473 is designated for other post
employment benefits, $73,784 for school modemization, and $136,320 for other special purposes, with $138,005
remaining undesignated and available for use.

» Total long-term debt related to notes and bonds increased by $929,191, or 21.9%. There was a net increase of $141,665
in general obligation debt, a new issuance of Ballpark Bonds in the amount of $534,800 and an increase of $252,726 in
other debt. (Table 4, Outstanding Bonds and Notes at September 30, 2006, page 30).

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
GASB Statement No. 45

In July 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB
expense/expenditures and related assets and liabilities, note disclosures, and, if applicable, required supplementary
information (RSI) in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers.

GASB Statement No. 45 does not become effective for the District until FY2008. The District plans to implement this
Statement on or before the effective date.

GASB Statement No. 46

In December 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation. This Statement requires
that limitations on the use of net assets, imposed by enabling legislation, be reported as restricted net assets. Statement No.
46 clarifies that a legally enforceable enabling legislation restriction is one that a party external to the government — such as
citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary — can compel a government to honor. The Statement requires that the legal
enforceability of an enabling legislation be reevaluated if any of the resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a
purpose not specified by the enabling legislation, or if the government has other cause for consideration.

The District implemented the requirements of this Statement in fiscal year 2002, prior to its effective date. GASB Statement
No. 46 became effective for the District in FY2006.

GASB Statement No. 47

In June 2005, GASB issued Statement No 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits. This Statement requires that in the
period in which an employer becomes obligated for termination benefits, and in any additional period in which employees are
required to render future service in order to receive involuntary termination benefits, the employer should disclose the
following: 1) a description of the termination benefit arrangements, 2) the cost of the termination benefits, 3) a disclosure of
whether termination benefits are measured at the discounted present value, and, 4) if the expected benefits are not estimable,
the employer should disclose that fact. The provisions of this Statement need not be applied to immaterial items.

GASB Statement No. 47 became effective for the District in FY2006. The District has implemented this Statement.
GASB Statement No. 48

In September 2006, GASB issued Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity
Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues. Governments sometimes exchange an interest in their expected cash flows from
specific receivables or specific revenues, for immediate cash payments — generally, a single lump sum. This Statement
establishes criteria that governments will use to ascertain whether the proceeds should be reported as revenue or as a liability.
This Statement also includes guidance to be used for recognizing other assets and liabilities arising from a sale of specific
receivables or future revenue, including residual interests and recourse provisions. The requirements in this Statement
improve financial reporting by establishing measurement, recognition, and disclosure requirements that apply to both
governmental and business-type activities.

GASB Statement No. 48 does not become effective for the District until FY2008. The District has begun the implementation
of this Statement.
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THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL CONDITION

The District government’s level of financial responsibility and performance can be measured in various ways. Below are
some of the indicators of the District’s improved financial position:

e The total expenditures for the District were again within budget.

e The general fund ended the year with a budgetary surplus of $325,162, After deducting the use of fund balance

released from restrictions and other adjustments required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the
non-budgetary or GAAP deficit was $(149,541).

e The accumulated general fund fund balance at September 30, 2006 was $1,435,142.

¢  The required legal debt limitation allows the District to use up to 17.0% of its total revenues for debt service in
FY2006. However, the District’s debt service cost was only 7.4% of total revenues, or about 43.8% of the legal
limit.

¢  The District continues to allocate large amounts of funds for infrastructure assets.

Reporting the District as a Whole (Government-Wide Financial Statements)

The District, as a whole, reports all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. This method of reporting is
similar to the accounting method used by most private-sector companies. Under this basis of accounting, all of the current
year’s financial activities are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. The governmental activities and
business-type activities are presented in two separate columns and combined to show totals for the primary government. The
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are two statements that present information and activities that help the
reader determine the overall financial condition of the District.

The District’s current financial resources (short-term disposable resources) are reported along with capital assets and long-
term obligations in the Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the District’s
assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. This statement distinguishes between
governmental activities, business-type activities and component units’ activities.

The total net assets is the sum of three components: 1) net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, 2) restricted
net assets, and 3) unrestricted net assets. Over time and accounting periods, changes in the District’s net assets are an
indicator of its financial health. However, changes in population, property tax base, infrastructure condition and other non-
financial factors must also be considered in assessing the overall financial health of the District.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed from the last fiscal year.
All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses reported in this statement also include items that will only result
in cash flows in future fiscal periods, (for example, uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Activities summarizes both the gross and net cost of the governmental activities and business-type activities.
Governmental activities show the District’s basic functional services while business-type activities reflect enterprise
operations where fees for services are expected to cover all or most of the costs of operations, including depreciation.
Program/functional expenses are reduced by program specific earned revenues, and by grants, that reduce net expenses for
governmental and business-type activities. The District’s general revenues (property, sales, income and franchise taxes)
offset remaining costs, resulting in an increase or decrease in net assets.

Financial Analysis of the Government as a Whole (Government-Wide Financial Statements)

In fiscal year 2006, the combined total net assets increased by $383,647. This increase is the combination of a governmental
activities increase of $363,362 and a business-type activities increase of $20,285. See Table 2, Change in Net Assets as of
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September 30, 2006, on page 23. The increased collection of taxes and other revenues accounted for the majority of this
outcome. More efficient use of resources, including better expenditure management, also contributed to this positive result.

Restricted net assets are assets that are subject to use-constraints that are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as
through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or, (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or by enabling legislation. In FY2006, total restricted net assets increased by $82,674, or 6.60%,
consisting of an increase of $57,629, or 6.20%, from governmental activities, and an increase of $25,045, or 7.76% from
business-type activities.

The Lottery and Charitable Games Control Board, an enterprise fund of the primary government, transfers substantially all of
its net income to the District at the end of each fiscal year. In fiscal year 2006, the transfer was $73,800, which was a $2,350
increase from last year’s amount. Please see Exhibit 3-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
— Proprietary Funds, on page 45.

Fund balances in the governmental fund financial statements will generally differ from net assets in the governmental
activities of the government-wide financial statements due to the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the
respective financial statements.

e Fund financial statements focus primarily on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources and use
the modified accrual basis of accounting.

¢ The government-wide financial statements focus on all of the District’s economic resources and use the full accrual
basis of accounting,

The positive unrestricted net assets of $167,779 in FY2006 represents a change of $416,867 from the FY2005 deficit of
$(249,088). This change is the result of an increase in total net assets of $363,362 and a net decrease of $(53,505) in other
restrictions and net assets invested in capital assets. The net decrease of $(53,505) was composed primarily of a decrease of
$(111,134) in invested in capital assets, net of related debt; and an increase of $57,629 for other restricted net assets. The
increase in net assets was due mainly to a significant increase in property taxes of $122.0 million, an increase of income and
franchise taxes of $119.0 million, and an increase of $120.0 million for miscellaneous revenues.

Restricted net assets are assets whose uses are not subject to the District’s discretion. This category includes resources
subject to externally imposed restrictions by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws/regulations of other governments, and
constitutional provisions.

Table 1 - Net Assets as of September 30, 2006

Business-type
Governmental activities activities Totals
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current and other assets  § 3,811,134 § 2,783,666 $ 473,582 § 453,541  $ 4,284,716 $ 3,237,207
Capital assets 5,546,741 5,018,939 17,391 16,183 5,564,132 5,035,122
Total assets 9,357,875 7,802,605 490,973 469,724 0,848,848 8,272,329
Long-term liabilities 5,984,643 4,862,030 52,584 59,449 6,037,227 4,921,479
Other liabilities 1,259,206 1,189,911 44,060 36,231 1,303,266 1,226,142
Total Liabilities 7,243,849 6,051,941 96,644 95,680 7,340,493 6,147,621
Net assets:
Invested in capital assels,
net of related debt 958,597 1,069,731 17,391 16,183 975,988 1,085,914
Restricted 987,650 930,021 347,938 322,893 1,335,588 1,252,914
Unrestricted 167,779 (249,088) 29,000 34,968 196,779 (214,120)
Total net assets $ 2,114,026 §$ 1,750,664 § 394,329 § 374,044 § 2,508,355 § 2,124,708
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Financial Section

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Chart 1 shows various
sources of revenues. This
chart is a visual presentation
of the numbers that were
presented in  Table 2,
Change in Net Assets as of
September 30, 2006 on page

23.

Chart 2 displays both
expenses and  program
revenues of  selected
governmental activities for
the fiscal year. The
governmental activities that
are shown are:
governmental direction and
support, economic
development and regulation,
public safety and justice,
public education system,
human support services and
public works.

Chart 1 - Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Revenues by Source -- Governmental Activities
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Chart 2 - Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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Reporting on the District’s Most Significant Funds

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the District uses to keep track of specific
sources of funding and spending for a particular purpose. In accordance with District law, bond covenants, and other legal
stipulations, funds are established for specific purposes and to report on the activities related to the goods and services that
the District provides to the general public. The District’s funds are presented in three categories or groups: governmental,
enterprise, and fiduciary.

The focus of the fund financial statements’ presentation is on major funds, and not on fund types. Major funds, as required
by GAAP, are presented individually; with non-major governmental funds combined in a single column. Detailed
information for individual non-major governmental funds can be found in ‘Other Supplementary Information’, Exhibits B-1,
Combining Balance Sheet and B-2, Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
pages |10 and 111,

Governmental Funds

The District’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources.
This information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The
governmental fund financial statements relate to the governmental activities column in the government-wide statements. The
focus is on a shorter-term basis and measures how money flows into and out of these funds and determines the balances left
at year-end for future spending.

Most basic services are found in this fund category, which are reported as General, Federal and Private Resources, General
Capital Improvements, Baseball Capital Project, and Non-major Governmental Funds. These funds are reported using the
modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted into cash.
Please refer to Exhibit 2-a, Balance Sheer — Governmental Funds and Exhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds, pages 40 and 41, for more detailed information about these funds.

s  Fund Balances: The governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $2,489,622, an increase of $880,659
over the previous year. The components of this combined fund balance are as follows:

- General Fund - § 1,435,142, a decrease of $(149,541) over the previous year.

- Federal and private resources - $161,310, an increase of $43,363 over the previous year.

- General capital improvements - $396,820, an increase of $643,182 over the previous year.

- Baseball capital project - $328,581. In FY2005, the activity of this fund did not result in a fund balance.
- Nonmajor governmental funds - $167,769, an increase of $15,074 over the previous year.

* Revenues: The collection of taxes and other revenues increased in FY2006 due to the continued strength of the
Washington, D.C. economy. Revenues of the governmental funds increased by $494,118. Property taxes, income
and franchise taxes, and sales and use taxes continued to show steady increases. Commercial retail and office space
growth continued, and commercial vacancy rates remained amongst the lowest in the nation.

On the residential side, longer commuting times, for non-resident employees, has made Washington, D.C. a more
attractive place to live. The growth in the wages and salaries of residents contributed to the increase in individual
income tax revenue. The increase in the sales and use tax was due to increased retail and hospitality sales, a result
of increased individual income and the growth in the number of conventions and visitors.

The primary sources of the increases in general fund revenues are:

- Property taxes increased by $93,149.
- Income and franchise taxes increased by $119,051.
- Miscellaneous revenues increased by $177,494.

The increase in real property tax revenue in FY2006 reflects the strength of the D.C. real estate market two-years
prior, since there is a two-year lag between when real property value is assessed and when the revenue from the
increased assessment is realized. As the demand for residential and commercial real estate has soared in the last
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several years, prices have climbed steeply and the result has been higher assessments and increased tax revenue,
despite several rounds of tax relief to the residential sector.

The rise in individual income tax revenue, despite another round of tax cuts from the phased implementation of Tax
Parity, reflects the strong growth in income of D.C.’s top earners. The largest source of growth was from the non-
withholding portion of the income — the portion that is tied closely to stock market returns. This suggests that the
strong growth in returns from the financial markets in the previous year was the main driver of the continued growth
in the individual income tax.

The growth in miscellaneous revenues was the result of fluctuations in unclaimed property and end of year
adjustments resulting from a change in estimates relating to expenditure accruals. Please see Exhibit 2-b, Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds, page 41, for more detailed
information.

Dedicated Revenues
Every year, some portion of various District revenue streams are dedicated to certain purposes. The dedicated

portion of the tax revenues is transferred out of the local fund, and is thus not available for general budgeting. In
FY2006, the District transferred a total of $271.7 million in tax revenues out of the local fund budget.

Table 3 — Dedicated Local Tax Revenues ($ in 000’s)

Tax Revenue Dedicated Purpose (Transfer to)
Nursing
Neighborhood Highway  Facility
Gross Inves tment Convention Ballpark  Trust  Quality of Net
Source Collection TIF Fund DDOT  Center Fund Fund Care Fund HPTF | Collection
Real Property $ 1,153,795 (1,652) 1,152,143
Personal Property 65,514 (9,966) 55,548
Public Space Rental 22,206 (22,206) -
General Sales 908,884 | (11,562) (33,586) (79,706) (8,664) 775,366
Motor Fuel Tax 24,960 (24,960) -
Public Utility 155,157 (10,356) 144,801
Toll Telecommunications 56,611 (2,055) 54,556
Healthcare Provider Tax 9,107 (9,107)
Baseball Gross Receipts 15,952 (15,952) -
Deed Recordation 197,528 (28,504) 169,024
Deed Transfer 132,615 (19,106) 113,509
TOTAL § 2,742,329 (13,214) (9,966) (55,792)  (79,706)  (37,027) (24,960) (90,107) (47,610) 2,464,947

Expenditures: The District’s expenditures increased in most of its program/functional areas in the total amount of
$977,053 over the previous year. The program/functional areas were led by an increase in governmental direction
and support of $21,276, human support services of $294,789, the public education system of $98,743, public safety
and justice of $99,344, economic development and regulation of $80,756, and capital outlays of $286,115.

The largest individual expenditure increase at agency level was the $54.8 million cost in personal services for the
Metropolitan Police Department (MPD). This was attributed to a 4% pay increase for the 3,800 sworn members of
the MPD, and a $12.7 million settlement related to the Public Employee’s Relations Board (PERB) award. The
PERB award was a retroactive settlement agreement with the Fraternal Order of Police for overtime and
compensatory time earned from FY2001 to FY2003. An additional $1.6 million was for new hires in FY2006.
Also, in FY2006, the Chief of Police declared a crime emergency which increased overtime by $10.6 million.

26 #HAA District of Columbia FY2006 CAFR



Management 's Discussion and Analysis Financial Section

The District spent $652,198 on general capital improvements which exceeded the general capital improvements
revenues of $212,112 by $(440,086) resulting in the deficiency shown in the capital projects fund. The District
investments in capital improvements is based on need rather than available current year revenues, before considering
current year bond proceeds. This deficiency is subsequently financed through the use of bond proceeds, after other
financing sources of $1,083,268 were applied. The net change in the general capital improvements fund balance
was an increase of $643,182.

The District is rapidly investing in infrastructure and other improvements to encourage residents and businesses to
stay in the District and to attract new residents and businesses. Please see Exhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, page 41, for more detailed information.

Listed below are the seven major infrastructure projects undertaken in FY2006, by costs incurred:

1) Street Repair/Pavement Restoration, Citywide - $10,561

2)  9th Street Bridge Design Build - $10,049

3) Theodore Roosevelt Bridge - $7,447

4)  Curb/Sidewalks/Alley Replacement/Improvements, Wards 7 & 8- $7,115
5) Traffic Signal Maintenance/lmprovements, Citywide - $7,011

6) Road/Resurface/Reconstruction/Upgrades, Ward 5 - $6,572

7) Pavement Restoration Wards 1 & 8 - $5,333

It is the District’s financial policy to issue general obligation bonds to support the expenditures associated with its Capital
Improvements Program. In order to minimize the cost of carrying debt, the District has instituted the practice of issuing
bonds based on actual expenditures as opposed to an estimated amount budgeted on an annual basis. In practice, agencies are
authorized to spend their annual appropriated capital budget in advance of financing. The general fund advances the amount
of the funding, and is repaid with the proceeds from the bonds when issued.

This allows the District to determine when it will enter the market to issue bonds based upon cash flow needs, favorable
market rates and the number of municipal debt financing and the types of credits that are available. This flexibility helps to
minimize borrowing costs and maximizes the pool of potential investors for the District’s debt issuances.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds account for activities of District entities that charge customers a fee for services provided, whether to
outside customers or to other entities of the District. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The District currently has two major Proprietary
Funds: the D.C. Lottery & Charitable Games Board (Lottery), and the Unemployment Compensation Fund (Unemployment).
There is one non-major proprietary fund, Nursing Home Services, which includes the operations of the Washington Center
for Aging Services, the Washington Center for Aging Services Center Care, and the JB Johnson Nursing Center. See Chart
3, Expense and Program Revenues — Business-Type Activities and Chart 4, Revenues by Source — Business-Type Activities,
both on page 28, which give a visual comparative presentation of the revenues and expenses of the three funds.

The total assets for Lottery decreased by $(4,138). or -5.6%, over the previous year due to scheduled disbursements to long-
term prize winners. The total assets for Unemployment increased by $19,177, or 5.2%, due to higher tax collections from
employers. The net cash provided by (used in) operating activities for Lottery, Unemployment and non-major proprietary
funds (Nursing Services) were $75,610, $3,310, and $(2,393) respectively. See Exhibit 3-a, Statement of Net Assets —
Proprietary Funds, Exhibit 3-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Proprietary Funds, and
Exhibit 3-c, Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds, on pages 44, 45 and 46 respectively for more detailed
information.

Proprietary funds provide goods and services to the general public and use the full accrual accounting method for reporting
purposes.
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Chart 3 — Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Fiduciary Funds

The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the District as trustee for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments. The District is the trustee or fiduciary for its employees’ pension plans. All fiduciary
activities are reported in Exhibit 4-a, Statement of Fiduciary Fund Net Assets and Exhibit 4-b, Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Fund Net Assets on pages 47 and 48, respectively. Please also refer to Exhibit C-1, Pension Trust Funds —
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets, Exhibit C-2, Pension Trust Funds — Combining Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets on pages 114 and 115 respectively, for more details. These activities are excluded from the District’s
financial statements because these resources are restricted and are not available to support the District’s operations.
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Private-purpose trust funds are used to report any trust arrangement not reported in pension funds or investment trust funds
“under which principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.” The District offers a
tax-advantaged 529 College Savings Investment Plan (named after Section 529 of the Internal Revenue Code). The Plan is
designed to help families save for the higher education expenses of designated beneficiaries which is available to D.C.
residents and non-residents. This plan is reported in the Private-purpose trust fund, and was established during FY2003.
Please see Note 1-E, Fiduciary Funds — Private Purpose Trust Funds on page 55.

The net assets of the pension trust fund increased by $473,737. Net investment income is the primary source of the increases
as both entities continue to benefit from the improved U.S. equity and non-U.S. equity markets, and from prudent investment
management.

The Component Units

The District currently has six component units: 1) Water and Sewer Authority (WASA), 2) Washington Convention Center
Authority (WCCA), 3) Sports and Entertainment Commission (SEC), 4) Housing Finance Agency (HFA), 5) University of
the District of Columbia (UDC) and 6) Anacostia Waterfront Corporation (AWC). Component units are legally separate
organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Accountability exists because the Mayor, with the consent of
the Council, appoints the governing bodies of all of the component units. In addition, the District has an obligation to
provide financial support to the Convention Center, and the University of the District of Columbia. Certain tax revenues are
dedicated to each of these organizations. The financial data of the component units are reported separately from the financial
data of the primary government.

Each of the component units prepares its own independently audited financial statements, which are accompanied by their
respective MD&A. Please see Exhibit Sa, Discretely Presented Component Units - Combining Statement of Net Assets, page
49, and Exhibit 5b, Discretely Presented Component Units - Combining Statement of Activities, page 50, for more detailed
financial information on the component units.

Short-Term Debt

The District issues short-term debt primarily to finance seasonal cash flow needs. This need occurs due to the timing
variance between receipts of taxes, grants and other revenues and the outflow of funds for governmental operations and
required disbursements. The District issued $250,000 in General Obligation Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs) on
December 14, 2005, at an interest rate of 3.28%, which has been repaid. By law, the District must repay any short-term debt

in its entirety by September 30 of the fiscal year in which the debt was incurred. The FY2005 TRANs were repaid on
September 29, 2006,

Long-Term Debt and Bond Ratings

On December 15, 2005, the District issued its Series 2005A General Obligation Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$331,210. The proceeds of these bonds will be used to finance capital project expenditures in the District's fiscal year 2006
capital improvements program, and to pay cost and expenses of issuing and delivering the bonds. The 2005A Bonds were
issued as fixed-rate bonds at a weighted average interest rate yield of 4.60%. Like all District general obligation bonds, the
2005A bonds are secured by the District’s full faith and credit, and are further secured by a security interest and lien on the
funds derived from a Special Property Tax levied annually by the District. Interest payments began in FY2006, and principal

payments will begin in 2007, with payments being made on June 1 and December 1. The 2005A Bonds will be paid off on
June 1, 2030.

On December 15, 2005, the District issued its Series 2005B General Obligation Refunding Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of $116,475. The proceeds of these bonds were used to redeem, or defease, a portion of the District’s outstanding
general obligation bonds at a savings to the District and to pay the costs and expenses of issuing and delivering the bonds.
The 2005B Bonds were issued as fixed-rate bonds at a weighted average interest rate yield of 4.48%. Like all District general
obligation bonds, the 2005B bonds are secured by the District’s full faith and credit, and are further secured by a security
interest and lien on the funds derived from a Special Property Tax levied annually by the District. Interest payments began in
FY2006, and principal payments will begin in 2009, with interest payments being made on June 1 and December 1, and
principal payments being made on June 1. The 2005B Bonds will be paid off on June 1, 2027. The refunding bonds, which

refinanced existing bonds at lower interest rates, will provide the District with $4.12 million in present value savings over the
next several years.
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In November 2005, Moody’s Investors Service upgraded the District’s general obligation bond rating to “A2 (Positive
Outlook)” from “A2”. Also in November 2005, Standard & Poor’s upgraded the District’s general obligation bond rating to
“A+” from “A”, based on its stable economic outlook. In June 2005, Fitch Ratings upgraded the District’s bond rating from
“A- (Positive Outlook)” to “A (Positive Outlook).” Each time the District issues new debt, the current debt rating is reviewed
for the new issuance. At that time, the bond rating agencies assess the District’s financial condition, and underlying credit
worthiness, and change their rating as warranted. Bond rating agencies will also periodically review the District’s overall
financial condition for possible adjustments to its bond rating or outlook.

The significantly improved bond ratings allow the District to either refinance outstanding debt, or issue new debt, at more
favorable rates. In the past, the District’s financial and operational difficulties required it to pay substantially higher interest
rates on its debt. The District’s financial advisors estimate that the effect of the upgrades on the District’s recent general
obligation bond sale was a savings of approximately 5 basis points, or $200,000 per year. A basis point is one-percent of a
percentage point of interest, or 0.01%. Lower interest rates translate into reduced debt service payments, resulting in a
greater percentage of the District’s budget being available for the services and operations needed for its citizens.

At September 30, 2006 the District had a total of $5,180,470 in general obligation bonds, TIF Bonds and Notes, Qualified
Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB), and Tobacco Bonds outstanding. Please refer to Table 3, Outstanding Bonds and Notes at
September 30, 2006. This is an increase of $929,191 over last year’s figure of $4,251,279. General obligation bonds
represent 72.8% of the District’s outstanding long-term debt. TIF bonds and notes and QZAB represent 2.5% and Tobacco
Bonds Outstanding represent 14.3% of its outstanding long-term debt. In FY2006, the District issued $534,800 in Ballpark
Bonds to finance the new baseball stadium, The District’s borrowing has been increasing over the past few years because of
the demand for improvements in infrastructure, such as roads, streets, and bridges. (Please see Note 8. Long-Term Liabilities,
pages 78-88 for a more detailed discussion).

The general obligation debt per capita (D.C. resident) as of September 30, 2006 was $6,490. This is an increase of $250, or
1.6% over the revised amount of $6,240 per capita on September 30, 2005. The increase is due to the District’s issuance of
additional general obligation debt. The debt per capita figure that was given in last year’s CAFR may not correspond to the
figure given in this year’s CAFR because of adjustments in census estimates. Please refer to Exhibit S-3B, Ratios of General
Bonded Debt Outstanding — Last Ten Years on page 142,

Table 4 — Outstanding Bonds and Netes at September 30, 2006

Long-Term Debt
($ in thousands)

2006 2005 Variance
General Obligation Bonds $ 3,773,863 § 3,632,198 § 141,665
Ballpark Bonds 534,800 - 534,800
TIF Bonds and Notes 124,302 117,526 6,776
Qualified Zone Academy Bonds 5,221 2,815 2,406
Tobacco Bonds 742,284 498,740 243,544

Total $ 5,180,470 § 4,251,279 § 929,191

30 3 District of Columbia FY2006 CAFR



Management’s Discussion and Analysis Financial Section

Capital Assets

Net capital assets of the governmental activities totaled $5,546,741, while the net capital assets in business-type activities
totaled $17,391, for a total of $5,564,132 net capital assets at September 30, 2006. These capital assets include, but are not
limited to, land, buildings, police and fire equipment, office equipment, park facilities, roads and bridges. The governmental
activities depreciation charges for the current fiscal year totaled $225,809 compared to last year’s $220,981. The general
capital improvements fund is used to account for the purchase or construction of capital assets financed by transfers, capital
grants, and or debt. Please see Table 5, Net Capital Assets, below for more details.

Total capital assets increased by $529,010 or 10.5%, over capital assets reported on September 30, 2005. This increase was
made up of an increase in governmental activities capital assets of $ 527,802 or 10.5% and an increase in capital assets from
business-type activities of $1,208, or 7.5%. Total capital assets are increasing because the District is investing more
resources in new and existing rehabilitated infrastructure, such as roads, streets, and bridges. The cost of these assets is being
funded primarily by the increase in District revenues, the issuance of debt, and the use of general fund fund balance. Please
see Note 5. - Capital Assets for a more complete discussion of the District’s capital assets, on pages 72-76.

Table 5 — Net Capital Assets as of September 30, 2006

Governmental Business-type
Asset Category activities activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Land $ 219,938 $ 220,004 $ 1,264 $ 1,264 $ 221,202 $ 221,268
Buildings 1,701,162 1,609,435 14,464 14,133 1,715,626 1,623,568
Infrastructure 1,792,926 1,653,759 - - 1,792,926 1,653,759
Equipment 512,232 409,132 1,663 786 513,895 409,918
Construction in progress 1,320,483 1,126,609 - - 1,320,483 1,126,609

Total netcapital assets $ 5546,741 $ 5018939 $ 17391 $ 16,183 $ 5564,132 $ 5,035,122

REPORTING THE DISTRICT’S BUDGET

The District’s budget is subject to revision and/or veto by the United States Congress and the President of the United States.
As the budget moves through the federal budgetary process, there may be changes in both the amounts and the purposes. In
addition, when the District’s CFO prepares revised revenue estimates, the budget submission must be adjusted to conform to
those revisions. During the Congressional review of the FY2006 budget, the CFO’s revised estimates caused the District to
revise its budget submission, before the budget was finally approved. Both federal and District laws require that the District
present a balanced budget.

General Fund Budget

The original formulation of the general fund budget estimated total revenues and other sources at $5,397,860 and total
expenditures and other uses at $5,396,587. The revised general fund budget resulted in estimated total revenues and other
sources of $5,534,946 and total expenditures and other uses of $5,499,997, representing a projected budgetary surplus of
$34,949. See Table 6, Fiscal Year 2006 — General Fund Budgetary Highlights on page 32 for more details.
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Table 6 - Fiscal Year 2006 General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budget Variance
Original Revised Actual Over(under)
Revenues and Other Sources:
Property taxes $ 12221165 $ 1,163,667 $ 1,207,691 $ 44,024
Other taxes 2,834,729 2,993,207 3,031,259 38,052
Charges for services 313,820 315,226 361,951 46,725
Other sources (O type) 268,009 422,414 375,389 (47,025)
All other sources 759,137 640,432 612,726 (27,706)
Total revenues and other sources 5,397,860 5,534,946 5,589,016 54,070
Expenditures and Other Uses:
Governmental direction and support 340,858 350,238 333,547 (16,691)
Economic development and regulation 328,158 361,724 251,762 (109,962)
Public safety and justice 827,036 903,046 894,748 (8,298)
Public education system 1,189,303 1,120,488 1,101,639 (18,849)
AYO07 public education expenditures - 69,064 69,064 -
Human support services 1,307,530 1,413,855 1,389,575 (24,280)
Public works 366,101 374,077 363,798 (10,279)
Other 1,037,601 907,505 859,721 (47,784)
Total expenditures and other uses 5,396,587 5,499,997 5,263,854 (236,143)
Excess (deficit) -- budgetary basis $ 1,273 $ 34949 $ 325,162 $ 290,213

General Fund Budgetary Highlights — Original to Revised Budget

The adjustments necessary to bring the expenditure budget into agreement with the revised revenue budget account for the
differences between the proposed General Fund budget and the final amended budget. Total estimated revenues were
increased by $137,086 and total estimated expenditures were increased by $103,410. The projected General Fund budgetary
basis surplus was increased from $1,273 to $34,949, as a result of the revisions. The major changes in the budget are
summarized as follows:

Revenues

e  Property taxes were decreased by $(58,498).

e  Other taxes were increased by $158,478.

e  Other sources (O Type) were increased by $154,405.
e All other sources were decreased by $(118,705).

Expenditures

e The advance of Appropriation Year 2007 budget in the amount of $69,064 of public education expenditures, to
ready the public schools for the new school year which began prior to the District’s fiscal year.

e Human support services expenditures were increased by $106,325.

e Public safety and justice expenditures were increased by $76,010.

e  Public education expenditures were decreased by $(68,815).

e  Other, which represents various nonfunctional expenditures on a budgetary basis decreased by $(130,096).

The decrease of $ (58,498) for property taxes was largely the result of real property tax relief measures that were enacted in
FY2006. Two of the largest of these were the increase in the homestead exemption from $38 to $60, and the lowering of the

32 > District of Columbia FY2006 CAFR



Management's Discussion and Analysis Financial Section

tax rate from $0.96 per $100.00 of assessed value to $0.92 per $100.00 of assessed valued. There were also many smaller,
more targeted tax relief measures that were enacted between the time that the original and revised estimates were made.

The estimate for the individual income tax was revised upwards by $127.0 million because of higher than expected growth in
the non-withholding portion of individual income tax which was driven by performance of the stock market.

Corporation franchise and unincorporated business tax were both revised upward by about $24.0 million as the national
economy remained strong and business profitability soared. After the previous two-years of double digit growth in the
business taxes, the original estimate assumed slower growth going forward. However, at the time of the revised estimate, the
business tax growth remained strong and was revised upward.

The deed recordation tax was revised downward by about $20 million because, by the time of the revised estimate, it was
clear that the D.C. real estate market was slowing after several years of double digit growth. Although the volume of sales
for single-family housing was falling, at the time of the original estimates, single-family prices were still growing at double
digit rates; and both the volume of sales and prices for condominiums were still growing at the same pace. By the time of the
revised estimate, the volume of sales for both single-family housing and condominiums were falling and prices were
beginning to level off.

The estimate for interest income was revised upward by $26 million to reflect the unexpected strong growth of that revenue
source. At the time of the original revenue estimate, the expectation of the financial community was that the Federal Reserve
would stop raising short-term interest rates afier a year of rate hikes. Instead, the Federal Reserve continued rate hikes deep
into 2006 that resulted in better than expected growth in interest income.

The $69,064 AY 2007 Advance for Public Education represents the expenditure of the appropriations for AY 2007 in
FY2006. The FY2006 D.C. Appropriations Act requires that the advance appropriations be provided on July 1, 2006, based
on 10% and 25% of the FY2007 Proposed Budgets for the D.C. Public Schools and the D.C. Public Charter Schools,
respectively, When Congress approves the District’s budget for the current fiscal year, it does not know the proposed
funding level for the next fiscal year. As such, the advance appropriations are not included in the District’s Original Budget.
The advance appropriations are not known until July 1, and are then made a part of the District’s Revised Budget.

The $106,325 increase for Human Support Services (HSS) was caused primarily by five items: 1) the Department of Human
Services (DHS) was increased by $37,336; 2) the Department of Health was increased by $27,636; 3) Child and Family
Services was increased by $13,682; 4) the Department of mental Health was increased by $17,031, and 5) the Department of
Youth Rehabilitative Services was increased by $9,301.

The largest increase for HSS was the result of increases for DHS for reprogramming for Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities Administration (MRDDA) program of $10,000, funding for various programs based on additional
certified local revenue of $8,100, a FY2007 Operating Cash Reserve allocation for the MRDDA program of $7,900, the
Fixed Commodity reallocation from other agencies of $2,000, and an allocation for Workforce Investment for pay raises of
$1,450.

The $76,010 increase for Public Safety and Justice was made up almost entirely by the $66,173 increase for the Metropolitan
Police Department. The increase reflects local Workforce Investment allocations to cover pay raises of $37,800, contingency
cash reserve allocations to fund the District’s Crime Initiative of $13,200, Section 103 payments to cover Public Employee
Relation’s Board arbitration awards of $12,800, and Operating Cash Reserve allocation to cover fleet fuel, and an O Type
increase of $1,200 primarily representing a reprogramming from the Office of Unified Communications.

The $(68,815) decrease for Public Education was composed primarily of five items: 1) an increase of $22,101 for the D.C.
Public Schools; 2) a decrease of $(72,209) for Public Charter Schools; 3) an increase of $66,120 for the AY 2007 Public
Charter School Advance; 4) a reduction of $(21,000) for the District of Columbia Education Investment Fund, and; 5) a
reduction of $(12,200) for the Schools Modernization Fund.

Of the $(72,209) decrease for Public Charter Schools, the net decrease reflects reprogramming $(16,900) and the FY2006
budget advanced and expended in FY2005 $(58,400). Partly offsetting these decreases is an allocation from the Public
Charter School Educational Investment fund of $3,110. The advance appropriations for the AY 2007 Public Charter Schools
were not included in the June budget submission to the U.S. Congress. The proposed budget for FY2007, upon which the
advance appropriations is based, was not developed at the time of the current fiscal budget submission to Congress.
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The $(130,096) decrease for “Other” was made up of three major items; 1) a decrease of $(47,731) for the Cash Reserve; 2) a
decrease of $(51,548) for Workforce Investments, and; 3) a decrease for Non-Department of $(33,020). These three items
total $(132,299), which was offset by net $2,203 increase in other items were included under “Other”. The change in the
Cash Reserve was a result of the increase in allocation by the D.C. Council to various agencies to fund spending pressures
and/or policy initiatives. The decrease in the budget for workforce investments reflects $(53,600) in allocations to various
agencies to cover pay raises.

Budget to Actual Revenue Variances

Real property assessments are usually known at the time of the estimate for the current fiscal year. Therefore, the variance of
the actual from the expected for FY2006 was generally due to differences between estimated adjustments to tax assessments
from appeals and the actual results of actual appeals. The positive variance of $44.0 million is due primarily to the appeals
being much lower than expected. The number of appeals was lower than normal because of the large number of real property
tax relief programs that were implemented in FY2006. This suggests that FY2007 will see increased tax assessment appeals
as residential property owners become used to the effects of the FY2006 tax relief programs.

The economic interest tax is paid when owners of real estate assets sell their ownership interests in that asset rather than the
property itself. Revenue from the economic interest tax fluctuates from year to year because most of the revenue from this
tax is generated from activity in the real estate investment trusts (REITs) market which, like financial markets, are inherently
difficult to predict. The $22.3 million increase was likely due to higher than usual activity in the REIT market as the
underlying real estate market changes.

The “Other” revenue category has a positive variance of $29.4 million over the budgeted amount. The growth in
miscellaneous revenues was the result of fluctuations in unclaimed property and end of year adjustments resulting from a
change in estimates relating to expenditure accruals, and had a positive variance of $12.0 million. However, the largest
source of variance in this category is an $18 million end of the year adjustment to account for changes in prior period
expenditure accrual.

Budget to Actual Expenditure Variances

The District had a negative variance of $(236,143) for FY2006. Whenever the District spends less money than was projected
in the budget, it shows up in the budget as a negative, but, in reality it means that the District has more money at the end of
the fiscal year than it would have if it had actually spent everything that was budgeted. If the District collects more money in
revenues than it budgeted, then that money could become part of an operating budget surplus, as long as it is larger than any
actual overspending in the budget. Over the past few years, including FY2006, the District has, in fact, collected both more
revenues and spent less than projected in the revised budget. As a result, the District has ended with an operating budget
surplus for the past ten-years. The largest expenditure variance was for economic development and regulation of $(109,962).

Within economic development and regulation, $(74,000) was caused by the Department of Housing and Community
Development (DHCD), and $(12,300) was caused by Business Services and Economic Development (BSED), DHCD’s
FY2005 to FY2006 variance of $(74,000) was caused primarily by the $(69,000) variance for the Housing Production Trust
Fund (HPTF).

The variance for fiscal charges was due to $(30,804) bond issuance costs for the baseball stadium bonds that were expected to
be paid out of this account, but were not. However, the baseball stadium bonds were redirected and paid for out of the
baseball project special revenue fund, where the transaction was more properly classified, rather than being paid as a general
fund expense.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Short-Term Debt

The District issues short-term debt to finance seasonal cash flow needs. This need occurs due to the timing variance between
receipts of taxes, grants and other revenues and the outflow of funds for governmental operations and other required
disbursements. On December 21, 2006, the District issued fixed-rate Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes in the aggregate
amount of $300,000, These Notes were issued at an interest rate of 4.25% and priced to yield 3.5%, and are to be paid off on
September 28, 2007. By law, the District must repay any short-term debt in its entirety by September 30 of the fiscal year of
issuance.

Long-Term Debt

The proposed FY2007 general obligation debt service budget totals $408.1 million, on total projected long-term debt of
approximately $4 billion. This represents an increase of approximately $37.4 million over the approved FY2006 long-term
debt service budget of $370.7 million. This increase is primarily attributable to debt service on new debt issued in FY2006
and on debt to be issued in FY2007 to finance capital project expenditures. The proposed FY2007 debt service budget
includes debt service on presumed borrowing of approximately $714 million in the first quarter of FY2007. This amount will
support the District’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), which includes two major initiatives (Government Centers and Great
Streets) that were actually approved in the FY2006 capital plan but will not be financed until FY2007, and also includes the
next installment in the plan to reduce the capital fund deficit.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S OFFICE OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

This CAFR is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, vendors, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. For additional
information on the District’s component units: the D.C. Water & Sewer Authority, the Washington Convention Center
Authority, the Sports & Entertainment Commission, the Housing Finance Agency, the University of the District of Columbia,
and the Anacostia Waterfront Corporation, please refer to page 53 of the notes to the basic financial statements for contact
information. If you have any questions about the District’s Fiscal Year 2006 CAFR, suggestions for improvement, or need
additional financial information, please contact:

The Office of the Chief Financial Officer
The John A. Wilson Building

1350 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 209
Washington, D.C. 20004

(202) 727-2476

www.dccfo.com
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include the Government-Wide Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements. These
financial statements present different views of the District.

This section also includes the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detail.
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Exhibit 1-a
District of Columbia
Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals at September 30, 2005)
(3000s)
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Totals Component
Activities Activities 2006 2005 Units
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) $ 363,480 $ 29,345 $ 392,825 $ 593,577 $ 126,589
Investments (unrestricted) 5,000 3,279 8,279 13,847 183,820
Accrued interest receivable, net 108 - 108 66 -
Due from federal government 527,031 - 527,031 485,046 20,113
Taxes receivable, net 274,748 - 274,748 258,672 -
Accounts recetvable, net 135,564 18,304 153,868 132,865 41,322
Other receivables - - - - 21,065
Due from primary government - - - - 20,535
Due from component units 8,536 - 8,536 5.876 -
Due from fiduciary funds - - - 4,071 -
Internal balances 12,708 (12,708) - - -
Inventories 14,623 - 14,623 14,845 7,369
Other current assets 24,246 314 24,560 279 743
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) 2,063,305 380,248 2,443,553 1,630,895 120,738
Investments (restricted) 274,984 54,796 329,780 75,907 935,632
Other long term assets 21,621 4 21,625 16,491 35,047
Notes and loans receivable, net - - - - 426,447
Deferred charges 85,180 - 85,180 4,770 -
Depreciable capital assets, net 4,006,320 16,127 4,022,447 3,687,245 2,880,222
Non-depreciable capital assets 1,540,421 1,264 1,541,685 1,347,877 149,112
Total assets 9,357,875 490.973 9,848,848 8,272,329 4,968,754
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 584,426 32,353 616,779 615,867 110,534
Compensation payable 146,236 1,714 147,950 107,593 18,662
Due to primary government - - - - 8,536
Due to component units 20,535 - 20,535 26,753 -
Due to fiduciary funds 2,809 - 2,809 930 -
Unearned revenues 217,484 184 217,668 188,911 40,125
Accrued liabilities 191,629 9,809 201,438 204,669 29,914
Accrued interest payable 60,506 - 60,506 50,394 -
Other current liabilities 35,581 - 35,581 31,025 131,730
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 371,975 8,631 380,606 346,201 52,590
Due in more than one year 5,612,668 43,953 5,656,621 4,575,278 3,106,600
Total liabilities 7,243,849 96,644 7,340,493 6,147,621 3,498,691
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 958,597 17,391 975,988 1,085,914 1,055,729
Restricted for:
Expendable
Debt service 262,640 - 262,640 253,548 -
Benefit payments - 347,938 347,938 322,893 -
Capital projects 36,597 - 36,597 65,799 -
Grants and contributions 161,310 - 161,310 115,052 -
Emergency reserves 293,649 - 293,649 253,437 -
Other 233,454 - 233,454 242,185 172,557
Nonexpendable - - - - 7,242
Unrestricted 167,779 29,000 196,779 (214,120) 234,535
Total net assets $ 2,114,026 $ 394329 § 2508355 § 2124708 § 1,470,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit 2-a
District of Columbia
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals at September 30, 2005)
(S000s)
Federal General Basehall Nonmajor Total
& Private Capital Capital Governmental Governmental Funds
General Resources Improvements Project Funds 2006 2005
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) 3 362,193 $ - 3 - 8 - $ 1,287 § 363,480 $ 580,546
Investments (unrestricted) 5,000 - - - - 5,000 6,592
Accrued interest receivable - - - - 108 108 66
Due from federal government 9,966 470,316 46,749 - - 527,031 484,397
Taxes receivable, net 274,748 - - - - 274,748 258,672
Accounts receivable, net 96,696 6,107 1,941 - 30,820 135,564 113,750
Due from component units 4,762 - 1,561 1,723 490 8,536 5876
Due from other funds 645,351 13,278 4,649 - 11,881 675,159 901,720
Inventories 9,640 4,983 - - - 14,623 14,476
Other current assets 2,612 - 21,418 89 127 24,246 -
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) 783,705 18,301 597,091 529514 134,694 2,063,305 1,271,038
Invesiments (restricted) 28,782 - 246,202 - - 274,984 -
Other long term assets 8,177 13,444 - - - 21,621 16,450
Total assets $ 2,231,632 § 526,429 $ 919611 § 531,326 § 179,407 § 4,388,405 § 3,653,583
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 400,617 85,994 90,090 45 7,680 584,426 589,208
Compensation payable 133,113 11,023 1,967 - 133 146,236 107,127
Due to other funds 11,668 72,541 374,813 202,700 3,538 665,260 875,617
Due to compenent units 20,535 - - - - 20,535 26,753
Deferred revenue 109,983 114,446 30,468 - 219 255,116 218,877
Accrued liabilities 113,047 78,514 - - 68 191,629 196,019
Other current liabihties 7,527 2,601 25,453 - - 35,581 31,019
Total liabilities 796,490 365,119 522,791 202,745 11,638 1,898,783 2,044,620
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
General fund purposes 1,045,560 - - - - 1,045,560 1,110,770
Special revenue funds purposes - 161,310 - - 160,568 321,878 24991
Capital project purposes } - - 396,820 328,581 7,201 732,602 86,530
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund 389,582 - - - - 389,582 473,913
Capital projects funds - - - « - - (312,161)
Total fund balances 1,435,142 161,310 396,820 328,581 167,769 2,489,622 1,608,963
Total Liabilities and fund balances 3 2,231,632 § 526429 § 919611 § 531,326 § 179,407 3 3,653,583
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the slatement of
net assets (Exhibit 1a} are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 5,546,741
Certain long lerm assets are not available to pay current period expenditures and are
therefore deferred in the funds 37,632
Adjustment for deferred charges 85,180
Certain liabilities (such as bonds payable and accrued expenses) are not due and
payable tn the current period
General obligation bonds 3,773,863
Tobacco settlement bonds 742,284
TIF bonds & notes 124,302
QZAB 5,221
Accrued interest payable 60,506
Capital leases 67,942
Other long-term liabilities 1,271,031
(6,045,149)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 2,114,026

The accompanying noies are an integral part of this statement.
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Basic Financial Statements Financial Section

Exhibit 2-b
District of Columbia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bal
Governmental Funds
For the Year Fnded September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2005)
($000s)
Federal General Baseball N j Total
& Private Capital Capital Governmental Governmental Funds
General Resources Improvements Project Funds 2006 2008

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property taxes 3 1,241,482 § I 3 - % - $ - $ 1241482 §$ 1,148,333

Sales and use taxes 970,885 - - - - 970.885 957,394

Income and franchise taxes 1,591,483 - - - - 1,591,483 1,472,432

Gross receipts taxes 278,453 - - - - 278,453 295,819

Other taxes 390,542 - - - - 390,542 377,213
Fines and forfeitures 112,919 - - - - 112,919 111,146
Licenses and permits 81,222 - - - - 81,222 82,093
Charges for services 131,079 194 - - - 131,273 133,923
Investment eamings 63,655 1,073 936 407 7,135 73,206 39,811
Miscellaneous 290,352 55,327 91,461 2,146 49,781 489,067 311,573
Federal contributions - 353,709 8,366 - - 362,075 382,966
Operating grants - 1,801,326 111,349 - - 1,912,675 1,828,461

Total revenues 5,152,072 2,211,629 212,112 2,553 56,916 7,635,282 7,141,164

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Govemmental direction and support 499,289 182,173 - - 158 611,620 590,344

Economic development and regulation 218210 129,881 - - - 348,091 267,335

Public safety and justice 896,460 237,340 - - - 1,133,800 1,034,456

Public education system 1,177,362 262,148 - - - 1,439,510 1,340,767

Human support service 1,532,296 1,420,34) - - - 2,952,637 2,657,848

Public works 176,027 7,068 - - 1,105 184,200 175,300

Public transportation 187,615 - - - - 187.615 167,783
Debt service:

Principal 193,715 - - - 11,939 205,654 183,845

Interest 181,590 - - - 43,605 225,195 202,387

Fiscal charges 18,514 - - - 13,444 31,958 9.277
Capital outlay - - 652,198 203,486 45,520 901,204 615,089

Total expenditures 5,081,078 2,168,951 652,198 203,486 115,771 8,221,484 7,244,431

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 70,994 42,678 (440,086) (200,933) (58,855) (586,202) (103,267)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Debt issuance 133,937 - 528,090 529,514 267,546 1,459,087 386,370

Premium on sale of bonds 18,232 - 13,398 - 8,314 39,944 14,478

Proceeds from bond escrow restructuring - - - - - - 89

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (117,925) - - - - (117,925) -

Other charges (4,216) - - - (13,996) (18,212) -

Proceeds from capital lease - - - - - - 19

Equipment financing program - - 30,167 - - 30,167 15,036

Transfers in 91,675 685 511,613 - 81,233 685,206 193,439

Transfers out (342,238) - - - (269,168) (611,406) (121,989)
Total other financing sources (uses) (220,535) 685 1,083,268 529,514 73,929 1,466,861 487,442
Net change in fund balances (149,541) 43,363 643,182 328,581 15,074 880,659 384,175
Fund balances (deficit) at October | 1,584,683 117,947 (246,362) - 152,695 1,608,963 1,224,788
Fund balances at September 30 $ 1,435,142 § 161,310 § 396,820 $ 328581 § 167,769 $ 2,489,622 § 1,608,963

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit 2-¢
District of Columbia
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 880,659

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period. 527,803

Deferred property tax revenues which were earned but whose current financial resources are not available

for the purpose of recognition in the governmental funds were recognized in the government-wide

financial statements. This is the amount deferred property taxes increased in the governmental funds

between 2005 and 2006. 7.216

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-

term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is

the amount by which bond proceeds exceeded repayments. (1,117,206)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the amount that other long
term liabilities decreased in the current period. 64,890

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 363,362

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,
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Financial Section

Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit 3-a

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted)
[nvestments (unrestricted)
Due from federal government
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other funds
Inventories
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted)
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Investments (restricted)
Capital assets, net
Other

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities
Long term liabilities due within one year
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Long term liabilities due in more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets
Restricted - expendable

Unrestricted

Total net assets

$

District of Columbia
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals at September 30, 2005)
(5000s)
Nonmajor Totals
Lottery and Unemployment Proprictary
Games Compensation Fund 2006 2005
11410 $ - 8 17,935 § 29345 § 13,031
- - 3,279 3279 7,255
- - - - 649
5,094 8,765 4,445 18,304 19,115
- 766 155 Rl 1,124
i _ . - 369
9 - 305 314 279
- 380,248 - 380,248 359,857
16,513 389,779 26,119 432411 401,679
52,584 - 2,212 54,796 75,907
382 - 17,009 17,391 16,183
- - 4 4 41
52,966 - 19,225 72,191 92,131
69,479 389,779 45,344 504,602 493,810
2,754 28,212 1,387 32,353 26,659
458 - 1,256 1,714 466
- 13,629 - 13,629 24,086
184 - . 184 450
9,798 - 11 9,809 8,650
- - - - 6
8,631 - - 8,631 8,631
21,825 41,841 2,654 66,320 68,948
43,953 - - 43,953 50,818
43,953 - - 43,953 50,818
65,778 41,841 2,654 110,273 119,766
382 - 17,009 17,391 16,183
- 347,938 - 347,938 322,893
3,319 - 25,681 29,000 34,968
3,701 $ 347938 % 42690 $ 394329 % 374,044

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.
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Basic Financial Statements Financial Section

Exhibit 3-b
District of Columbia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2005)
($000s)
Nonmajor
Lottery and Unemployment Proprietary Totals
Games Compensation Fund 2006 2005
Operating revenues:
Employer taxes - 8 95,888 - $ 95,888 % 92,985
Charges for services 266,391 - 29,154 295,545 267,115
Benefit contributions
Benefit contributions - 14,825 - 14,825 16,695
Miscellaneous - - 710 710 680
Total operating revenues 266,391 110,713 29,864 406,968 377,475
Operating expenses:
Benefits - 102,749 ~ 102,749 92,728
Prizes 168,470 - - 168,470 139,904
Personnel services 10,638 - 5,417 16,055 14,915
Contractual services 14,410 - 20,963 35,373 38,171
Materials and supplies - - 5416 5,416 717
QOccupancy - - - - 1,804
Depreciation 389 - 1,969 2,358 2,363
Miscellaneous - - 1,783 1,783 1,258
Total operating expenses 193,907 102,749 35,548 332,204 291,860
Operating income (loss) 72,484 7,964 (5,684) 74,764 85,615
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest and investment revenue 1,375 17,081 865 19,321 18,887
Intergovernmental - - - - 12
Total nonoperating revenue 1,375 17,081 865 19,321 18,899
Income (loss) before transfers 73,859 25,045 (4,819) 94,085 104,514
Transfers out (73,800) - - (73,800) (71,450)
Change in net assets 59 25,045 (4,819) 20,285 33,064
Total net assets at October 1 3,642 322,893 47,509 374,044 340,980
Total net assets at September 30 3,701 § 347,938 42,690 §$ 394,329 § 374,044

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Financial Section Basic Financial Statements

Exhibit 3-c
District of Columbia
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2005)

($000s)
Nonmajor
Lottery and  Unemployment Proprietary Totals
Games Compensation Fund 2006 2005
Operating activities:

Cash receipts from customers/employers $ 265,625 $ 111,569 $ 28,637 $§ 405,831 § 385,106

Other cash receipts 188 - 728 916 2,145

Cash payments to vendors (23,820) - (31,815) (55,635) (55,621)

Cash payments to employees/claimants (5,545) (108,259) - (113,804) (104,970)

Other cash payments, including prizes (160,838) - 57 (160,781) (135,311)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 75,610 3,310 (2,393) 76,527 91,349
Noncapital financing activities:

Intergovernmental grants - - - - 12

Interfund transfers out (73,800) - - (73,800) (71,450)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (73,800) - - (73,800) (71,438)
Capital and related financing activities:

Acquisitions of capital assets - - (3,565) (3,565) (618)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities - - (3,565) (3,565) (618)
Investing activities:

Receipts of interest and dividends 1,375 17,081 865 19,321 18,888

Sales/(purchases) of investments - - 18,222 18,222 (11,582)
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,375 17,081 19,087 37,543 7,306
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,185 20,391 13,129 36,705 26,599
Cash and cash equivalents at October 1 8,225 359,857 4,806 372,888 346,289
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30 $ 11,410 § 380,248 § 17,935 $ 409,593 § 372,888
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 72,484 § 7,964 $ (5,684) $ 74,764 $ 85,615

Depreciation 389 - 1,969 2,358 2,363

Decrease (increase) in assets:

Accounts receivable (311 857 617 1,163 11,064
Inventories 369 - - 369 116
Other current assets 12 - 99 111 153
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 536 (5,505) 721 (4,248) (7,202)
Accrued liabilities 2,381 - (115) 2,266 (860)
Deferred revenue (266) - - (266) 144
Other current liabilities 16 (6) - 10 (44)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: $ 75,610 $ 3310 § (2,393) $ 76,527 $ 91,349

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4-a
District of Columbia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2006
($000s)
Private
Purpose
Pension Trust Agency
Trust Funds Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted $ 147,585 § - § 279,095
Investments - restricted:
Equities 2,861,447 72,495 -
Fixed income securities 608,009 - -
Cash collateral for securities lending transactions 428,228 - -
Interest and dividends receivables - 33 -
Accounts receivable - 23 -
Benefit contribution receivables 2,585 - -
Due from other funds 170 - 2,639
Other receivables - - 523
Capital assets 81 - -
Total assets 4,048,105 72,551 § 282,257
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 30,527 32 152,554
Securities lending collateral 428,228 - -
Other current liabilities - 9 129,703
Total liabilities 458,755 41 3 282,257
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes $ 3,589,350 § 72,510

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4-b
District of Columbia
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)
Private
Pension Purpose
Trust Trust
Funds Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 133,000 -
Plan members 50,949 20,311
Total contributions 183,949 20,311
Investment earnings:
From investment activities
Net increase in fair value of investments 234,259 3,946
Interest and dividends 107,836 1,139
Total investment earnings 342,095 5,085
Less - investment expenses (10,828) (813)
Net income from investing activities 331,267 4,272
From securities lending activities
Securities lending income 20,164 -
Less: securities lending expenses (19,228) -
Net income from securities lending activities 936 -
Net investment earnings 332,203 4,272
Total additions 516,152 24,583
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 39,588 -
Administrative expenses 2,827 199
Distributions to participants - 3,374
Total deductions 42,415 3,573
Change in net assets 473,737 21,010
Net assets at October 1 3,115,613 51,500
Net assets at September 30 $ 3,589,350 72,510
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 5-a
District of Columbia
Discretely Presented Component Units
Combining Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals at September 30, 2005)
(8000s)
‘Water and Convention Sports Housing Univer- Anacostia Totals
Sewer Center Commission Finance sity Waterfront 2006 2005
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash cquivalents (unrestnicted) $ 44980 § 14849 § 8027 § 19939 § 30405 $ 3389 $ 126,589  § 135,629
Investments (unrestricted) 146,978 36,406 436 - - - 183,820 85,690
Receivables. net:
Accounts 33,693 937 749 - 5,943 - 41,322 42.239
Other 9,987 336 - 6,613 4,129 - 21,065 17619
Dug from federal government 20,113 ~ - - - - 20,113 19,301
Due from primary government 9119 6,832 - - 4,344 240 20,535 26,753
Inventories 7,369 - - - - - 7,369 7,097
Other current assets 232 12 266 - 161 72 743 1,821
Restricted cash 83,479 - 14,534 22,725 - - 120,738 242,073
Restricted investments 48,834 62,820 4,665 784,931 34,382 - 935,632 808,807
Total current assets 404,784 122,192 28,677 834,208 79,364 8,701 1,477,926 1,387,029
Noncurrent assets:
Loans rgeeivable - - - 426,250 197 - 426,447 370,852
Other 7,998 7833 . 19,216 - - 35,047 56,547
Total long term assets 7,998 7.833 - 445,466 197 - 461,494 427,399
Capital assets, net
Property and cquipment 2.043.522 741,798 26,892 2,493 65.374 143 2,880.222 2719812
Non-depreciable capital assets 149,132 - - - - - 149112 147,978
Total assets 2,605416 871,823 55,569 1,282,167 144,935 8,844 4,968,754 4,682,218
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Payables:
Accounts 79020 7,039 14,704 944 7,300 1427 110534 91,131
Compensation 7.726 326 309 302 9,999 - 18,662 18,494
Due to pnmary govemment 1192 - 5,780 - 1,561 3 8.536 5876
Accrued liabilitics 12,312 12,226 1,878 - 3212 286 29914 31419
Deferred revenue 24,766 2,672 130 5,612 6,395 500 40,125 37438
Current maturities 7,555 11,720 - 33,315 - - 52,590 28,600
Other current liabilities 6,916 31,219 - 80,195 13,378 22 131.730 70,527
Total current liabilities 139,587 65,202 22,851 120,368 41,345 2,238 352.00] 283 486
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long term debt:
Bonds pavable 763,987 475,509 - 1,070,467 - - 2,309,963 2,239,936
Other long-term liabilities 21,828 27,151 - 1,989 - 13 50,986 42,899
Refundable advances - - - - 455 - 455 563
Deferred revenue 745,196 - - - - - 745,196 716,896
Total long term habilities 1,531,011 502,660 - 1,072,456 455 18 3.106,600 3,000,294
Total liabilities 1,670,598 567,862 22,851 1,192,824 42,300 2,256 3,498,691 3,283,780
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 749,965 212542 26,892 853 65,374 103 1,055,729 1,035,966
Restricted - expendable 44,388 62.820 4.371 59981 297 - 172,557 168,801
Restricted - nonexpendable - - - - 7,242 - 7,242 7242
Unrestricted 139,965 28.599 1255 28,509 29,722 6,485 234,535 186,429
Total net assets $ 934,818 § 303,961 $ 2,n8 3 89,343 § 102,635 $ 6588 § 1470063 $ 1,398,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this siatement.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

(Dollar amounts expressed in thousands)

ING POLICIES

A. BACKGROUND AND HISTORY OF
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

General Operations

The District of Columbia (District) was created on March
30, 1791 and became the nation's capital on December I,
1800, in accordance with Article 1, section 8, clause 17 of
the United States Constitution, This portion of the
Constitution empowered Congress to establish the seat of
government for the United States. On January 2, 1975,
Congress granted the District a Home Rule Charter,
which became effective through the enactment of the
District of Columbia Self-Government and Governmental
Reorganization Act, Public Law 93-198.

The District is a municipal corporation, which operates
under an elected Mayor-Council form of government.
Accordingly, an Act of the Council, other than a budget
request act, becomes law unless Congress and the
President disapprove it after it has been adopted. Citizens
of the District have the right to vote for the President and
Vice-President of the United States but not for members
of Congress. The District does, however, have an elected
nonvoting Delegate to the United States House of
Representatives.

Due to its unique organizational structure (i.e., not a part
of any other state government), the District provides a
broad range of services to its residents, including those
normally provided by a state. These services include
public safety and protection, fire and emergency medical
services, human support and welfare services, public
education and many others.

B. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

A financial reporting entity consists of a primary
government and 1ts component units. The primary
government 1s the District of Columbia, including all of
the agencies that make up its legal entity. The criteria
used to determine if organizations are to be included as
component units within the District's reporting entity are
as follows:

o The District holds the corporate powers of the
organization.

e The District appoints a voting majority of the
organization's board.

e The District is able to impose its will on the
organization.

e The organization has the potential to impose a
financial burden on, or provide financial benefit to
the District.

e The organization is fiscally dependent on the District.

e It would be misleading to exclude the organization
from the District’s financial statements.

Based on the application of the aforementioned criteria,
the District’s financial statements include six discretely
presented component units: Water and Sewer Authority,
Washington Convention Center, Sports and Entertainment
Commission, Housing Finance Agency, the Anacostia
Waterfront Corporation and the University of the District
of Columbia. These organizations are presented in a
separate column to emphasize that they are legally
separate from the District.

The Mayor, with the consent of the Council, appoints the
governing bodies of all component units. The District has
an obligation to provide financial support to the Housing
Finance Agency and the University of the District of
Columbia. In addition, the District must approve certain
transactions of the Anacostia Waterfront Corporation, the
Washington Convention Center and certain tax revenues
are dedicated to these two organizations. The Water and
Sewer Authority is responsible for the payment of certain
District long-term debt, issued before that entity’s
creation, to finance capital improvements for its
predecessor agency. For thal reason, in conjunction with
the fact that the Water and Sewer Authority is an
mndependent authority under 1ts enabling legislation, this
entity 1s included as a component unit of the District of
Columbia.

Information on how to obtain a complete set of financial
statements for each discretely presented component unit
can be obtained at the following locations:

52 3 District of Columbia
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Washington Convention Center Authority
General Manager

801 Mount Vernon Place, N.-W.

Washington, D. C. 20001

Housing Finance Agency
Executive Director

815 Florida Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D. C. 20001

Sports and Entertainment Commission
General Manager

2001 East Capitol Street, S.E.
Washington, D. C. 20003

The District established the District of Columbia Tobacco
Settlement  Financing Corporation (the “Tobacco
Corporation”) as a special purpose, independent
instrumentality of the District government. The Tobacco
Corporation i1s a blended component unit because it
provides services exclusively to the District. The District
also appoints all members of the governing body of the
Tobacco Corporation. The members have the ability to
modify or approve the budget of the organization,
appoint, hire, reassign, or dismiss those persons
responsible for the day-to-day operations (management)
of the organization, and thus the District is able to impose
its will.

Separate audited financial statements for the Tobacco
Corporation are available from the Office of the Chief
Financial Officer, 1275 K Street, N'W., Sixth floor
Washington, D.C. 20005.

C. RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

A related organization is one for which the primary
government is accountable but not financially
accountable. The District of Columbia Housing
Authority, the National Capital Revitalization
Corporation, and the District of Columbia Courts are
related organizations because the District is not
financially accountable for them. Although the Mayor
appoints a voting majority of the goveming boards of
these organizations (except for the Courts), the District’s
accountability for the organizations does not extend
beyond such appointments. The Mayor does not appoint
the members of the Courts’ Joint Committce on Judicial
Administration; however the Courts are considered a
related organization because it provides the judicial

University of the District of Columbia
President

Van Ness Campus

4200 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D. C. 20008

Water and Sewer Authority
General Manager

5000 Overlook Avenue, S.W.
Washington, D. C. 20032

Anacostia Waterfront Corporation
Chief Financial Officer

1100 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.

Suite 700

Washington, D.C. 20003

services normally associated with municipal and state
governments for the District.

D. JOINT VENTURE

The District is a participant with other local jurisdictions
in a joint venture to plan, construct, finance and operate a
public transit system serving the Metropolitan
Washington Area Transit Zone, which includes the
District of Columbia; the cities of Alexandria, Falls
Church, Fairfax, Manassas and Manassas Park and the
counties of Arlington, Fairfax, Loudoun and Prince
William in Virginia and Montgomery, Anne Arundel and
Prince George’s in  Maryland. The Washington
Metropolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA) was
created in February 1967 for that purpose. WMATA 1s
governed by a six member Board and six alternates,
comprised of two Directors and two alternates each from
Maryland, Virginia and the District of Columbia. The
Directors and alternates for Virginia are appointed by the
Northern Virginia Transportation Commission from
among its members; for the District of Columbia, by the
Council from its members and mayoral nominees; and for
Maryland, by the Washington Suburban Transit
Commission from among its members. Further
information regarding this joint venture 1s discussed in
Note 11 on page 92.

E. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide  Financial ~ Statements —  The
government-wide financial statements report information
on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. Since by defimition,

FY2006 CAFR
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assets of fiduciary funds are held for the benefit of a third
party and cannot be used to address activities or
obligations of the District, these funds are not
incorporated into the government-wide statements.
Governmental activities of the primary government,
which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support. The government-wide
statements are comprised of the following:

e Statement of Net Assets — The Statement of Net
Assets displays the financial position of the District
(governmental and business-type activities) and it’s
discretely presented component units. The District
reports all capital assets, including infrastructure, in
the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. The
net assets of a government is broken into these three
categories — 1) invested in capital assets, net of
related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted.

o Statement of Activities — The Statement of Activities
demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment is offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include fines and forfeitures,
charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment,
and grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment.  Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues
are reported as general revenues. The District also
reports depreciation expense, the cost of “using up”
capital assets 1n the Statement of Activities.

Fund Financial Statements - Fund accounting is used to
demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial
management by segregating transactions related to certain
District functions or activities. Each fund 1s considered to
be a separate accounting entity and the transactions in
cach are summarized by providing a separate set of self-
balancing accounts which include its assets, liabilities,
fund equity, revenues and expenses/expenditures.

Separate  financial statements are provided for
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though fiduciary funds are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
arc reported in separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Governmental Funds are used to account for all of the
District's general activities. The acquisition, use and
balances of the District's expendable financial resources
and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in
the Proprietary Funds and the discretely presented
component units) are accounted for in the Governmental
Funds. The District reports the following major
governmental funds:

e General Fund, uvsed to account for all financial
resources not accounted for in other funds.

e Federal and Private Resources Fund, used to account
for proceeds of intergovernmental grants and other
federal payments and private grants that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

*  General Capital Improvements Fund, used to account
for the purchase or construction of capital assets
financed by operating transfers, capital grants or debt
proceeds.

*  Baseball Project Capital Fund, used to account for
the construction of a new baseball stadium.

Non-Major Governmental Funds include three Special
Revenue Funds: (1) Tax Increment Financing (TIF)
Program Fund (2) Tobacco Settlement Financing
Corporation (TSFC) Fund and (3) Baseball Project Fund.
The funds also include Highway Trust Fund, and a Debt
Service Fund.

Proprietary Funds are used to account for activities
similar to those found in the private sector where the costs
(including depreciation) of providing goods or services
primarily or solely to the public on a continuing basis are,
financed or recovered primarily through user charges, and
the determination of net income is necessary or useful for
sound financial administration. The District operates only
one type of proprietary fund which is an enterprise fund.
The District has two major enterprise funds, which are
discussed below:

o Lottery and Games Fund - Used to account for
revenues from lotteries and daily numbers games
operated by the District and from licenses to conduct
bingo games and raflles, and related prizes, expenses
and capital outlays. Gaming activities are
admnistered by the Lottery and Charitable Games
Control Board consisting of five members appointed
by the Mayor with the consent of the Council.

o Unemployment Compensation Fund - Used to
account for the accumulation of financial resources to
be used for benefit payments to unemployed former

34 A District of Columbia

Y2006 CAFR



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Financial Section

ING POLICIES

employees of the District and federal government and
of private employers in the District. Resources are
contributed by private employers at rates fixed by
law, and by the District and federal government on a
reimbursable basis. The administrative costs of the
program are accounted for in the General Fund.

Non-Major Proprietary Fund is used to account for the
operations of the Washington Center for Aging Services,
the Washington Center for Aging Services Center Care,
and JB Johnson Nursing Center.

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by
the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations and other governments.
The District reports the following fiduciary funds:

®  Pension Trust Funds report the activities of the
District’s retirement system, which accumulates
financial resources for pension benefit payments
to qualified District’s employees.

*  Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to report any
trust arrangement not reported in pension trust
funds “under which principal and income benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.” The District offers a tax-
advantaged 529 College Savings Investment Plan
(named after Section 529 of the Internal Revenue
Code). The Plan is designed to help families save
for the higher education expenses of designated
beneficiaries and is available to DC residents as
well as non-residents nationwide.

e Agency Funds report those resources held by the
District in a purely custodial capacity (assets
equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations.

Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide
financial statements since the resources cannot be used for
operations of the government.

F. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured;
basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements. Thus, the accounting
and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund or
activity is determined by its measurement focus.

Measurement Focus

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of
current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. With this
measurement focus, generally, only current assets and
current liabilities are included in the balance sheet. The
operating statements of these funds present increases
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
(expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets.

The proprietary funds, pension and private purpose trust
funds, discretely presented component units, and the
government-wide financial statements are accounted for
on a flow of economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement
focus, all assets and all liabilities are included on the
statement of net assets. Net assets of the government-
wide and proprictary funds are segregated into capital
assets, net of related debt, restricted and unrestricted
components. The related operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net
assets.  Operating statements of pension and private
purpose trust funds present additions and deductions in
fiduciary net assets.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial
reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, are generally
followed in both the government-wide and enterprise
funds financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The District also has the option of following private-
sector guidance issued after November 30, 1989 for its
business-type activities and enterprise funds and
component units. As allowed by GASB Statement No.
20, the Dastrict has elected to follow only those Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB)
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB),
issued prior to December 1, 1989,

The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and
cxpenses from nonoperating revenucs and cxpenses.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and debivering goods in
connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing
operations.
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Basis of Accounting

The District’s financial statements are prepared 1n
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to governmental entities (GAAP) as
established by GASB.

All governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual (that is when they become both measurable and
available). "Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available" means
collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current
period. Property taxes are considered available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. A one-year
availability period is used for revenue recognition for all
other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.
GASB Interpretation No. 6 (GASBI 6) requires that
expenditures and liabilities such as debt service,
compensated absences, claims and judgments, and special
termination benefits be recorded in the governmental fund
statements only when they mature or become due for
payment within the period. However, such activity is
recorded in the government-wide financial statements as
incurred.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, federal
contributions and grants, charges for services and
mvestment income. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the tax year for which they are levied,
provided they are available. Real property taxes are levied
as of October 1 on property values assessed as of the
preceding January 1. The tax levy is due and collectible
in two equal installments on March 31 and September 15.
After these dates, the bill becomes delinquent and the
District may assess penalties and interest. Real property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
October | of the year after levy. Sales and use taxes are
recognized as revenue when the sales or uses take place.
Interest on investments is recognized when eamed.
Charges for services are recorded as revenues and
services are provided.

In the District, the personal property tax is self-assessed.
The District requires a personal property tax return for the
tax year beginning July 1 - June 30 each year to be filed
on or before July 31 of that tax year. The return should
report the remaining cost (current value) of all tangible
personal property that has taxable sites in the District of
Columbia as of July 1. The property taxes become levied
once the returns are filed. However, the District does not
have a legal claim to a provider’s resources that is
cnforceable through the eventual seizure of the property

until after July 31 if the taxpayer fails to pay the property
tax when due. The revenue budget for the Personal
Property Tax is formulated with the understanding that
25% of collections are to be allocated to the current fiscal
year, while the remaining 75% are to be allocated to the
immediate subsequent fiscal year.

Intergovernmental revenues are amounts derived through
agreements with other governments. In general, these
revenues are comprised of contributions and grants made
by the Federal government to the District. Contributions
are recognized as revenue when received. Generally,
entitlements and shared revenues are recognized as
revenue when received or earlier, if measurable and
available. Resources arising from grants are usually
subject to certain eligibility requirements; therefore, most
grant revenues are recognized as revenue only when the
conditions of the grant are met. Grant funds received
before all eligibility requirements are met are recorded as
deferred revenue.

Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures are not
considered susceptible to accrual because they are not
both measurable and available to finance expenditures of
the current period. Licenses and permits and fines and
forfeitures are recorded as revenue when received in cash
because they are generally not measurable until received.

The government-wide financial statements, proprietary
funds, and pension and private purpose trust funds use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time the liabilities are incwrred. The pension trust
funds recognize additions to net assets from participants’
contributions when due, District contributions when due
and a formal commitment for payment has been made, net
investment income as earned, and expenditures for
benefits and refunds when due and payable. The private
purpose trust fund recognizes additions to net assets when
participants’ contributions are received.

Food Stamps

The District participates in the federal government’s food
stamp program, which is designed to increase the food
purchasing power of economically disadvantaged
residents. The District mainly uses the Electronic Benefits
Transfer (EBT) system that allows program beneficiaries
to charge their qualifying food purchases, thereby
eliminating the need for paper stamps. Thus, revenues
and expenditures are reported in the federal and private
resources fund when the underlying transaction (the food
purchase) occurs.
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G. BASIS OF BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY
CONTROL POLICIES

Process

About March 20 of each year, the Mayor submits to the
Council an all sources budget for the General Operating
Fund, for the fiscal year commencing the following
October 1. The Council holds public hearings and adopts
the budget through passage of a budget request act. The
Mayor may not forward and the Council may not adopt
any budget for which expenditures and other financing
uses exceed revenues and other financing sources. A
project-length financial plan is adopted for the General
Capital Improvements Fund. About June 1 of each year,
the Mayor approves the adopted budget and forwards it to
the President of the United States for review. Early in
June of each year, the President submits the reviewed
budget to Congress which conducts public hearings and
enacts the budget through passage of an appropriation
bill.

Appropriations Act

The legally adopted budget is the annual appropriation
public law (Appropriations Act) enacted by Congress and
signed by the President.  The Appropriations Act
authorizes expenditures at the function level or by
appropriation title, such as Public Safety and Justice,
Human Support Services or Public Education. Congress
must enact a revision that alters the total expenditures of
any function. The District may request a revision to the
appropriated expenditure amounts in the Appropriations
Act by submitting to the President and Congress a request
for a supplemental appropriation.

Pursuant to the Reprogramming Policy Act (D. C. Official
Code 47-363(2001), as amended), the District may
reallocate budget amounts within appropriation title. The
appropriated budget amounts in the Budgetary
Comparison Statement include all approved reallocations.
This statement reflects budget to actual comparisons at
the function level (or appropriation title). Appropriated
actval expenditures and uses may not legally exceed
appropriated budgeted expenditures and uses at the
function level as shown on this statement. A negative
expenditure vanance in the budgetary comparison
statement for a particular function 1s a violation of the
Anti-Deficiency Act (31 U.S.C. 1341, 1342, 1349, 1351)
and the District of Columbia Anti-Deficiency Act (D.C.
Official Code 47-355.01-355.08, 2001). Also, a violation
of the D.C. Anu-Deficiency Act exists if there is a
negative expenditure variance for a particular purpose or
object of expenditure within an appropriation.

The Appropriations Act specifies expenditures and net
surplus or deficit of revenues. The Appropriations Act
does not specify revenue amounts. The legally adopted
revenue budget is based primarily on the revenue
estimates submitted to the President and Congress as
modified through legislation.

By law, the budgetary general fund includes both the
general fund and the federal and private resources fund
presented in Exhibit 2-b. Additionally, the budgetary
basis of accounting used to prepare the budgetary
comparison statement presented in Exhibit 2-d differs
from the GAAP ~ basis general fund and federal and
private resources fund due to other basis and entity
differences, as follows:

e Basis Differences - These are differences that arise
because the basis of budgeting differs from the basis
of accounting prescribed by GAAP as indicated in
Note |W on page 64.

e Entity Differences - This basis relates to inclusion or
exclusion of certain activities for budgetary purposes
as opposed to those included or excluded on a GAAP
basis as indicated in Note |W on page 64.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of
funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the
appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds.
Encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities for GAAP or budgetary
purposes. All encumbrances lapse in the General Fund at
year end, and may automatically be re-appropriated and
re-encumbered as part of the subsequent year’s budget.

H. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash

Cash from the governmental and proprietary funds and
certain component units is pooled unless prohibited by
law. The cash management pool is considered to be cash
because it is used as a demand deposit account by each
participating fund and component unit. 1f a fund
overdraws its share of the pooled cash, that fund reports a
liability to the general fund, which s deemed to have
loaned the cash to the overdrawn fund. The general fund
reports a receivable from the overdrawn fund.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
mature in such a short period of time that their values are
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effectively immune from changes in interest rates. The
District’s cash management pool is considered a cash
equivalent. For an investment to be considered a cash
equivalent, 1t must mature no more than three months
after the date it is purchased.

Investments

Any cash that is not needed for immediate disbursement
is used to purchase investments. The District purchases
legally authorized investments consistent with the
provisions of the "Financial Institutions Deposit and
Investment Amendment Act of 1997" (D.C. Law 12-56),
which became effective March 18, 1998. At September
30, 2006 the District has invested primarily in
investments backed by U.S. government agencies'
securities, with the implicit guarantee of the federal
government. Such investments are considered to be the
equivalents of cash. The Pension Trust Funds are
authorized to invest in fixed income, equity securities and
other types of investments. Also, the Private Purpose
Trust Fund is authorized to invest in eight portfolios
which are comprised of equities, balanced fund, and fixed
income securities.

Money market investments that bave a remaining
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are
reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.
Other investments are reported at fair value. Securitics
traded on a national or international exchange are valued
at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.
Asset-backed securities are valued on the basis of future
principal and interest payments and are discounted at
prevailing interest rates for similar investments.
Investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
trade date. These transactions are not finalized until the
settlement date. Cash received as collateral on securities
lending transactions and investments made with such are
reported as assets and as related liabilities for collateral
received.

L NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
ADOPTED

In fiscal year 2005, the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) issued a new accounting
standard, Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination
Benefits.  This Statement, an amendment of various
paragraphs of certain statements issued by NCGA and
GASB, addresses termination benefits that are provided by
employers to employees as an inducement to hasten the
termination of services or as a result of a voluntary early
termination. Termination benefits include early-
retirement  incentives,  severance  benefits,  and
termination-related benefits, e.g. healthcare. The District

did not provide termination benefits in the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2006.

Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and
Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and
Future Revenues, was issued in September 2006. This
Statement establishes critenia that governments will use to
ascertain whether the proceeds should be reported as
revenue or as a liability. It also includes guidance to be
used for recognizing other assets and liabilities arising
from a sale of specific receivables or future revenue,
including residual interests and recourse provisions. The
requirements of this Statement improve financial
reporting by establishing measurement, recognition, and
disclosure requirements that apply to both governmental
and business-type activities. The implementation of this
Statement is effective for financial statements for periods
beginning after December 15, 2006, the District’s fiscal
year 2008. The District is already in compliance with this
Statement.

J. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain governmental and proprietary funds, component
units, and all Aiduciary fund assets are restricted as to use
by legal or contractnal requirements. Any excess of
restricted assets over liabilities payable from restricted
assets 18 reported as part of the restricted net assets in the
government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary financial
statements and as “reserved” fund balance in the
governmental fund financial statements, to indicate the
portion of the net assets or fund balance that is available
for restricted purposes, only. Restricted assets also
represent cash deposited in bank accounts legally
restricted for certain purposes such as the payment of
bond principal and interest or the payment of fiscal
charges on long-term debt.

K. PREPAID ITEMS AND DEFERRED CHARGES

Prepaid items are for payments made by the District in the
current fiscal year for services to be received in the
subsequent fiscal year. Such advance payments are
recorded as prepaid charges at the time of prepayment and
recognized as expenditures/expenses when the related
services are received.

In governmental funds, long-term debt discounts and
issuance costs are recognized in the current period as
interest and fiscal charges, respectively. In the
government-wide financial statements, long-term debt
discounts and issuance costs are capitalized and amortized
as fiscal charges over the term of the related debts using
the outstanding balance method.
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L. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Taxes receivable are taxes levied by the District,
including interest and penalties on delinquent taxes,
which have not been collected, canceled or abated, less
the portion of the receivables estimated not to be
collectible. Accounts receivable are amounts owed by
customers for goods or services sold. Intergovernmental
receivables are amounts owed by other governments to
the District.

Accounts payable are amounts owed to vendors for goods
or services purchased and received. Intergovernmental
payables are amounts owed to other governments.

M. TRANSFERS AND OTHER TRANSACTIONS
BETWEEN FUNDS

Interfund transactions are categorized as (a) revenues and
expense/expenditure transactions consisting of temporary
interfund transactions which include reimbursements and
quasi-external transactions or (b) reallocation of
resources, transactions including temporary interfund
loans, advances or operating transfers. Reimbursements
between funds occur when expenditures/expenses made
from one fund are properly applicable to another fund.

Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion
of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”
Any remaining balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.” Short-term amounts owed between
the primary government and a discretely presented
component unit are classified as “Due to/from primary
government” and “Due to/from component unit” on the
statement of net assets.

Transfers are included in the results of operations of both
the governmental and proprietary funds. Accordingly,
transfers are reported in the "Other Financing Sources
(Uses)" section of the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance (governmental
funds) and in the "Transfers" section in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets (proprietary
funds).

N. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment,
and land improvements (infrastructure) such as roads,
bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting
systems, and similar items, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities or component
units columns in the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund financial statements. All
purchased capital assets are stated at cost when historical
records are available and at estimated historical cost when
no historical records exist. In the case of the initial
capitalization of general infrastructure acquired prior to
fiscal years ended after June 30, 1980, the Dastrict elected
to include all such items regardless of their acquisition
date.

Assets acquired through capital leases are stated at the
lesser of the present value of the lease payments or the
fair value of the asset at the date of lease inception.
Donated capital assets are stated at their estimated fair
market value on the date received. The cost of
maintenance and repairs that does not add to the value of
the assets or materially extend asset lives is not
capitalized. Betterments are capitalized over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Capital
assets utilized in the governmental funds are recorded as
expenditures in the governmental fund financial
statements. Depreciation expense is recorded in the
government-wide financial statements, as well as the
proprietary funds and component units’ financial
statements.

Interest 1s capitalized in the government-wide financial
statements for business-type activities and proprietary
funds on assets constructed with long-term debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by
offsetting interest expense incurred on tax-exempt debt
from the date of borrowing until completion of the project
with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same
period.

Capitalization and Depreciation Policies

Assets capitalized have an original cost of $5 or more per
unit.  Depreciation is calculated on each class of
depreciable property using the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives for capital assets are shown in
Table 1 by category.
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Table 1- Estimated Useful Lives (by Asset Category)

Useful Life
Sewer Lines 45 years
Buildings 50 years
Equipment 5-12 years
Land Improvements 30-40 years

O. CAPITAL LEASES

Leased property having elements of ownership 1is
recorded in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. The related obligations, in amounts
equal to the present value of minimum lease payments
payable during the remaining term of the leases, are also
recorded in these financial statements.

P. COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Benefit Accumulation Policies

The District's policy allows employees to accumulate
unused sick leave, with no maximum limitation. Vacation
(annual) leave may be accumulated up to 240 hours,
regardless of the employee’s length of service, while there
18 no limit to the amount of compensatory in-lieu-of paid
overtime that may be accumulated.

Accrual

The District records vacation as an expenditure and
related liability in the govermmental fund financial
statements only to the extent that they have matured or
come due for payment. Accumulated annual leave that
has not matured by the end of the current fiscal year is
reported in the government-wide financial statements.
Accumulated annual leave of the proprietary funds and
discretely presented component units is recorded as an
expense and lability as the benefits accrue to employees.

The District does not record a lability for accumulated
rights to receive sick pay benefits. At the time of
retirement; however, unused sick leave can be used to
determine employees’ years of service. One month would
be added to the years and months of service of employees
who have accumulated 22 days of sick leave in the Civil
Service Retirement System and in the District Retirement
Program.

The employees of the District earn sick leave credits that
arc considered termination payments at time of retirement
rather than be taken as absences due to illness or other

contingencies. The District estimates the sick leave
liability based on the sick leave accumulated at fiscal year
end by employees who are currently eligible for
retirement and to receive sick leave payments upon
separation, or who are expected to become eligible in the
future to receive such payments. Accumulated
compensatory leave is reported in the government-wide
financial statements and in the proprietary funds.

Q. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Under the District of Columbia Home Rule Act, as
amended, no long-term general obligation debt (other than
refunding debt) may be issued during any fiscal year in an
amount which would caunse the amount of the principal
and interest paid in any fiscal year on all general
obligation debt to exceed 17% of the total local revenues
of the then-current fiscal year in which the debt is issued.
The legal debt limitation is calculated annually by
dividing maximum annual principal and interest by
current-year total local-source revenues (excluding
revenue and debt of the Water and Sewer Authority,
pursuant to the Home Rule Act.)

General obligation bonds, revenue bonds and other long-
term liabilities directly related to and intended to be paid
from proprietary funds or discretely presented component
units are included in the accounts of such funds. All other
long-term indebtedness of the District, such as disability
compensation, compensated  absences, employee
separation incentives and accreted interest liabilities,
which have been incurred but not financed, are reported in
the government-wide financial statements. Such
obligations are to be paid through the District’'s general
fund.

The District pays principal on its 1994B Capital
Appreciation Bonds (CABs) annually. There are no
periodic interest payments due. The CABs accrete to
their full value at maturity. Interest is accreted and
recorded annually using rates ranging from 6.00 to 6.65%.
Accreted interest is calculated throughout the maturity
periods of the bonds and is recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. The accreted value of such
bonds is the current value, plus the interest that has been
accumulating on the bonds.

The District pays principal on its 2002 Mandarin TIF
Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABs) annually. There are
no periodic interest payments due. The CABs accrete to
their full value at maturity. Interest is accreted and
recorded annually using rates ranging from 4.26 t0 5.91%.
Accreted interest is calculated throughout the matunty
periods of the bonds and 1s recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. The accreted value of such
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bonds is the current value, plus the interest that has been
accumulating on the bonds.

The District pays principal on its 2006 Tobacco Capital
Appreciation Bonds (CABs) annually. There are no
periodic interest payments due. The CABs accrete to
their full value at maturity. Interest is accreted and
recorded annually using rates ranging from 6.25 to 7.25%.
Accreted interest 1s calculated throughout the maturity
periods of the bonds and is recorded in the government-
wide financial statements. The accreted value of such
bonds is the cwrrent value, plus the interest that has been
accumulating on the bonds.

R. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS AND FUND
BALANCE RESERVATIONS AND
DESIGNATIONS

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements utilize a net assets presentation. Net assets are
categorized as:

o [nvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This
category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net assets.
Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of these
assets reduce the balance in this category.

* Restricted Net Assets - This category presents net
assets subject to external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Non-expendable restricted net
assets represent the portion of net assets that must be
held in perpetuity in accordance with donor
stipulations.

s Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents net
assets of the District not restricted for any project or
other purpose.

It is the policy of the District to first apply restricted
resources when an expense 1s incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reserves
and designations segregate portions of fund balance that
are either not available or have been earmarked for
specific purposes. The amount of fund balance that is
available for future operations 15 presented as
"unreserved.” Reservations of fund balance represent

amounts that are legally or statutorily identified for
specific purposes or portions that are not appropriable for
expenditure. Designations of fund balance represent
management's intent to fund future projects, but do not
represent a legal or statutory requirement to do so.

As of September 30, 2006, the District had established the
following fund balance reservations and designations and
restricted net assets (see Tables 34a and 34b on pages 91
and 92):

Reservations

Reserve for Long-Term Assets - This portion of fund
balance represents those long-term assets that are not
available for appropriation and expenditure.

Reserve for Emergency and Contingency Cash Reserve
Fund — This portion of fund balance represents amounts
that, in accordance with legislative mandate, are held in
an emergency reserve fund, to be used for unanticipated
and non-recurring, extraordimary needs of an emergency
nature.

Reserve for Debt Service—Bond Escrow - This portion of
fund balance represents that portion of investments held
in escrow that are available for future debt service
obligations or requirements.

Reserve for Capital Lease Payment - This portion of fund
balance is reserved for the purpose of making lease
payments on Saint Elizabeth and DMV Facilities.

Reserve for Paygo Capital - This portion of fund balance
represents amounts to be used to supplement the District’s
bond financing activity, to the extent feasible, with
resources from the general fund.

Reserve for Other Post Employment Benefits - This
portion of reserved fund balance is set aside to fund the
District’s share of retirees” health and life insurance costs.

Reserve for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - This
portion of fund balance represents amounts to be used to
finance certain non-recurring policy initiatives (referred to
as “Resident Dividends”), which were approved by the
District Council and Congress for FY2006 and dedicated
gross sales taxes.

Reserve for Inventory - This portion of fund balance
represents that portion of inventories that is not available
for appropriation and expenditure.

Reserve for Budget - This portion of fund balance
represents unused FY 2006 Budget Reserve amounts that
are available until expended.
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Reserve for Purpose Restrictions - This portion of fund
balance represents resources from grants and other
revenues with limitations on how the District may expend
the funds.

Reserve for Charter School Enrollment Expansion - This
portion of fund balance is restricted for the purpose of
providing start-up costs for new charter schools.

Reserve for Capital Projects - This portion of fund
balance 1s restricted for the purpose of executing capital
projects.

Reserve for Tobacco Settlement (TSFC) - This portion of
the District’s fund balance represents the fund balance
reserved for the purpose of paying future debt service and
related expenses associated with TSFC’s issvance of
Tobacco Seitlement Asset-Backed Bonds in FYs 2001
and 2006.

Reserve for Tax Increment Financing Program - This
portion of fund balance 1s restricted for debt service on
Tax Increment Financing Bonds and Notes.

Reserve for Baseball - This portion of fund balance
represents the resource that is available for constructing
the baseball stadium.

Reserve for Highway Projects - This portion of fund
balance is restricted for the purpose of executing federal
highway projects.

Designations

Designation for Other Post Employment Benefits - This
designation of unreserved fund balance i1s set aside to
fund the Dustrict’s share of retirees’ health and life
insurance costs.

Designation for School Modernization - This designation
of unreserved fund balance is for reconstruction and
modernization of public schools.

Designation  for Other Special Purposes - This
designation of unreserved fund balance is for activities
financed by fees and charges for services.

Restricted Net Assets
Restricted for Workers' Compensation - This portion of
fund balance is restricted for the purpose of paying

restitution under Workers” Compensation Claims.

Restricted for Future Benefits - This portion of fund
balance represents the resource that i1s available for

benefit payments from the Pension and Private Purpose
Trust Funds.

S. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 9,
employees may receive post-retirement health care and
life insurance benefits. As of September 30, 2006, there
were 5,491 pre-87 (Civil Service) and 12,151 post-87 (DC
Defined Contribution) employees who are eligible for
such benefits. The cost of providing such benefits to
employees hired prior to October 1, 1987 is borne by the
federal government and the District has no liability for
this cost. Employees hired after September 30, 1987,
pursuant to the D.C. Code 1-622, who subsequently retire
may be eligible to continue their health care benefits.
Furthermore, in accordance with D.C. Code 1-623, these
employees may convert their group life insurance to
individual life insurance. The District therefore bears
responsibility for the cost relating to employees hired
after September 30, 1987. The District does not record a
liability for its portion of the cost of post-retirement
benefits  but  rather records such cost as
expenses/expenditures when premiums are paid.

T. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides health and life insurance benefits to
retirees first employed by the District after September 30,
1987. The expense of providing such benefits to
employees hired prior to October I, 1987 is defrayed by
the federal government and the District has no liability for
those employees. The District pays 75% of the cost of
health insurance, and 33% of the cost of life insurance, for
eligible retirees. The District also pays 75% of the
premium for retirees’ spouse and dependent health
imsurance coverage. The District has recognized $1,112
for post-retirement health and life insurance premiums
paid during fiscal year 2006, and as of September 30,
2006, there were 421 retirees that received these
benefits. The District has funded the Plan on pay-as-you-
go basis, but will start funding on an actuarial basis in its
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2007. The District is in
the process of conducting an actuarial study of its
obligations under the Plan.

U. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
habilities at the date of the basic financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and
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expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

V. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental funds balance sheet and governmental
activities on the government-wide statement of net
assets

The governmental funds balance sheet includes
reconciliation between fund balances - total governmental
funds, and net assets - governmental activities as reported
in the government-wide statement of net assets. One
element of that reconciliation explains that certain
liabilities are not reported under the modified accrual
accounting basis including deferred revenue, but are
reported in the government-wide financial statements.
The difference in deferred revenue of $37,632 between
the two statements is a reconciling item.

Explanation of certain differences between the
governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and
governmental activities on the government-wide
statement of activities

The governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances —
total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of activities.

The details of the $527,803 difference related to capital
outlay are as follows:

Capital outlay capitalized $ 705,872
Less: Depreciation expense (225,809)
Equipment additions 65,196
Transfers/Dispositions (17,456)
Net adjustment $ 527,803

Deferred property tax revenues which were earned but
which current financial resources are not available for the
purpose of recognition in the govermnmental funds were
recognized in the government-wide financial statements.
Such revenue increased by $7,216 from fiscal year 2005
as a result of a change in the amount deferred mn the
governmental funds between 2005 and 2006.

The details of the $(1,117,206) difference related to
capital debt are as follows:

Bonds proceeds $ (1,247,407)
Equipment financing program (30,167)
COPs proceeds (211,680)
Premium on long term debt (39,944)
Less:

G.O. bonds advance refunding 117,925
Principal payments on G.O. bonds 188,095
Principal payments on other long-term

liabilities 14,750
Principal payments on capital lease 8,448
Principal payments on equipment

financing program 23,458
Fiscal charges 59,316
Net adjustment $ (1,117,206)

The details of the $64,890 difference related to the change
in accrued liabilities are as follows:

Annual leave $ (21,036)
Future disability benefits 117,505
Capital Appreciation Bond (CAB)

interest accretion (13,324)
Accrued interest (10,113)
Claims and judgments (8,142)
Net adjustment S 64,890
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W. BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT -
RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY BASIS
TO GAAP BASIS

The following presents a GAAP basis reconciliation of
the budgetary basis operating results as shown in the
Budgetary Comparison Statement.

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES -
BUDGETARY BASIS

Basis differences:
Inventory is recorded using the purchase method for

budgetary purposcs and the consumption method on a
GAAP basis

Proceeds from debt issuance - certificate of participation. a
financing source that was not included on a budgetary basis

Contingency reserve replenishment - an interfund transfer
not included on a budgetary basis

Revenue accrual adjustments

Expenditure accrual adjustments

Fund balance released from restrictions - a funding source
for budgetary purposes but is not revenue on a GAAP basis

Entity differences:

Operating cost from enterprise funds that are excluded on a
budgetary basis

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES - GAAP
BASIS

X. RESTATEMENT

Certain errors were discovered in the prior year financial
statement of the Housing Finance Agency, a component
unit. The errors were related to the calculation of the
outstanding mortgage note. As a result of these errors, the
net assets of the component unit were restated as follows:

GENERAL FEDERAL AND
FUND PRIVATE RESOURCES
325162 § 2.255
(1,973) 2.120
16,822 .
14,187 -
24,905 -
20.997 38,988
(528.432) .
(21,209) -
(149,541)  § 43,363

October 1, 2005, as previously reported $ 1,399,713
QOverstatement of loan receivable and

revenue (1,275)
October 1, 2005, as restated $_ 1,398,438
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A,  CASH

The District of Columbia follows the practice of pooling
cash and cash equivalents for some of its governmental
funds and component units in order to provide better
physical custody and control of cash, to enhance
operating efficiency and to maximize investment
opportunities. Of $3,510,385 within the custody of the
District, in accordance with District policies, substantially
all deposits as of September 30, 2006 were insured or
collateralized with securities held by the Dastrict or by its
agent in the District’s name. At September 30, 2006, the
carrying amounts of cash for the primary government and
fiduciary funds were $3,263,058 and the bank balances
were $2,253,113. The carrying amount of cash (deposits)
for the component units was $247.327 and the bank
balance was $246,832.

B. INVESTMENTS

District of Columbia laws authorize the Treasurer to
invest funds in a manner that will provide preservation of
principal and meet anticipated daily cash requirements of
the District, while maximizing investment earnings. The
District  purchases legally authorized investments
consistent with the provisions of the “Financial
Institutions Deposit and Investment Act of 1997” (D.C.
Law 12-56), which became effective March 18, 1998.
The District’s current investment policy limits
mvestments to obligations of the United States and
agencies thereof, prime commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances and  repurchase  agreements  fully
collateralized in obligations of the United States
government and agency securities. During the fiscal year,
the District’s investments (other than those held by the
Retirement Board) consisted primarily of money market
funds and/or obligations backed by United States
government or its agencies. The Retirement Board is
authorized to invest in a variety of investments including
fixed income, equity securities and other types of
investments. As prescribed in D.C. Code 1-907.01 (2001
Ed), the Board may not invest in debt instruments of the
District, the Commonwealth of Virginia or State of
Maryland governments, political subdivisions thercof, or
any entity subject to control by them; debt instruments
fully guaranteed by those govemments; real property in
those jurisdictions; or debt instruments secured by real
property in those jurisdictions.

The District and its discretely presented component units’
investments are subject to interest rate, credit, custodial
credit, and foreign cwrrency risks as described below:

e Interest Rate Risk - The District limits exposure to
fair value losses arising from rising interest rates.

During the fiscal year, the District’s investments,
other than those held by the Retirement Board, were
limited to U.S. government and agency securities and
money market funds with original maturities of 90
days or less. The Retirement Board’s fixed income
managers must construct and actively manage a
portfolio of fixed income and related securities that
maintains a weighted average duration within +/-2
years of the duration of the fixed income benchmark.

Credit Risk - The District invests in obligations of the
United States government and agencies securities,
prime commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard and
Poor’s Corporation or P-1 by Moody’s, banker’s
acceptances, and repurchase agreements. During the
fiscal year, the District’s investments (other than
those held by the Retirement Board) were limited to
U.S. government and agency securities and money
market funds with original maturities of 90 days or
less. For the Retirement Board, fixed income
managers are permitted to invest in eligible long-term
instruments rated investment grade (top four ratings)
by nationally recognized rating organizations.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk occurs
in the event that investment securities are uninsured
and/or not registered in the name of the government,
and there is failure of the counterparty. In such a
case, the government will not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities held in
the possession of an outside party. The District had
no custodial credit risk exposure during the fiscal
year.  The District collateralized all required
investments during fiscal year 2006. All collateral
for investments is held in the District’s name by the
Federal Reserve in a custodial account. Any funds
not invested at the end of the day are placed in
overnight investments in the District’s name.

Foreign Currency Risk - As a general policy of the
Retirement Board, the Board managers, with
authority to invest in a portfolio consisting primarily
of non-U.S. securities, structure optional currency
positions which minimize tracking error and enhance
risk-adjusted returns relative to the benchmark.

In connection with its Public Charter Schools Credit
Enhancement and Direct Loan Program, the District
invested a net amount of approximately $9.7 million
with Gencva Capital Partners, LLC. Geneva
subsequently executed an agreement with the District
through which it pledged certain mortgage notes with
a total face value of approximately $15.3 million as
collateral for the District’s investment. However,
based on certain on-going legal proceedings
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involving Geneva, the disposition of the District’s o  Concentration of credit risk — The District’s
assets owned by or in the custody of Geneva is investment policy does not allow for an investment in
uncertain, and the market value, negotiability and any one institution that is in excess of five percent of
liquidity of the notes pledged by Geneva as collateral the District’s total investment.

for the District’s investment are uncertain. The
District has recorded this investment as a long term
investment.

Table 2a — Cash and Investments Details

Total Carrying Value

INVESTMENTS
Primary Government:
U. S. government securities $ 311,862
Corporate securities 3,279
Mutual funds 22918
Total Primary Government 338,059

Fiduciary Funds:

Pension trust funds investments held by Board's agent in Board's name:
Equities (of which $304,375 is on securities loan with securities and

other collateral) 2,557,081
Fixed income securities (of which $102,106 is on securities loan with
securitics and other collateral) 505,903

Pension trust funds investments held by broker-dealer under securities
loans with cash collateral:

Equity securities 304,366
Fixed income securities 102,106
Securities lending collective investment pool 428,228
Private purpose trust funds investments 72,495
Total Fiduciary Funds 3,970,179

Component Units:

U. 8. government securities 213,171

Corporate securities 337,000

Investment contracts 265,004

Mutual funds 304,277

Total Component Units 1,119,452
Total reporting entity investments $ 5,427,690

CASH BALANCES

Primary government $ 2,836,378
Fiduciary Funds 426,680
Component units 247,327

Total cash balances $ 3,510,385
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NOTE 2. CASH AND INVESTN

Table 2b - Reconciliation of the District’s deposit and investment balances

Total investments per Table 2a $ 5,427,690
Total cash balances 3,510,385
Total $ 8,938,075
Exhibit 1-a Exhibit 4-a Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 519,414 § - h 519,414
Investments 192,099 - 192,099
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) 2,564,291 426,680 2,990,971
Investments (restricted) 1,265,412 3,970,179 5,235,591
Total $ 4,541,216 S 4,396,859 $ 8,938,075

Derivative Financial Instruments

In accordance with the policies of the Retirement Board
and pursuant to D. C. Code Section 1-741(a)(2)(C),
during 2006, the Pension Trust Funds held certain
derivative investments to increase potential earnings or to
hedge against potential losses. Derivative investments are
defined as financial instruments, the values of which
depend on or are derived from the value of an underlying
asset, reference rate, or index. Derivative investments
often contain exposure to market risk resulting from
fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates or
changes 1n the price or principal value of a security. The
mvestment credit risk results from the creditworthiness of
the counterparties to the contracts and, for asset backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations, the
creditworthiness of the related consumers and mortgages.
The Retirement Board maintains that all contracts are
legally permissible in accordance with its policy.

In fiscal year 2006, these derivatives included asset-
backed securities (ABS), collateralized mortgage-backed
securities (CMOs), mortgage-backed pools and securities,
floating rate notes, structured notes, stripped/zero coupon
bonds, inflation index bonds, forward mortgage-backed
security contracts (TBAs), foreign currency forward and
futures contracts, equity index futures, bond futures, bond
options, currency options, and warrants.

The Pension Trust Funds used asset backed securities
(ABS), collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs,)
mortgage-backed pools and securities, structured notes,
stripped/zero  coupon bonds, inflation index bonds,
mortgage backed sccurity forward contracts, foreign
currency futures/forward contracts, and options primarily
to increase potential returns. ABS and mortgage-backed
pools and securities offer higher potential yields than
comparable duration U. S. Treasury Notes with higher
credit and market risks. CMOs also offer higher potential
yields than comparable duration U. S. Treasury Notes,

with higher market risks, although the market risks may
be higher or lower than comparable mortgage-backed
pools. Market risk for asset backed and mortgage backed
pools and securities are managed by monitoring the
duration of the investments. Credit risk is managed by
monitoring credit ratings, the underlying collateral for
each security and any related guarantee.

The Pension Trust Funds invest in structured notes with
step-up coupons that offer higher yields than comparable
U. S. Treasury Notes in exchange for higher market
and/or credit risks. Securities with step-up coupons pay
interest according to a pre-set series of interest rates,
which start at one rate and then step-up to higher rates on
specific dates. The Funds also contain stripped/zero
coupon bonds, which are purchased at a discount and do
not pay an interest rate.

Foreign currency forward and futures contracts and
foreign currency options are used by the Retirement
Funds for defensive purposes. These contracts hedge a
portion of the Retirement Funds’ exposure to particular
cuirencies on occasion when significant adverse short-
term movement in exchange rate levels are expected.
Foreign currency forward and futures contracts can pose
market risk when the maximum potential loss on a
particular contract i1s greater than the value of the
underlying investment.  Market risks arise due to
movements in the foreign exchange rates underlying the
contracts used by the Retirement Funds. Credit risk is
managed by limiting transactions to counterparties with
short-term credit ratings of Al or Pl or by trading on
organized exchanges. Market risk for currency options is
limited to the purchase cost. Credit risk 1s managed by
limiting transactions to counterparties with investment
grade ratings or by trading on organized exchanges.

Exchange-traded and over-the-counter bond futures and
options are used by the Retirement Funds to gain
exposure to fixed income markets in a more efficient and
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liquid manner than by purchasing the underlying bonds.
Market risk for these options is limited to purchase cost.
Credit risk is managed by limiting transactions to
counterparties with investment grade ratings or by trading
on organized exchanges.

The Pension Trust Funds also hold derivative investments
indirectly by participating in pooled, commingled, mutual
or short-term funds that hold derivatives. Information
regarding any risks associated with these holdings is not
generally available.

At September 30, 2006, the Pension Trust Funds’
portfolio included $416,584 of derivative investments, or
10.32% of the pension investment portfolio. The
proportion of derivative investments varied at times
throughout the year.

Derivative investments by type at September 30, 2006 are
shown in Table 3.

Table 3 — Derivative Investments by Type

Derivative Instrument Type

Asset-backed securities $ 68,137
Collateralized mortgage obligations 89,973
Mortgage-backed security pools and securities 177,289
Inflation index bonds 82,351
Mortgage-backed security forward contracts 1,332
Foreign currency futures/forward contracts, net (3,150)
Interest rate swaps 660
Options (8)
Total Derivatives $ 416,584

C. SECURITIES LENDING

During the fiscal year 2006, the master custodian, at the
direction of the Retirement Board, lent the Retirement
Funds equity and fixed income securities and received
collateral in the form of cash (United States and foreign
currency), securities issued or guaranteed by the United
States government, the sovereign debt of Organization of
Economic Cooperation and Development countries and
trrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank insured by
the FDIC. The collateral could not be pledged or sold
unless the borrower defaulted on the loan. Borrowers
delivered collateral for each loan equal to (i) at least
102% of the market value of the loaned securities if these
securities were sovereign debt issued by a foreign
government denominated in U.S. dollars or their primary
trading market was located in the United States; or (ii)
105% of the market value of the loaned securities in the
case of loaned securities not denominated in United States
dollars or whose primary trading market was not located
n the United States.

The Board and the borrowers maintained the right to
terminate all securities lending transactions on demand.
The cash collateral received on each loan was invested,
together with the cash collateral of other qualified tax-

exempt plan lenders, in a collective investment pool (the
Quality Fund).

Because the Quality Fund does not meet the requirements
of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 2a-7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940, the master custodian
has valued the Fund’s investments at fair value for
reporting purposes.

The Quality Fund is not registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. The master custodian, and
consequently the investment vehicles it sponsors
(including the Quality Fund), are subject to the oversight
of the Federal Reserve Board and the Massachusetts
Commissioner of Banks. The fair value of the Funds’
position in the Quality Fund is not the same as the value
of the Retirement Funds’ shares.

There was no involuntary participation in an external
investment pool by the Quality Fund and there was no
income from one fund that was assigned to another fund
by the master custodian during fiscal year 2006.

During fiscal year 2006, the Board did not restrict the
amount of the loans that the master custodian made on its
behalf. There were no failures by any borrowers to return
loaned sccurities or pay distributions thereon and there

68 A District of Columbia

FY2006 CAFR



Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Financial Section

were no losses resulting from a default of the borrowers
or the master custodian during 2006.

The Quality Fund invests qualified cash collateral from
loans of U.S. and non-U.S. equities, U.S. corporate fixed
income securities, U.S. Government securities and
sovereign debt. Its average effective duration is restricted
to 120 days or less. The average duration of the
mvestment pool as of September 30, 2006 was 446 days.
The maximum remaining effective maturity of any
instrument is two years. The average weighted maturity of
the investment pool as of September 30, 2006 was 52
days. Because the loans were terminable at will, their
duration did not generally match the duration of the
investments made with cash collateral.

Investments are restricted to issuers with a short-term
credit rating not lower than A1/P1, or long-term ratings
not lower than A-/A3, or the equivalent thereof. The
Quality Fund may invest in other investment vehicles
managed by the master custodian provided they conform

to fund guidelines. On September 30, 2006, the Board
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers. The collateral
held and the market value of securities on loan for the
Board was $428,228 and $413,922, respectively, as of
September 30, 2006.

The collateral held is included in cash and mvestments
shown in Table 2a and Exhibit 4-a, and the securities on
loan are reported at their carrying amounts also in Table
2a and Exhibit 4-a.

During fiscal year 2006, the Master Trust’s gross earnings
from securities lending transactions totaled $21,017. The
income (net of amortization and accretion), the net
realized/unrealized gain attributable to discount and
premium, and the net increase in net assets resulting from
operations  totaled $22,099, $962, and $3,062
respectively, in 2006. The Fund’s share of the net
earnings on securities lending transactions totaled $607 in
fiscal year 2006.

At September 30, 2006, restricted assets of the primary government, component units, and fiduciary funds totaled $8,226,562

as summarized in Table 4.

Table 4 — Summary of Restricted Assets

Governmental Funds/Governmental Activities

Federal & General
Private Capital
General Resources Improvements Bascball Non-Major Total
Bond Escrow Accounts $ 279,462 $ - - $ - $ - $ 279,462
Public Transportation - - 843,293 - 6,174 849.467
Emergency Cash Reserves 293,649 - - - 14,220 307,869
Others 239,376 18,301 - 529,514 114,300 901,491
Total $ 812,487 $ 18,301 $ 843,293 $ 529,514 $ 134,694 $ 2,338,289
Proprietary Funds/Business-Type Activities
Lottery & Unemployment Fiduciary Component
Games Compensation Nonmajor Total Funds Units
Bond Escrow Accounts S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,021,988
Unpaid Prizes 52,584 - - 52,584 - -
University Endowment - - - - - 34,382
Benefits - 380,248 - 380,248 4,396,859 -
Other - - 2,212 2,212 - -
Total $ 52,584 $ 380,248 $ 2,212 $ 435,044 $ 4,396,859 $ 1,056,370

The bond escrow account includes bond escrow for capital lease payment of $16,822.
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NITS AND RECEIVABL

:RFUND BALANCES

A. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES BETWEEN FUNDS AND COMPONENT UNITS

Due to/due from and interfund receivable and payable balances for each fund and individual component unit at September 30,
2006 are shown in Table 5.

Table 5 — Summary of Due To /Due From and Interfund Balances

Primary Government/

Component Units Interfund

Fund or Component Unit Receivables Payables Receivables Payables
General $ 4,762 $ 20,535 % 645,351 § 11,668
Federal & Private Resources - - 13,278 72,541
General Capital Improvements 1,561 - 4,649 374,813
Capital Projects, Highway - - 9,711 3,538
Capital Projects, Baseball Fund 1,723 - - 202,700
Baseball Fund 490 - 2,170 -
Unemployment Compensation - - 766 13,629
Nursing Homes - - 155 -
Pension Trust - - 170 -
Agency - - 2,639 -
Water and Sewer Authority 9,119 1,192 - -
Washington Convention Center 6,832 - - -
Sports and Entertainment Commission - 5,780 - -
University of the District of Columbia 4,344 1,561 - -
Anacostia Waterfront 240 3 - -

Total $ 29,071 $ 29,071 §$ 678,889 $ 678,889

‘The above balances represent the impact of transactions among the funds and component units which will be settled during
fiscal year 2007.

B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables are valued at their estimated collectible amount. These receivables are presented in various funds as shown in
Table 6.

Table 6 - Receivables

Federal & Nonmajor Nonmajor
Pnvate General Capital Governmental Lotiery & Lnemployment Proprictary Fiduciary
General Resources Improvements Funds Games Compensation Fund Funds
Gross Reccivable:
Taxcs $ 381583 § - 5 -5 - 3 - 5 - 5 - f -
Interest - - - 108 - - - 33
Accounts 213,012 6,107 8,077 30,820 5,094 15,795 4,659 3.131
Federal 9,966 598,901 46,749 - - - - -
Total gross receivable 604,561 605,008 54,826 30,928 5,004 15,795 4,659 3,164
Less-allowance
for uncollectibles 223,151 128,585 6,136 - - 7030 214 -
Total net receivable § 381410 § 476,423 § 48,690 § 30,928 § 5094 § 8,765 $ 4445 3 3,164
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C. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Table 7 shows a summary of interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.

Table 7 — Summary of Interfund Transfers

TRANSFER FROM  TRANSFER TO PURPOSE AMOUNT
(OUT) (IN)
General Fund Highway Trust Fund Motor fuel taxes dedicated to the Highway Trust Fund $ 24,960
DC Lottery & Games General Fund DC Lottery & Games excess revenues, after operating
cost, to the general fund 73,800

Tobacco Corporation Capital Projects Tobacco Settlement asset backed bonds 245,260
Tobacco Corporation General Fund Funds to pay the QZAB issuance costs 3,004
General Fund Capital Projects PAYGO-Capital projects financed by the general fund 266,353
General Fund Baseball Fund Taxes imposed for the baseball stadium project 37,026
General Fund Federal and Private Federal Payment monies transferred from local source 685

Resources funds
General Fund Tax Increment Financing  Tax imposed to pay bonds on economic development

Program tasks 13,214
Baseball Fund General Fund Replenishment of the Contingency Fund 14,871
Baseball Fund Baseball Debt Services Funds for debt service payments 6,033

TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS 5685,206
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(OTE 5. CAPITAL ASSET

Capital Outlays

Capital outlays totaled $901,204 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2006, which are reported in the General
Capital Improvements, Baseball Capital Project and Other
Nonmajor Govermnmental Funds. As construction
progresses, the cumulative expenditures are capitalized as
construction in progress in the Governmental Activities
column of the Government-Wide Financial Statements.
Upon completion of the project, the balance in the
Construction in Progress account is transferred to an
appropriate descriptive capital asset account such as

Impaired Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2006, the public schools
permanently closed some schools. The carrying amount
of the impaired assets that are idle at year-end was
$11,543.

building, equipment or infrastructure.

A. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS BY CLASS

Table 8 presents the changes in the governmental activities capital assets by category for the primary government:

Table 8 - Changes in the Governmental Activities Capital Assets by Asset Class

Balance Transfers/ Transfers Balance

Asset Class October 1, 2005 Additions Dispositions from CIP September 30, 2006
Non-depreciable:

Land $ 220,004 % - ¥ (66) $ - b 219,938

Construction in progress 1,126,609 705,872 (14,468) (497,530) 1,320,483
Total non-depreciable 1,346,613 705,872 (14,534) (497,530) 1,540,421
Depreciable:

Infrastructure 3,055,854 - - 218,744 3,274,598

Buildings 2,537,950 - (201) 138,475 2,676,224

Equipment 791,129 65,196 (28,068) 140,311 068,568
Total depreciable 6,384,933 65,196 (28,269) 497,530 6,919,390
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Infrastructure 1,402,096 79,575 - - 1,481,671

Buildings 928,515 46,547 - - 975,062

Equipment 381,997 99,687 (25,347) - 456,337
Total accumulated depreciation 2,712,608 225,809 (25,347) - 2,913,070
Total depreciable, net 3,672,325 (160,613) (2,922) 497,530 4,006,320
Net governmental activities

capital assets § 5,018,938 $ 545,259 % (17,456) $ - $ 5,546,741
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B. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION

Table 9 presents the changes in the governmental activities capital assets by function for the primary government:

Table 9- Governmental Activities Capital Assets by Function

Balance CIP Balance
October 1, Transfers/ Transfers  September 30,
Function 2005 Additions  Dispositions in (out) 2006
Governmental direction and support $ 512,852 § 5192 § (24,923) $ 205,090 $ 698,211
Economic development and regulation 95,045 1,051 (3,405) 2,722 95,413
Public safety and justice 604,110 21,900 17,183 2,826 646,019
Public education system 1,155,133 21,122 (12,600) 56,236 1,219,891
Human support services 630,158 3,293 (1,3006) 6,595 638,740
Public works 3,607,639 12,638 (3,284) 224,061 3,841,054
Construction in progress (CIP) 1,126,609 705,872 (14,468) (497,530) 1,320,483
Total $ 7,731,546 § 771,068 $ (42,803) $ - $ 8,459,811

C. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION BY FUNCTION

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets depreciation by function for the primary government is

shown in Table 10.

Table 10 — Governmental Activities Capital Assets Accumulated Depreciation By Function

Balance Balance
October 1, Transfers/ September 30,
Function 2005 Additions Dispositions 2006

Government direction and support $ 135,798 § 56,196 $ (1,688) $ 190,306
Economic development and regulation 23,600 2,638 (1,820) 24418
Public safety and justice 255,492 26,376 (6,836) 275,032
Public education system 453,798 28,533 (10,590) 471,741
Human support services 265,980 14,041 (1,133) 278,888
Public works 1,577,940 98,025 (3,280) 1,672,685
Total $ 2,712,608 $ 225809 § (25,347) $ 2,913,070
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL

D. BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES CAPITAL ASSETS

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets are presented in Table 11.

Table 11 - Business-Type Activities Capital Assets

Balance Balance
October 1, Transfers/  September 30,
Asset Class 2005 Additions Dispositions 2006
Lottery:
Depreciable:
Equipment $ 4,178 § - § (936) $ 3,242
Total 4,178 - (936) 3,242
Nonmajor business-type
Non-depreciable:
Land 1,264 - - 1,264
Depreciable:
Building 41,521 3,222 - 44,743
Equipment 4,574 347 - 4,921
Total Depreciable, nonmajor business-
type 46,095 3,569 - 49,664
Total Business-Type 51,537 3,569 (936) 54,170
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment (7,047) (389) 936 (6,500)
Building (28,307) (1,972) - (30,279)
Total accumulated depreciation (35,354) (2,361) 936 (36,779)
Net capital assets $ 16,183 $ 1,208 § - § 17,391

E. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets by class for the discretely presented component units is shown in Tables 12 and 13.

Table 12 - Capital Assets by Class for the Discretely Presented Component Units

Balance CIpP Balance
October 1, Transfers/ Transfers September 30,
Asset Class 2005 Additions Dispositions in (out) 2006
Land $ 12,890 $ - $ - b - A 12,890
Utility plant 1,927,428 4,878 - 398,052 2.330,358
Buildings 963,080 8,448 - 1,288 972,816
Equipment 146,099 2,052 (3,275) 8,783 153,659
Artwork 2,725 - - - 2,725
Construction in progress 736,573 229,998 - (408,123) 558,448
Total 3,788,795 245,376 (3,275) - 4,030,896
Less-accumulated depreciation for

Utility plant (640,246) (34,947) - - (675,193)
Buildings (173,020) (33,835) (82) - (206,937)
Equipment (107,738) (14,409) 2,715 - (119,432)
Total accumulated depreciation (921,004) (83,191) 2,633 - (1,001,562)
Net Capital Assets $ 2,867,791 $ 162,185 $ (642) $ - $ 3,029,334
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Table 13 - Capital Assets by Component Unit

Balance Balance
October 1, Transfers/ September 30,
Component Units 2005 Additions  Dispositions 2006
University of the District of Columbia  $ 166,755 $ 5982 % (1,754) § 170,983
Washington Convention Center 810,827 34,647 - 845,474
Water and Sewer Authority 2,743,340 203,843 (1,521) 2,945,662
Sports and Entertainment Commisston 62,548 833 - 63,381
Anacostia Waterfront Corporation 183 31 - 214
Housing Finance Agency 5,142 40 - 5,182
Total capital assets 3,788,795 245,376 (3,275) 4,030,896
Less-accumulated depreciation for:
University of the District of Columbia (101,109) (5,724) 1,224 (105,609)
Washington Convention Center (75,677) (27.,999) - (103,676)
Water and Sewer Authority (710,288) (44,149) 1,409 (753,028)
Sports and Entertainment Commission (31,475) (5,014) - (36,489)
Anacostia Waterfront Corporation (15) (56) - (71
Housing Finance Agency (2,440) (249) - (2,689)
Total accumulated depreciation (921,004) (83,191) 2,633 (1,001,562)
Net component units capital assets $ 2,867,791 $ 162,185 § (042) $ 3,029,334
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F. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress by function for governmental activities capital assets is shown in Table 14.

Table 14 — Construction in Progress by Function

Expenditures
Number of Current Transfers from Unexpended
Function and Subfunction Projects Authorizations Prior Year Year CIP/Disposition Total Balance
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Direction and
Support
Finance 3% 29238 § 16,312 § 2,535 ¢ (16,103) § 2,744 § 26,494
Personnel 1 8,833 7,947 258 - 8,205 628
Legislative 2 31,705 15 1,846 - 1,861 29,844
Administrative 55 873,989 202,817 322,352 (198,736) 326,433 547,556
Total 61 943,765 227,091 326,991 (214,839) 339,243 604,522
Public Safety and Justice
Police 7 23,710 2,588 2,723 (4.728) 583 23,127
Fire 26 71,864 22,950 12,243 (687) 34,506 37,358
Correction 4 7,699 7,518 1,402 - 8,920 1,221)
Courts 3 1,048 - 78 - 78 970
Medical Examiner 2 18,822 1,136 480 - 1,616 17,206
Total 42 123,143 34,192 16,926 (5,415) 45,703 77,440
Economic Development and Regulation X
Zoning 1 350 207 109 - e 316 34
Housing and Comm. Dev. 5 48,468 15,162 7,422 - 22,584 25,884
Planning & Iicon. Dev. 8 75,260 280 2,902 (2,722) 460 74,800
Total 14 124,078 15,649 10,433 (2,722) 23,360 100,718
Public Education System
Librarics 11 50,999 3,594 300 - 3,894 47,105
Public Education System 54 920,713 277,394 84,142 (56,237) 305,299 615,414
Total 65 971,712 280,988 84,442 (56,237) 309,193 662,519
Human Support Services
Health and Welfare 28 79,396 40,000 4,515 (4,788) 39,727 39,669
Human Services 12 10,904 8,394 1,537 (2,176) 7,755 3,149
Mental Health Services 11 79,990 42,368 13,235 - 55,603 24,387
Recreation 19 255,232 49,738 25,052 (1,745) 73,045 182,187
Youth Rehabilitation Services 1 34,193 - 792 - 792 33,401
Aping 10 22,562 3,587 3,701 (14) 7,274 15,288
Total 81 482,277 144,087 48,832 (8,723) 184,196 298,081
Public Works
Environmental 115 1,391,169 424.602 218,248 (224,062) 418,788 972,381
Total 115 1,391,169 424,602 218,248 (224,062) 418,788 972,381
Totals 378 § 4,036,144 $ 1,126,609 § 705872 §% (511,998) $ 1,320,483 § 2715661
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A. INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND PROGRAM

The District has issued, under its Industrial Revenue Bond
Program, private activity bonds for which the principal
and interest are payable solely from defined revenues of
private entities, such as non-profit organizations. The
District has no obligation for this debt beyond resources
that may have been provided by related leases or loans.
Organizations participating in the Industrial Revenue
Bond Program are allowed to borrow at the prevailing
municipal bond rate. These private activity bonds provide
economic incentive to construct, modernize or enhance
private entity facilities in the District, thereby supporting
the District's economic base. As of September 30, 2006,
the aggregate outstanding principal amount for these
conduit debt obligations was approximately $4.2 billion.

B. ENTERPRISE ZONE FACILITY BONDS

Beginning January 1, 1998, businesses located in the
District of Columbia Enterprise Zone (D.C. Zone) are
eligible to obtain up to $15 million of tax-exempt
financing. Similar to Industrial Revenue Bonds, the
principal and interest are payable solely from defined
revenues of private entities, including non-profit and for-
profit organizations. The District has no obligation for
this debt beyond resources that may have been provided
by related leases or loans. As of September 30, 2006, the
aggregate outstanding principal amount for Enterprise
Zone Facility Bonds was $125 million.

' NOTE7. SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES

TAX REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTES

The District issued $250,000 in Tax Revenue Anticipation
Notes (TRANSs) on December 14, 2005. This is a short
term financing method used to provide for seasonal cash
flow needs. The proceeds of the TRANs were used to
finance general governmental expenses of the District in
anticipation of the collection or receipt of revenues for
fiscal year 2006. The TRANSs are general obligations of
the District, secured by the District’s full faith and credit,

and payable from available revenues, including tax
revenues, of the District. The TRANs were issued as
fixed-rate notes with an interest rate of 4% and priced to
yield 3.27%-3.28%. Operational and other disbursement
costs are covered by the TRANs proceeds until periodic
taxes, grants and other revenues are received. The FY
2005 TRANS, as prescribed by law, were repaid in the
current year on September 29, 2006.

Table 15 - Changes in Short-Term Liabilities

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
Account 2005 Additions Deductions 2006
Governmental Activities
Tax Revenue Anticipation Notes $ - 250,000 $ 250,000 $ -
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OTES LONGTERML

A. LONG-TERM DEBT

In the government-wide financial statements and
proprietary funds, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, and
proprietary funds statement of net assets. Long term debt
premivms and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the
outstanding principal method. Long term debt payable is
reported separately from the applicable premium or
discount. The issuance cost for long term debt is reported
as deferred charge.

Governmental funds recognize premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs, during the current period. The
face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, arc reported as debt service
expenditures.

General Obligation Bonds

The District’s general obligation bonds are authorized and
issued primarily to provide funds for certain capital
projects and improvements. The average interest rate on
the District’s outstanding fixed-rate bonds is 5.27%. The
average interest rate on the District’s variable-rate bonds
for fiscal year 2006 1s 3.25%. All general obligation
bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the
District. In addition, the bonds are secured by a security
interest in and lien on the funds derived from a Special
Real Property Tax levied annually by the District on
portions of certain real property. These tax revenues have
been dedicated for the payment of bond principal and
interest. Amounts collected are deposited in banks and
held in escrow for payment of bond principal and interest
when due. A summary of the outstanding debt totaling
$3,773,863 at September 30, 2006 is shown in Table 16.

Table 16- Changes in Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt of Primary Government

General
Obligation TIF TIF Tobacco Ballpark
Bonds Notes Bonds Bonds Bonds COPs (Q7AB Total

Debt payable at October 1, 2005 $ 3,632,198 § 2,822 § 114,703 § 498,740 § - $ 68,975 § 2815 § 4,320,253
Bond and note proceeds:

Series 2005A 331,210 - - - - - - 331,210

Series 20058 116.475 - - - - - - 116,475

TIF - Woodies - 2.996 - - - - - 2.996

TIF - Embassy Suites - 11,000 - - - - - 11,000

Tobacco Series 2006 - - - 248264 - - - 248,264

Ballpark Series 2006A1 - - - - 78,425 - - 78.425

Ballpark Series 2006A2 - - - - 76,410 - - 76.410

Ballpark Series 200681 - - - - 354,965 - - 354,965

Ballpark Series 2006B2 - - - - 25.000 - - 25,000

COPs - - - - - 211.680 - 211,680

QZAB Series 2005 - - - - - - 2,662 2,662

Total 4,079,883 16,818 114,703 747,004 534,800 280,655 5477 5,779,340
Debt payments:

Principal matured 188.095 - 4.808 4.720 - 2,555 256 200,434

Principal defeased 117.925 2411 - - - - - 120.336
Debt payable at September 30,2006 § 3,773,863 § 14,407 § 109,895 $§ 742284 § 534800 § 278,100 § 5221 § 5,458,570
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On December 15, 2005 the District issued its Series
2005A General Obligation Bonds in the principal amount
of $331,210 (the “2005A Bonds™). The proceeds of these
bonds will be used to finance capital project expenditures
in the District’s capital improvements program and to pay
the costs and expenses of issuing and delivering the
bonds. Also, on December 15, 2005, the District issued
its 2005B General Obligation Refunding Bonds in the
principal amount of $116,475 (the “2005B Bonds™). The
proceeds of these bonds are being used to redeem or
defease a portion of the Districts’ outstanding general
obligation bonds at a savings to the District and to pay the
costs and expenses of issuing and delivering the bonds.

The 2005A and 2005B bonds together with other
outstanding general obligation bonds and bonds to be
issued in the future are general obligations of the District,
secured by the Districts’ full faith and credit and further
secured by the Special Real Property Tax, and are issued
under Section 461 of the Home Rule Act. The 2005A
Bonds were issued as fixed-rate bonds with a weighted
average interest rate yield of 4.60%. The 2005B Bonds
were 1ssued as fixed-rate bonds with a weighted average
interest rate yield of 4.48%. The final maturities of the
2005A and 2005B bonds are June 1, 2030 and 2027,
respectively.

Prior to the creation of the Water and Sewer Authority as
an independent entity, the District issued general
obhgation bonds to fund improvements to the water and
wastewater system. The Water and Sewer Authority is
responsible for this debt. While the Water and Sewer
Authority is not directly liable for the general obligation
bonds, it is required by enabling legislation to transfer to
the District the funds necessary to pay its portion of the
debt service on these bonds. Accordingly, District
general obligation bonds totaling $22,300 are reflected in
the financial statements of the Water and Sewer
Authority.

Advance Refunding

On December 15, 2005 the District issued $116,475 in
General Obligation Refunding Bonds with a weighted
average interest rate yield of 4.5% to advance refund
$117,925 of outstanding 1994, 1997A, 1998A, 19988,
and 2001B bonds with a weighted average interest rate
yield of 5.3%. The general obligation bonds were issued
at par with a premium of $7,437 and after paying issuance
costs of $1,771, the net proceeds were $122,141. The net
proceeds from the issuance of the general obligation
bonds were used to purchase U.S. Treasury Securitics
(State and Local Government Series) and those securities
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide debt service payments until the bonds are
fully called on 6/1/2010. The District completed the

advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payment
over the next 22 years by approximately $4,187.

TIF Notes and Bonds

The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Notes and Bonds are
special limited obligations of the District. In 2001, the
District promised to pay an aggregate principal amount of
$6,900 to the House on F Street Development Sponsor.

The interest rate on this TIF note ranges from 2.13% to
6.26%. The sole source of repayment of the TIF Notes is
the incremental sales and real property tax revenues from
the Project, and the District has no obligation to make any
payments on the TIF Notes other than through the
remittance of the incremental revenues to the Paying
Agent. If the incremental revenues are msufficient to pay
the principal and interest due on the TIF Notes when due,
the payment shortfall does not constitute a default under
the TIF agreement. When the incremental revenues are
sufficient, the District must pay the amount of any
previous shortfall to the Development Sponsor without
any penalty interest or premium thereon.

In 2002, the District promised to pay an aggregate
principal amount of $73,650 to the Gallery Place
Development Sponsor and $45,995 to the Mandarin Hotel
Development Sponsor. Two Tax Increment Financing
(TIF) Bonds were issued pursuant to the District of
Columbia Tax Increment Financing Authorization Act of
1998, as amended, and the Trust Indenture dated as of
April 1, 2002. Interest rate yields on the Gallery Place
and Mandarin Hotel TIF Bonds range from 3.28% to
5.43%. These two bond issuances are supported by the
pledge of incremental sales and real property tax revenues
from the respective projects and secondarily by
incremental tax revenues from a Downtown TIF Area.

In 2006, the District used TIF to finance the Embassy
Suites Hotel and the H&M retail development. The
$11,000 Embassy Suites Hotel TIF Notes has an interest
rate of 5%. Similar to the House on F Street Notes, the
sole source of repayment of the TIF Notes is the
incremental sales and real property tax revenues from the
Project and any repayment shortfalls do not constitute a
default. The Woodies retail development TIF Notes are
approximately $2,996 with an 8% interest rate. The TIF
Notes are a pledge of the incremental sales tax revenue
only. If the incremental revenue is insufficient to pay the
principal and interest due on the TIF Notes when due, the
payment shortfall does not constitute a default. When the
incremental revenues are sufficient, the District must pay
the amount of any previous shortfall to the Development
Sponsor without any penalty interest or premium thereon.
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Table 17 - Summary of Debt Service Requirements for
Gallery Place TIF Bond

Year Ending GALLERY PLACE
September 30 Principal  Interest Total
2007 $ 1425 8 37779 $ 5,204
2008 1,495 3,708 5,203
2009 1,570 3,633 5,203
2010 1,655 3,551 5,206
2011 1,740 3,464 5,204
2012-2016 10,220 15,796 26,016
2017-2021 13,350 12,671 26,021
2022-2026 17,225 8,788 26,013
2027-2031 22,285 3,730 26,015
Total $ 70,965 $ 59,120 $ 130,085

Table 18 - Summary of Debt Service Requirement for
Mandarin Oriental Hotel TIF Bond

Year Ending MANDARIN ORIENTAL HOTEL
September 30 Principal  Interest Total
2007 $ 3241 § 1,263 § 4,504
2008 3,070 1,439 4,509
2009 2,897 1,612 4,509
2010 2,735 1,769 4,504
2011 2,583 1,921 4,504
2012-2016 10,767 11,764 22,531
2017-2021 9,357 13,174 22,531
2022-2026 4,280 225 4,505
Total $ 38930 § 33,167 § 72,097

Table 19 - Summary of Debt Service Requirement for
Embassy Suites Hotel TIF Note

Year Ending EMBASSY SUITES HOTEL

September 30 Principal  Interest Total

2007 $ - $ 266 § 266
2008 582 507 1,089
2009 760 470 1,230
2010 799 432 1,231
2011 839 391 1,230
2012-2016 4,877 1,274 6,151
2017-2021 2,314 146 2,460
Total $ 10,171 $ 3,486 § 13,657

Tobacco Bonds

In November 1998, the District (along with a number of
other States and various jurisdictions) signed a Master
Settlement Agreement with the major U.S. tobacco
companies that ended litigation over health care treatment
costs incurred for smoking-related illnesses. Under the
settlement, the District is scheduled to receive total annual
payments aggregating an estimated $1.2 billion by 2025.
There are a number of potential adjustments to this
schedule, including an inflation adjustment and a cigarette
volume adjustment. In addition, there are numerous risks
regarding whether the District will receive the full amount
to which it is entitled under the terms of the Master
Settlement Agreement, including various lawsuits outside
the District alleging that the Master Settlement
Agreement is void or voidable.

In 2001, the Tobacco Corporation issued $521,105
principal amount of its Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed
Bonds, Series 2001, of which $494,020 was outstanding
as of September 30, 2006.

In 2006, the Tobacco Corporation issued $248,264
principal amount of its Tobacco Settlement Asset-Backed
Bonds, Series 2006. Since no payment was made in 2006,
the amount outstanding as of September 30, 2006 was
$248,264. The payment of these bonds 1s secured by the
distribution under the Master Settlement Agreement.
Payments received by the Tobacco Corporation under the
Master Settlement Agreement in excess of the annual debt
service requirements for the Tobacco Bonds may revert to
the General Fund. There was no transfer of funds from
Tobacco proceeds to the General Fund in fiscal year 2006.
The Tobacco Bonds are neither general nor moral
obligations of the District and are not secured by a pledge
of the full faith and credit of the District.

As of September 30, 2006, the total outstanding balance

for all Tobacco bonds as shown in Table 20 was
$742,284.
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Summary of debt service requirements for general obligation and tobacco bonds to maturity is shown in Table 20.

Table 20 - Summary of Debt Service Requirements for General Obligation and Tobacco Bonds to Maturity

Year Ending General Obligation Bonds Tobacco Bonds
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 202,805 $ 180,551 $ 5,215 $ 31,928 $ 420,499
2008 213,640 169,687 12,585 31,603 427,515
2009 221,255 158,501 13,245 30,877 423,878
2010 237,005 146,654 14,305 30,112 428,076
2011 191,055 133,930 15,450 29,278 369,713
2012 - 2016 752,853 595,255 92,830 130,998 1,571,936
2017 - 2021 658,830 380,007 130,695 97,284 1,266,816
2022 - 2026 826,360 215,786 209,695 48,914 1,300,755
2027 - 2031 404,035 53,341 - - 457,376
2032 - 2035 66,025 5,351 - - 71,376
2042 - 2046 - - 159,733 1,697,592 1,857,325
2052 - 2056 - - 88,531 2,478,469 2,567,000
Total $ 3,773,863 $ 2,039,063 $ 742,284 $ 4,607,055 $ 11,162,265
Defeased Bonds Ballpark Revenue Bonds

In prior years, the District has defeased certain bond
issues by issuing refunding bonds. As of September 30,
2006, the total amount of defeased debt outstanding but
removed from the government-wide financial statement
was $489,197.

Table 21 - Summary of Defeased Bonds in FY 2006

SUMMARY OF DEFEASED BONDS IN FY2006
Defeased by Refunding Bond 2005B

Bond Series Interest Refunded
Refunded Rate Amount

1994B 6% $ 5
1997A 5.3%-5.5% 46,350
1998A 5.0%-5.25% 38,330
1998B 5.25% 20,165
2001B 5.0%-5.5% 13,075

$ 117,925

On May 15, 2006, the District issued Ballpark Revenue
Bonds in the principal amount of $534,800. This offering
includes the issuance of Taxable Series 2006A-1 in the
principal amount of $78,425 and the issuance of Taxable
Series 2006A-2 bonds in the principal amount of $76,410
(the “Series 2006A-1 Bond and together with the Series
2006A-2 bond, the “Series 2006A Bonds™).

This offering also includes the issuance of Series 2006B-1
in the principal amount of $354,965 and Series 2006B-2
(Auction Rate Securities) in the principal amount of
$25,000 (the “Series 2006B-1 Bond and together with the
Series 2006B-2 bond, the “Series 2006B Bonds™). Series
2006B 1s tax-exempt.

The weighted average interest rate yield on 2006A and
2006B Bonds is 5.35%.

The proceeds of the Series 2006 Ballpark Bonds will be
used to finance a portion of the cost of construction of a
new baseball stadium. The stadium will be owned by the
District of Columbaa.
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Table 22 - Summary of Debt Service Requirements for Ballpark Revenue Bonds

Year Ending BALLPARK BONDS
September 30 Principal  Interest Total
2007 $§ 6310 § 28,040 $ 34,350
2008 2,075 27,828 29,903
2009 4,665 27,672 32,337
2010 4,360 27,455 31,815
2011 4,540 27,242 31,782
2012-2016 33,665 131,862 165,527
2017-2021 58,340 119,987 178,327
2022-2026 90,850 100,656 191,506
2027-2031 135,165 70,941 206,106
2032-2036 194,830 27,212 222,042
Total $534,800 §588,805 § 1,123,695

Qualified Zone Academy Bond

The District issued the Qualified Zone Academy Bond
(QZAB) as a taxable general obligation bond without
incurring interest expense. The District received $4,665
and is obligated to deposit a total amount of $3,583 into a
sinking fund in fourteen equal amounts of $256 beginning
December 1, 2002.

On December 28, 2005, the District issued the Qualified
Zone Academy Bond (QZAB) as a taxable general
obligation bond without incurring interest expense. The
District received $3,191 and is obligated to deposit a total
amount of $2,662 into a sinking fund in fifteen equal
amounts of $177 beginning December 1, 2006.

A summary of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity for QZAB is shown in Table 23.

Table 23 - Summary of Debt Service Requirements for QZAB

Qualified Zone Academy Bond

Year Ending (QZAB)

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 433 % 48 3 481
2008 433 64 497
2009 434 81 515
2010 433 98 531
2011 434 115 549
2012-2016 2,167 829 2,996
2017-2021 887 305 1,192
Total $§ 5221 § 1,540 § 6,761
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Water and Sewer Authority

The Water and Sewer Authority (WASA) derives its
funding for future capital projects from the issuance of
revenue bonds, notes payable to the federal government
and various other non-debt sources of financing. The
public utility revenue bonds and notes payable to the
federal government for the Washington Aqueduct are
considered senior debt. Notes payable to the federal
government for the Washington Aqueduct are specifically
secured by user charges assessed on retail customers.
During the year ended September 30, 2006, the highest
rate on these notes was 6.75% and the lowest rate was
3.25%. Debt outstanding at September 30, 2006 totaling
$776,028 included net unamortized bond premiums and
discounts of ($4,486) and a remaining principal balance
of $771,542.

Commercial Paper Note Payable

The Board of Directors of the Authority approved
WASA’s commercial paper program on November 1,
2001, with the Series A and B notes, not to exceed
$50,000 each at any one time. Proceeds from the sale of
the notes are used to finance costs incurred in connection
with the construction of capital improvements to WASA’s
wastewater treatment collection and disposal system, its
water distribution system and capital equipment.

Series A and B notes are secured by separate letters of
credit, issued by Westdeutsche Landesbank Gironzentrale
(WestLB) and are rated P1, Al+ and F1+ by Moody’s,
S&P and Fitch respectively. The letter of credit expires on
November 30, 2015. WASA had no balance payable in
Commercial paper.

Table 24 — Water and Sewer Authority Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 7,555 $ 37,576 $ 45,131
2008 13,956 36,981 50,937
2009 14,002 36,145 50,147
2010 17,446 39,397 56,843
2011 16,783 39,670 56,453
2012 -2017 91,475 189,205 280,680
2018 - 2021 115,873 167,901 283,774
2022 - 2026 150,586 137,175 287,761
2027 - 2031 191,407 147,884 339,291
2032 - 2036 153,903 101,767 255,670
2037 - 2041 3,042 303 3,345
Sub-total 776,028 934,004 1,710,032
Less: Unamortized Net Bond Discount (4,486) - (4,486)
Total $ 771,542 $ 934,004 $ 1,705,546
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Washington Convention Center Authority

On September [, 1998, the Washington Convention
Center Authority (WCCA) issued $524 million in senior
lien dedicated tax revenue serial and term bonds at
various rates ranging from 4.5% to 5.25%.

The bond proceeds were used to construct and equip the
new convention center. The 1998 bonds are special
obligations of the WCCA. The 1998 Bonds are payable
solely from dedicated tax receipts and pledged funds

The WCCA Act authorized the pledge of the dedicated
taxes to secure the repayment of the 1998 bonds.
Pursuant to the WCCA Act, the District has also pledged
not to limit or alter any rights vested in the WCCA to
fulfill agreements made with holders of the 1998 Bonds,
or in any way impair rights and remedies of bondholders
until the 1998 bonds and the interest thereon are paid in
full

A summary of WCCA’s debt service requirements to
maturity for principal and interest is shown in Table 25.

established under the Trust Agreement.

Table 25 — Washington Convention Center Authority Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 11,720 $ 24452 $ 36,172
2008 12,310 23,866 36,176
2009 12,925 23,251 36,176
2010 13,600 22,572 36,172
2011 14,315 21,858 36,173
2012-2016 83,675 97,196 180,871
2017 - 2021 107,690 73,179 180,869
2022 - 2026 137,145 43,723 180,868
2027 - 2028 98,980 9,549 108,529
Sub-total 492,360 339,646 832,006
Less: Unamortized Bond Discount (5,131) - (5,131)
Total $ 487,229 $ 339,646 $ 826,875
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Housing Finance Agency

Bonds payable consists of term and serial bonds which
are subject to redemption at the option of the Housing
Finance Agency, in accordance with the terms of the
respective bond indenture and bond resolution, in whole
or in part, on various dates at prescribed redemption
prices. Interest rates on these bonds range from 3.84% to
7.75%. Included in certain bond issues are capital
appreciation bonds. The principal amount of these bonds
appreciates  either  annually or  semi-annually,
compounding on the original principal balance. These
bonds are recorded in the financial statements at their
current appreciated amounts.

Bonds have been issued to provide financing for the
Housing Finance Agency’s housing programs and are
collateralized by: (a) mortgage loans made on the related
developments or single-family residential mortgage loans
purchased, (b) substantially all revenues, mortgage
payments, and recovery payments received by the agency
from mortgage loans made on related developments or (c)
certain accounts, generally debt service reserve funds,
established pursuant to the indenture authorizing issuance
of the bonds.

A summary of Housing Finance Agency’s debt service
requirements to maturity for principal and interest is
shown in Table 26.

Table 26 - Housing Finance Agency Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total
2007 § 33315 b 58,717 § 92,032
2008 43,507 56,640 100,147
2009 14,950 55,511 70,461
2010 5,165 55,174 60,339
2011 4,428 54,981 59,409
2012-2016 38,910 268,439 307,349
2017-2021 41,720 258,950 300,670
2022-2026 114,520 240,251 354,771
2027-2031 65,309 210,972 276,281
2032-2036 169,809 180,279 350,088
2037-2041 95,498 137,757 233,255
2042-2046 135,204 105,359 240,563
2047-2051 52,028 78,684 130,712
2051-2056 280,974 61,439 342,413
Subtotal 1,095,337 1,823,153 2,918,490
Unamortized Bond Premium, net 8,412 - 8,412
Total $ 1,103,749 $ 1,823,153 $ 2,926,902
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B. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Certificates of Participation

In 2002, the Certificates of Participation (COPs)
obligations were issued under an Indenture of Trust
between Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company (the
"Lessor") and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. (the
"Trustee”). The District agreed in the Lease Agreement to
make lease payments (the "Lease Payments"), which are
expected to be sufficient to pay the principal of and
interest on the Certificates. The District has
approximately $46.4 million of outstanding Certificates of
Participation issued by a trust in 2002 with a final
maturity of 2013. The 2002 COPs were used to finance
the acquisition of certain real property located at 441
Fourth Street, N.W., in the District. The debt service
requirements on these COPs are included in capital leases
payable (See Note 13C).

In 2003, the Certificates of Participation (COPs)
obligations were issued under an Indenture of Trust
between Wells Fargo Delaware Trust Company (the
"Lessor") and Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. (the
"Trustee”). The District has approximately $66.4 million
of outstanding Certificates of Participation issued by a
trust in 2003 with a final maturity of 2023, as shown in
Table 27A. The 2003 COPs were used to provide funds
to finance a portion of the design and construction of a
public safety and emergency preparedness
communications and command center and a portion of the
design, construction and installation of a high-speed
telecommunications network. In each case, the District’s
payment obligations are subject to and dependent upon
both inclusion of sufficient funds in annual District
budgets and annual appropriations being made by the
United States Congress for such purpose.

In 2006, a COPs obligation was issued under an Indenture
of Trust between M&T Trust Company of Delaware (the
“lessor’) and Manufacturers and Traders (the
“Trustee”). The aggregate principal amount of this
issuance was $211.7 million which will be used to fund
the Saint Elizabeth and DMV Projects’ as shown in Table
26B. The proceeds of the certificates will be used to
fund a portion of the cost of the design and construction
of the Hospital, which is estimated to cost approximately
$208 million. Of this amount, $184.2 million will be
financed with the proceeds of the certificates and interest
carning thereon. In addition, the certificates will be used
to fund the purchase of the DMV Building from its
current owner for approximately $15.3 milhon and
approximately $3.1 million of improvements to include:
improved parking, window replacement, eclevators, a

loading dock and providing access to the adjacent
inspection facility.

The weighted average interest rate yield on these COPs is
4.97%.

Table 27A - Summary of Debt Service Requirements
for COP- Public Safety Communications Center

Emergency Preparedness Communications Center &

Related Technology
(COP)

Year Ending

September 30 Principal  Interest Total
2007 $§ 2635 $ 3,168 § 5,803
2008 2,735 3,063 5,798
2009 2,850 2,949 5,799
2010 2,960 2.840 5,800
2011 3,100 2,703 5,803
2012-2016 17,855 11,149 29,004
2017-2021 23,215 5,785 29,000
2022-2023 11,070 532 11,602
Total $ 66,420 § 32,189 § 98,609

Table 27B - Summary of Debt Service Requirements
for COP- St Elizabeth/ DMV Building

St Elizabeth/DMYV Building

(cop)

Year Ending

September 30 Principal  Interest Total
2007 $ 4685 § 12,133 § 16,818
2008 6,670 10,149 16,819
2009 7,010 9,807 16,817
2010 7,370 9,447 16,817
2011 7,750 9,069 16,819
2012-2016 45,240 38,853 84,093
2017-2021 58,500 25,604 84,104
2022-2026 74,455 9,642 84,097
Total $211,680 $124,704 $336,384
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LONG-TERM LIABIE.

A summary of changes in other long-term liabilities for governmental activities is shown in Table 28.

Table 28 - Changes in Other Long-Term Liabilities

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
Account 2005 Additions Deductions 2006
Governmental Activities:
Accrued disability compensation (Note 14) $ 210,670 $ 50,046 $ (167,551) $ 93,165
Accumulated annual leave 110,497 23,511 (2,475) 131,533
Claims & judgments (Note 14) 50,734 34,425 (26,283) 58,876
Equipment financing program (Note 13) 53,844 30,167 (23,458) 60,553
Accreted interest 25,669 14,040 (717) 38,992
Capital leases payable (Note 13) 76,390 - (8,448) 67,942
Total $ 527,804 $ 152,189 $ (228,932) $ 451,061
Business-Type Activities:
Obligation for unpaid prizes $ 59,449 $ - $  (6,865) $ 52,584

C. CURRENT & LONG-TERM PORTIONS OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Table 29 presents the current and long-term portions of long-term liabilities.

Table 29 — Current & Long-Term Portions of Long-Term Liabilities

Current Long-Term
Type of Liability Portion Portion Total
Government-Wide Activities:
General Obligation Bonds $ 202,805 $ 3,571,058 $ 3,773,863
Premium on long-term debt 5,484 69,528 75,012
TIF Bonds and Notes 5,115 119,187 124,302
QZAB 433 4,788 5,221
Capital Leases 8,615 59,327 67,942
Tobacco Bonds 5,215 737,069 742 284
Baseball Bonds 6,310 528,490 534,800
Annual leave 76,542 54,991 131,533
Disability compensation 34,035 59,130 93,165
Equipment financing program 19,187 41,366 60,553
Accreted interest 914 38,078 38,992
Claims and judgements - 58,876 58,876
COPs 7,320 270,780 278,100
Total $ 371,975 $ 5,612,668 $ 5,984,643
Business-Type Activities:
Obligation for unpaid prizes $ 8,31 $ 43,953 $ 52,584
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Obligation for Unpaid Prizes

The Lottery is a member of the Multi-State Lottery
Association (MUSL), responsible for payments to Lotto-
America and Powerball winners. MUSL is responsible
for providing cash to the Lottery for funding these
installment payments. As of September 30, 2006, MUSL
purchased for the Lottery, U.S. government securities
totaling $62,875 to fund future installment payments to
winners.

The market value of these securities at September 30,
2006 was $52,584. The Lottery has reflected the market
value of the securities as restricted investments and as
corresponding  obligations for unpaid prizes on the
statement of net assets.

A. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

District full-time employees receive pension benefits
either through the federally administered Civil Service
Retirement System or the District’s Retirement Programs
and the Social Security System.

Plan Descriptions
Civil Service Retirement and Social Security Systems

The Civil Service Retirement System (5 U.S.C. 8331), a
cost sharing multiple employer public employee
retirement system, covers permanent full-time employees
hired before October 1, 1987 (except those covered by the
District Retirement Program).

The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (P. L. 105-33)
mandated an increase in the District’s contribution for
most Civil Service covered employees from 7% to 8.51%
(9.01% for law enforcement officers and firefighters.)
This increase became effective for the first pay period
ended on or after October |, 1997.

District contributions to the pension plans administered
by the federal government, for the years ended September
30, 2006, 2005, and 2004, were as shown in Table 30.
Financial statements for the Civil Service Plan are
available from the U.S. Office of Personnel Management
at Www.opm.gov.

Table 30 - Summary of District Contributions to Federally Administered Pension Plans

Plan Rate Employees

Civil Service 7% 5,491

Social Security 7.65% 25,086
Total

Total Payroll

2006 2005 2004
22,568 $ 24,011 $ 23,363
67,772 63.966 56,406
90,340 $ 87,971 $ 79,769

1,906,173 $  L861,771 $  1,719.073

The District has no further liability to the plans.

District Retirement Programs

The Retirement Board administers the District’s
Retirement Programs (D.C. Code 4-601, 11-1561, 31-
120), which are single employer defined benefit pension
plans, one established for police and firefighters and the
other for teachers.

Each of the two plans provides retirement, death and

disability benefits, and annual cost of living adjustments
to plan members and beneficiariecs. Each pension trust
fund issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial stalements and required supplementary
information. These reports can be obtained from the
District of Columbia Retirement Board, Executive
Director, 900 7th Street, N.W_, 2" Floor, Washington,
D.C. 20001.
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Funding Policy

The Retirement Board establishes, for each pension trust
fund, the contribution requirements of plan members and
the District government. The Retirement Board, when
deemed necessary, may amend these requirements. A
summary of the actuarial assumptions is shown in Table
31.

Members contribute by salary deductions on the basis of a
normal rate of contributions, which is assigned by the
Fund at membership. Members contribute 7% (or 8% for
teachers hired on or after November 16, 1996) of annual

payment for covered District employees for service
accrued after June 30, 1997. The District’s contributions
for fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004 were equal to the
Fund’s independent actuary’s recommendation,

Under P. L. 105-33, the federal government makes annual
contributions to the Police and Firefighters’ Plan and to
the Teachers’ plan on behalf of District employees and
retirees. These on-behalf payments totaled $285,400 for
the year ended September 30, 2006 and have been
reported as intergovernmental revenue. Related
expenditures of $225,466 and $59,934 have been reported
in the public safety and justice and the public education

pay minus any pay received for summer school.
Members may also contribute up to 10% of annual pay
toward an annuity in addition to any vested pension.

systems functions, respectively.

The District is required to contribute the remaining
amounts necessary to finance the coverage of its
employees through periodic contributions at actuarially
determined amounts in accordance with the provisions of
the Replacement Act. The Replacement Act defines the
eligibility and the calculation of the amount of the benefit

Table 31 - Actuarial Assumptions

Police and Fire Teachers
Contribution rates plan members 7% - 8% 7% - 8%
Actuarial valuation date 10/01/04 10/01/04
Actuarial cost method Aggregate*® Aggregate*

Asset valuation method Market value Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases 5% 5%
Inflation rate 5% 5%
Cost of living adjustments 5% 5%

*The aggregate actoarial cost method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities.
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Actuarially Required Contributions

The District made its actuarially required contribution of $117.5 million to the Police and Fire Pension Plan (Table 32) and
$15.5 million to the Teachers Pension Plan (Table 33) during the year ended September 30, 2006.

Table 32 — Police and Fire Pension Plan

Annual Pension Cost (APC) Percentage of APC
Year Ended (millions) Contributed Net Pension Obligation
09/30/06 $ 1175 100% $ 0
09/30/05 112.1 100% 0
09/30/04 96.7 100% 0
Table 33 — Teachers Pension Plan
Annual Pension Cost (APC) Percentage of APC
Year Ended (millions) Contributed Net Pension Obligation
09/30/06 $ 155 100% $ 0
09/30/05 9.2 0
09/30/04 0 0

B. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS
District of Columbia

Under the provisions of D. C. Code 1-627, the District
sponsors a defined contribution pension plan with a
qualified trust under Internal Revenue Code section
401(a) for permanent full-time employees covered under
the Social Security System. Employees do not contribute
to the plan and are eligible to participate after one year of
service. The District contributes 5% of base salaries for
eligible employees each pay period. This contribution
rate is 5.5% of base salartes for detention officers.
Contributions and earnings vest fully after four years of
service  following a  one-year waiting period.
Contributions and earnings are forfeited if separation
occurs before five years of credited service. These
contributions are not considered assets of the District, and
the District has no further liability to this plan. For the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, District
contributions to the plan were $28,691. This plan also
covers employees of the Sports and Entertainment
Commuission, D. C. Housing Authority and Water and
Sewer Authority, while the employees of the Housing
Finance Agency, Washington Convention Center and the
University are covered under their own separate defined
contribution plans.

C. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
Internal Revenue Code Section 403 Plan

The District sponsors an annuity purchase plan (D. C.
Code 31-1252) with insurance companies and other
issuers in accordance with IRC Section 403 for public
teachers covered by the District Retirement Program. The
District does not contribute to this plan and has no
liability to the plan. Under this annuity purchase plan,
eligible employees were able to defer up to $15 of their
annual compensation for calendar year 2006. Employees
with more than fifteen years of service may defer up to
$18 for the calendar year 2006. Also an additional
deferral of $5 was available to participants who were at
least 50 years old before the end of the calendar year.
Contributions vest immediately and are not assets of the
District.

Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Plan

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation
plan (D. C. Code 47-3601) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Employees,
mcluding teachers, were able to defer the lesser of $15 or
100% of includable compensation 1n calendar year 2006.
Also, an additional deferral of $5 was available to
participants who were at least 50 years old before the end
of the calendar year. Compensation deferred and income
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eamed are taxable when paid, or made available to the
participant or beneficiary, upon retirement, death,
termination, or unforeseeable emergency. Contributions
are not assets of the District, which has no further liability
to the plan.

Reserved and unreserved at September 30, 2006 are shown in Table 34a.

Table 34a - Schedule of FY 2006 Reserved and Unreserved Fund Balance

Federal & General Baseball Nonmajor
Private Capital Capital Governmental
General Fund Resources Improvement Project Funds

Reserved
Long term assets $ 8,177 $§ 13444 § - $ - $ -
Emergency/contingency cash 293,649 - - - -
Bond escrow 262.640 - - - -
Capital Lease Payment 16,822 - - - -
PAYGO Capital 87,987 - - - -
Other Post Employment Benefits 5,000 - - - -
Subsequent year's expenditures 88,343 - - - -
Inventory 9,640 4,982 - - -
Budget 51,670 - - - -
Purpose restrictions 216,632 142,884 - - -
Charter School Enroliment Expansion 5,000 - - - -
Capital projects - - 396,820 328,581 -
Tobacco settlement - - - - 95,350
Tax increment financing - - - - 15,245
Baseball - - - - 49 973
Highway projects - - - - 7,201
Total Reserved Fund Balances 3 1,045560 $ 161,310 $ 396820 $ 328,581 $ 167,769
Unreserved
Designated:

Other post employment benefits $ 41,473 § - $ - $ - $ -

School Modernization 73,784 - - - -

Other Special purposes 136,320 - - - -
Undesignated 138,005 - - - -
Total Unreserved Fund Balances $ 389,582 § - 3 - $ - $ -
Total Fund Balances $ 1435142 $ 161310 $ 396,820 $ 328581 $ 167,769
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Net assets at September 30, 2006 are shown in Table 34b.

Table 34b - Schedule of FY 2006 Net Assets

Unemployment Lottery Nonmajor
Compensation & Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Games Fund Funds

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets $ - 8 382 §$ 17,009 § -
Restricted for worker's compensation 347,938 - - -
Restricted for future benefits - - - 3,661,860
Unrestricted - 3,319 25,681 -
Total Net Assets $ 347938 $ 3,701 § 42,690 $ 3,661,860

“NOTE 11. JOINT VENTURE '~

Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority

The Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority
(WMATA) was created by Interstate Compact by and
between Maryland, Virginia and the District of Columbia,
pursuant to Public Law 89-774. The District’s
commitment or obligation to provide financial assistance
to WMATA s established by annual appropriations, as
approved by Congress. The District supports the Transit
Authority through operating, debt service and capital
grants. The District places the amounts to be provided to
WMATA in an escrow account until such time when the

funds are drawn down for use by WMATA. Operating
grants may be in the form of operating and interest
subsidies. WMATA records the District’s operating
grants as advanced contributions when received and as
nonoperating revenues when the related expenses are
incurred. 'WMATA recognizes the District’s capital
grants as additions to construction in progress and
investment in capital assets when the grant resources are
expended for capital acquisitions. A summary of the
grants provided to WMATA during the year ended
September 30, 2006 is shown in Table 35.

Table 35 - Summary of Grants Provided to WMATA

Account

Operating grants
Debt service grants
Capital grants

Amount

$ 173,521

14,093

44 579

Total § 232,193

The WMATA issues scparate audited financial statements that can be requested from the Washington Metropolitan Area
Transit Authority, General Manager, 600 5™ Street, NW, Washington, . C. 20001. WMATA is accumulating significant
financial resources and it is not experiencing fiscal stress that could cause additional {inancial benefits to or burden to the

District and other participating government in the future.

92 skH* District of Columbia

FY2006 CAFR



(Dollars in Thousands)

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

'RANSACTIONS WITH THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

A. FEDERAL CONTRIBUTION

In accordance with the National Capital Revitalization
and Self-Government Improvement Act of 1997 (Public
Law 105-33), the annual federal payment was repealed
and replaced with a federal contribution to cover special
purpose and other unusual costs imposed on the District
by the federal government. Federal contributions to the
District for the year ended September 30, 2006 totaled
$362,075.

B. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

The District, as the nation’s capital, serves as the
command post and the source of first response to any
national threat or terrorist act against the nation. The
District did not receive any federal payment for
emergency preparedness in fiscal year 2006. In prior
years, these funds were made available to assist the
District to prepare itself and its citizens to more
effectively respond to any threat or possible terrorist
attack. Of the $155,900 received in fiscal year 2002,
$2,614 was spent in fiscal year 2006. As of September
30, 2006, a total amount of $151,030 has been spent.

C. GRANTS

The District participates in a number of federal award
programs, which are funded through formula and project
grants, direct payments for specified and unrestricted use,
food stamps and other pass-through grants and direct and
guaranteed loans.

The federal government also provides capital grants,
which are used for the purchase or construction of fixed

assets. Capital grants are recorded as intergovernmental
revenue in the General Capital Improvements Fund.
Federal grants and contributions are shown by function on
the government-wide financial statements.

D. WATER AND SEWER SERVICES

The District exercises no oversight responsibility over the
Washington Aqueduct, which is owned by the Federal
government and operated by the U. S. Army Corps of
Engineers. Historically, the District issued long-term debt
to finance most of the Aqueduct’s capital facilities and the
Water and Sewer Authority recorded this debt and related
capital costs in its financial statements. In 1997, the
Water and Sewer Authority and the other Northern
Virginia customers entered into an agreement with the
federal government, which provides for the funding of the
Washington Aqueduct’s capital improvement program
directly through borrowings. The Water and Sewer
Authority is now responsible for funding only its portion
of this debt, other related capital projects, and operating
costs calculated as the pro rata share of water purchased.
The Water and Sewer Authority records payments for
capital costs related to the Washington Aqueduct as
purchased capacity. Such costs, which are allocable to
other jurisdictions, but funded by the Water and Sewer
Authority prior to April 1, 1997, are reported as due from
other jurisdictions.

Capital outlays are capitalized and depreciated over 60-
years by the Water and Sewer Authonity. Total capital
outlays including capitalized interest from the U.S.
Treasury draw-downs and pay-as-you-go financing were
$4,895 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.

NOTE 13. LEASES

A. CAPITAL LEASES

The District leases buildings and equipment under various
agreements that are accounted for as capital leases that
have varying terms. Capital lease commitments are
recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital lease payments are classified as current
expenditures 1 the governmental funds. Such
expenditures totaled $12,679 in fiscal year 2006.

Equipment Financing Program

The District began its Master Equipment Lease Purchase
Program (the “Program”) in 1998 to provide tax-exempt
financing for assets with short-term to intermediate-term
useful lives.

As of September 30, 2006, the District has financed
approximately $158 million of its capital equipment needs
through the Program, and has approximately $61 million
in principal outstanding. During the year, the average
interest rate used to finance equipment through the
Program was 4.5%. Payments on the liability are made on
a quarterly basis.
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Equipment procured under this program include such
items as fire apparatus (trucks) and other emergency
medical services equipment (ambulances); trucks and
cranes used by the Department of Public Works; vehicles
used by the Metropolitan Police Department; and other
heavy equipment items.

Table 36 shows the schedule of equipment financing
program payments.

Table 36 — Schedule of Equipment Financing Program Payments

Year Ending September 30 Principal Interest Total

2007 $ 19,187 $ 2343 $ 21,530
2008 15,054 1,607 16,661
2009 12,810 1,001 13,811
2010 9,095 476 9,571
2011 4,407 114 4,521
Total $ 60,553 $ 5541 $ 66,094

B. OPERATING LEASES C. SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE

Operating leases are not recorded in the statement of net
assets. These leases contain various renewal options, the
effects of which are reflected in the minimum lease
payments only if it is considered that the option will be
exercised. Certain other operating leases contain
escalation clauses and contingent rentals that are not
mcluded in the calculation of the future minimum lease
payments. Operating lease expenditures recorded in
governmental funds were $107,221 in 2006.

COMMITMENTS

The present value of future minimum lease payments
under capital leases and minimum lease payments for all
operating leases having non-cancelable terms in excess of
one year at September 30, 2006 are shown in Table 37.

Table 37 - Schedule of Future Minimum Lease Payments

Primary Government

Operating Leases

Capital
Year Ending September 30 Leases Facilities Equipment
2007 $ 12,443 $ 95,622 $ 2,282
2008 10,720 83,701 1,647
2009 10,718 52,345 1,107
2010 10,715 35,953 368
2011 10,714 25,169 25
2012-2016 31,199 50,605 -
2017-2021 - 114 -
Minimum lease payments 86,509 $ 343,509 $ 5,429
Less - imputed interest 18.567
Present value of payments $ 67,942
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4. COMMITMENTS AND CONTIN{

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The District pays all claim settlements and
judgments out of its General Fund resources and reports
all of its risk management activities as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.
There are no non-incremental claims adjustment expenses
included in the liability for claims and judgments. Claims
expenditures and liabilities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements when it is probable
that loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated and in the General Fund when due
and payable. These losses include an estimate of claims
that have been incurred but not reported.

B. GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

The District has received federal grants for specific
purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Claims against these resources are
generally conditional upon compliance with the terms and
conditions of grant agreements and applicable federal
regulations, including the expenditure of resources for
allowable purposes. Any disallowance resulting from an
audit may become a liability of the District. The audits of
these federally assisted programs have not been
conducted for the year ended September 30, 2006. As
such, the District’s compliance with applicable grant and
federal requirements will be assessed and established at
some future date. No accrual has been provided in the
government-wide financial statements because there was
no estimate of the probable cumulative expenditures that
may be disallowed by the granting agencies.

C. LITIGATION

The District i1s named as a party in legal proceedings and
investigations that occur in the normal course of
governmental operations. Although the ultimate outcome
of these legal proceedings and investigations is unknown,
the District is vigorously defending its position in each
case. All amounts in connection with lawsuits m which a
loss is probable have been included in the liability for
claims and judgments at September 30, 2006.

The accrued liability is based on estimates of the
payments that will be made upon judgment or resolution
of the claam. This accrued amount is the minimum
amount in the range of estimates that have the same
probability of occurrence. The sum of excess of the range
of probable losses and the minimum range of losses that

are reasonably possible which are not accrued is estimated
to be $39,533.

A summary of the changes in the accrued liability for
claims and judgments in the government-wide financial
statements is shown in Table 38.

Table 38 - Summary of Changes in Claims and
Judgments Accrual

Description 2006 2005
Liability at October 1 $ 50,734 $ 55513
Incurred claims 34,425 38,340
Less:

claims payments/adjustments (26,283) (43,119)
Liability at September 30 $ 58876 $ 50,734

D. DISABILITY COMPENSATION

The District, through its risk management department,
administers a disability compensation program under Title
XXIII of the District of Columbia Comprehensive Merit
Personnel Act of 1978 (CMPA). This program, which
covers all District employees hired under the authority of
CMPA, provides compensation for lost wages, medical
expenses, and other limited rehabilitation expenses to
eligible employees and/or their dependents, where a
work-related injury or illness results in disability or death.
The benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
present value discounted at 3% of projected disability
compensation is accrued in the government-wide financial
statements.

A summary of changes in this accrual is shown in Table
39.

Table 39 — Summary of Changes in Disability
Compensation Accrual

Description 2006 2005

Liability at October | $ 210,670 $ 266,898
Claims incurred 50,046 23,491
Less-benefit payments/adjustments (167,551) (79,7119
Liability at September 30 3 93,165 § 210,670
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E. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

Objectives:

Part of the District's debt strategy is to have a diversified
portfolio of fixed-rate and variable-rate debt to take
advantage of market fluctuations. In order to manage its
exposure to interest rates, the District has executed
Interest Rate Swap Agreements in connection with
existing or proposed debt issuances as discussed below.

Terms
2004B Swap

On December 8, 2004, the District entered into a series of
floating-to-fixed rate swaps in connection with its
$38,250 million General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004B
("2004B Swap"). The original total notional amount of
the swaps was $38,250 million. Under the terms of the
swaps, scheduled to terminate in 2014, 2015, 2016 and
2020, the District pays fixed-rates of 4.598%, 4.701%,
4.794% and 5.121%, respectively and receives variable
rate payments equivalent to the Consumer Price Index
published monthly by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of
the U.S. Department of Labor (CPI Index). The notional
value of the swap and the principal amount of the
associated debt service begins to decline in fiscal year
2014.

2002D Swap

On October 31, 2002, the District entered into a floating-
to-fixed rate swap in connection with its $124,995
Multimodal General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2002D ("2002D Swap"). The original notional amount of
the swap was $124,995. Under the terms of the swap,
scheduled to terminate in 2031, the District pays a fixed-
rate of 3.617% and receives variable rate payments
equivalent to the Bond Market Association Municipal
Swap Index (BMA) until December 1, 2004 and at 67%
of LIBOR thereafter. The notional value of the swap and
the principal amount of the associated debt service begins
to decline in fiscal year 2015,

2002B Swap

On October 15, 2002, the District entered into a floating-
to-fixed rate swap in connection with its $224 300
Multimodal General Obligation Bonds, Secries 2002B
("2002B Swap™). The original notional amount of the
swap was $224.300. Under the terms of the swap,
scheduled to terminate in 2027, the District pays a fixed-
rate of 3.615% and receives variable rate payments
equivalent to BMA until December 1, 2004 and at 67% of
LIBOR thereafter. The notional value of the swap and the

principal amount of the associated debt service begins to
decline in fiscal year 2020.

2001C/D Swap

On December 6, 2001, the District entered into a floating-
to-fixed rate swap in connection with its $214,155
Multimodal General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001C and
its $69,715 Multimodal General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2001D ("2001C/D Swap"). The original
notional amount of the swap was $283,870. Two firms,
Bear, Steams & Co. Inc. ("Bear Stearns") and UBS
PaineWebber, Inc. ("UBS PaineWebber"), negotiated the
split of this swap transaction. As a result, Bear Stearns
and UBS PaineWebber received 62.5% and 37.5% of the
notional amount of the swap, respectively. Under the
terms of the swap, scheduled to terminate in 2029, the
District pays a fixed-rate of 4.004% and receives variable
rate payments equivalent to BMA until June 2, 2003 and
at 67% of LIBOR thereafter. The notional value of the
swap and the principal amount of the associated debt
service began to decline in fiscal year 2003.

On June 2, 2003, the District entered into an enhanced
interest rate swap agreement for the 2001C/D Bond issue
("2001C/D Enhanced Swap"). Based on the 2001C/D
Enhanced Swap, the District pays the counterparty 67%
of LIBOR and the counterparty pays the District a
variable rate as a percentage of the actual LIBOR reset
each month. The purpose of this swap is to reduce the
basis risk to the District by providing a closer match
between the District underlying variable rate bonds and
the variable rate swap receipt from the counterparty. Only
the net difference in interest payments is actually
exchanged between the counterparties.

1992A/2001A Swap

On March 26, 1992, the District entered into a floating-to-
fixed rate swap in connection with its $299,800 General
Obligation Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 1992A
("1992A/2001A Swap"). The 1992A Bonds were
refunded by the District's $114,150 Multimodal General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2001A. The original
notional amount of the swap was $299,800. Under the
terms of the swap, scheduled to terminate in 2007, the
District pays a fixed-rate of 6.02% and receives variable
rate payments equivalent to the J.J. Kenny Index. The
notional value of the swap and the principal amount of the
associated debt service began to decline in fiscal year
1992,

96 A District of Columbia

FY2006 CAFR



Financial Section

Notes to the Basic Financial Statement

Fair Market Value

As of September 30, 2006, the 2004B, 2002D, 2002B,
2001C/D and 1992A/2001A Swaps ("Swaps") had fair
market values as shown in Table 40:

Table 40 — Swap Fair Market Values

Swaps Fair Market Values

2004B Swaps $ (93D
2002D Swap (2,385)
2002B Swap (3,075)
2001C/D (Enhanced Swap) (3,598)
2001C/D (Bear Stearns) (8,080)
2001C/D (UBS PaineWebber) (4,928)
2001A (173)

Total $ (23,170)

The market value was provided by the counterparty to
each respective swap and confirmed by the District’s
Financial Advisor, Phoenix Capital Partners, LLP.

Credit Risk

The swaps' fair market value represents the District's
obligation to the counterparties if the swaps were
terminated. As of September 30, 2006, the District is not
exposed to any credit risk because the swaps have a
negative fair value. Should the counterparty to these
transactions fail to perform according to the terms of the
swaps' contracts, the District faces a maximum possible
loss equivalent to the swaps' fair market value $(23,170)
in aggregate. Standard & Poor's and Moody's rated
counterparty to each swap as of September 30, 2006 1s
presented in Table 41.

Table 41 — Swaps Counterparty Credit Ratings

Swap Counterparty Credit Rating
2004B Bear Stearns Capital Markets A/Al

2002D ILehman Brothers A/A2
2002B Morgan Stanley A+/Aa3
2001C/D Bear Stearns Financial
Products AAA/Aaa
2001C/D  UBS Paine Webber AA+/Aa2
2001C/D  Bear Stecarns Financial AAA/Aaa
Products
2001A Merrill Lynch A+/Aa3

Basis Risk

The District is subject to basis risk if the variable payment
recetved from the counterparty does not equal the rate on
the bonds.

Termination Risk

The District or the counterparty may terminate the swap if
the other party fails to perform under the terms of the
contract. The swap uses the International Swap Dealers
Association Master Agreement, which includes standard
termination events. The Schedule to the Master
Agreement defines an "additional termination event."
That is, the swap may be terminated if the counterparty or
its Credit Support Provider, or the District has one or
more outstanding issues of rated unsecured, unenhanced
senior debt and none of such issues has a rating of at least
(i) Baa3 or higher as determined by Moody's Investors
Service, Inc., (ii) BBB- or higher as determined by
Standard & Poor's Ratings Service, A Division of the
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. or (iii) an equivalent
investment grade rating determined by a nationally
recognized rating service acceptable to both parties.

Swap Payments and Associated Debt

Using interest rates as of September 30, 2006, principal
and interest requirements of the fixed-rate debt and net
swap payments are shown in Table 42. As rates vary, net
swap payments will vary. As the principal on the variable
rate bonds mature, the swaps' notional amount likewise
diminishes, or amortizes as well.

FY2006 CAFR
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OMMITMENTS AND

Table 42 — Swaps Interest Requirements

Governmental Activities

General Obligation

Interest Rate

Primary Government Principal Interest Swaps, Net Total
Year Ending September 30
2007 $ 12,385 23,843 $ 1,508 $ 37,736
2008 13,040 23,385 1,346 37,771
2009 7,350 23,021 1,246 31,617
2010 7,635 22,759 1,214 31,608
2011 7,945 22,487 1,181 31,613
2012-2016 99,255 103,809 5,048 208,112
2017-2021 163,975 83,671 3,796 251,442
2022-2026 286,690 42,555 1,789 331,034
2027-2031 60,135 3,844 147 64,126
Total $ 658,410 349,374 $ 17,275 $ 1,025,059

F. DEBT SERVICE DEPOSIT AGREEMENTS

The District entered into debt service deposit agreements
effective through 2014 that exchanged future cash flows
of certain special tax fund escrow accounts for a fixed
amount received by the District upon entering into the
agreements, thus increasing the predictability of cash
flows from the earnings on escrow account investments.

Upon early termination of an agreement and depending
upon the then current interest rates, a termination amount
may be owed by the District. At September 30, 2006,
unearned revenue of $3,015 related to this agreement is
recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

-~ ++-"*NOTE. 15. SUBSEQUENT

CVENTS

A. TAX REVENUE ANTICIPATION NOTES

The District issued $300,000 in Tax Revenue Anticipation
Notes (TRANs) on December 21, 2006. The note is a
short term financing method used to provide for seasonal
cash flow needs, and the proceeds were used to finance
general governmental expenses of the District in
anticipation of the collection or receipt of revenues for
fiscal year 2007.

The TRANs are general obligations of the District,
secured by the District’s full faith and credit, and payable
from available revenues, mcluding tax revenues, of the
District.  Operational and other disbursement costs are
covered by the TRANs proceeds until periodic taxes,
grants and other revenues are received. The notes were
issued as fixed-rale notes with an interest rate of 4.25%,
priced to yield 3.5%, and will mature on September 28,
2007.

B. CAPITOL HILL TOWERS TIF NOTE

On December 20, 2006, the District released the tax
mcrement financing (TIF) note of the Capitol Hill Towers
from escrow. Henceforth, the District will assume the
debt and thus record it as its obligation. The face amount
of the note is $10 million. The note matures on January 1,
2029 with interest rate of 7.5% compounded semiannually
on unpaid principal.

C. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

On November 9, 2000, the agency issued single family
revenue bonds Series 2006 D, E & F for $102.1 million.
On November 12, 2006, the agency issued multifamily
housing revenue bonds of $4.13 million for Azeeze Bates
Apartments. On December 11, 2000, the agency issued
multifamily housing revenue bonds of $11 million for
Eastgate family. On December 14, 2006, the agency
issued multifamily housing revenue bonds of $10.34
million for Wesley House.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
This subsection includes the combining and individual fund statements and schedules for the following:
General Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Fiduciary Funds

Supporting schedules
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Financial Section

another fund.

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources that are not required to be accounted for in
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Financial Section General Fund
Exhibit A-1
GENERAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals at September 30, 2005)
2006 2005
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (unrestricted) 362,193 § 492,533
Investments 5,000 -
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes 274,748 256,779
Accounts 96,696 75,258
Intergovernmental 9,966 9,328
Due from component units 4,762 5,846
Interfund 645,351 873,788
Inventories 9,640 11,613
Other current assets 2,612 -
Cash and cash equivalents (restricted) 783,705 632,950
Investments (restricted) 28,782 -
Total current assets 2,223,455 2,358,095
Long Term Assets:
Loans 8,177 7,872
Total assets 2,231,632 § 2,365,967
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Payables:
Accounts 400,617 $ 416,580
Compensation:
Salaries and wages 116,716 79,798
Employee benefits 610 132
Payroll taxes 12,561 7,942
Other deductions 3,226 4,025
Due to component units 20,535 23,630
Interfund 11,668 4,887
Accrued liabilities:
Grant disallowances 11,529 9,663
Medicaid 46,984 59,172
Tax refunds 54,534 51,480
Deferred revenue:
Property taxes 78,001 69,518
Other 31,982 28,885
Other current liabilities 7,527 25,572
Total liabilities 796,490 781,284
Fund Balance:
Reserved 1,045,560 1,110,770
Unreserved 389,582 473,913
Total fund balance 1,435,142 1,584,683
Total liabilities and fund balance 2,231,632 $ 2,365,967
See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report
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Financial Section

Exhibit A-2
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2005)
(3000s)
2006 2005
Revenues:
Taxes $ 4472845 § 4,251,191
Licenses and permits 81,222 82,093
Fines and forfeits 112,919 111,146
Charges for services:
Public 122,865 116,321
Intergovernmental 8,214 1,598
Interfund - 15,050
Miscellangous:
Public 290,352 232,193
Investment income 63,655 34,867
Total revenues 5,152,072 4,844,459
Expenditures:
Current:
Governmental direction and support 499,289 472,984
Economic development and regulation 218,210 175,664
Public safety and justice 896,460 805,903
Public education system 1,177,362 1,082,129
Human support services 1,532,296 1,259,122
Public works 176,027 164,012
Public transportation 187,615 165,303
Debt service:
Principal 193,715 173,361
Interest 181,590 164,980
Fiscal charges 18,514 9,277
Total expenditures 5,081,078 4.472,735
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 70,994 371,724
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Debt issuance 133,937 4,935
Premium on sale of bonds 18,232 -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent (117,925) -
Other charges (4,216) -
Proceeds from capital lease - 19
Transfers in 91,675 91,553
Transfers out (342,238) (98,563)
Total other financing sources (uses) (220,535) (2,056)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (149,541) 369,668
Fund Balance at October 1 1,584,683 1,215,015

Fund Balance at September 30
See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

$

1,435,142 $ 1,584,683
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Financial Section General Fund

Exhibit A-3
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND NET FINANCING (SOURCES) USES
FUNCTION AND OBJECT -GAAP BASIS
Year Ended September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2005)
($000s)
Personal Contractual Miscel- Totals
Function and Subfunction Services Services Supplies Occupancy laneous * 2006 2005
Governmental Direction and Support:
Legislative 5 14275 § 693 $ 82 % 236 $ 3,691 § 18,977 $ 14,921
Executive 56,825 45,265 444 4,835 18,500 125,869 99,972
Finance 71,073 32,511 667 11,196 92,277 207,724 220,844
Personnel 11,626 16,431 239 2,064 306 30,666 25,959
Administrative 35,902 31,702 725 13,015 28,672 110,016 105,670
Elections 3,672 1,594 78 447 246 6,037 5618
Total 193,373 128,196 2,235 31,793 143,692 499,289 472,984
Economic Development
and Regulation:
Community development 11,929 9,714 257 2,841 66,084 91,425 70,013
Economic regulation 47,051 14,845 583 10,126 5,444 78,049 65,416
Employment services 12,843 5,535 202 8,542 21,614 48,736 40,235
Total 71,823 30,094 1,042 21,509 93742 218210 175,664
Public Safety and Justice:
Police 397,663 48,400 6,375 15,119 87,186 554,743 490,509
Fire 143,563 5,573 3,101 4,055 34,109 190,401 179,783
Corrections 62,521 64,081 3,441 5,340 700 136,083 124,135
Protection 5,069 2,047 47 1,752 388 9,303 7,546
Law 4,480 225 72 405 398 5,580 3,622
Judicial 278 61 5 2 4 350 308
Total 613,574 120,387 13,041 26,673 122,785 896,460 805,903
Public Education System:
Schools 518,157 61,900 15611 46,854 479,337 1,121,859 1,037,737
Culture 25,972 6,174 627 2,877 19,853 55,503 44,392
Total 544,129 68,074 16,238 49,731 499,190 1,177,362 1,082,129
Human Support Services:
Health and welfare 249,045 216,379 11,333 56,628 762,794 1,296,179 1,169,522
Human relations 3,804 1,999 68 248 14,535 20,654 20,078
Employment benefits - - - - 171,807 171,807 34211
Recreation 29,719 6,315 904 4,894 1,824 43,656 35311
Total 282,568 224,693 12,305 61,770 950,960 1,532,296 1,259,122
Public Works 87,962 61,337 4617 14 877 7,234 176,027 164,012
Public Transportation - - - - 187,615 187,615 165,303
Debt Service - - - - 393,819 393 819 347,618
Net Financing Uses - - - - 220,535 220,535 2,056
Total expenditures and net sources $ 1,793429 § 632,781 $ 49478 § 206,353 $ 2619572 % 5,301,613 $ 4,474,791

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.

* This column includes transfers, subsidies and other payments totaling $2,097,872.
Transfersto:  Convention Center [$79,410], Charter Schools [$227,190], UDC [$61,266], Baseball [$37,026],
PAYGO [$265,023], TIF [$13,214], DC Contribution to Retirement Pension Plan for Police, Fire &
Teachers [$132,931], Mass Transit [$187,615], Other Post Employment Benefits [$138,000], Housing
Production [$57,412], Motor Fuel [$24,960], Other [$685]
Payments for: Medicaid & Other Human Support Services [$751,161], Special Education [$121,979]
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General Fund Financial Section
Exhibit A-4
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF LOCAL SOURCE REVENUES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)
Variance
Budget Positive
Source Original Revised Actual (Negative)
Taxes:
Property:
Real $ 1,167,616 1,109,118 1,152,143 43,025
Personal 54,549 54,549 55,548 999
Total 1,222,165 1,163,667 1,207,691 44,024
Sales and use:
General 796,000 792,549 775,366 (17,183)
Alcoholic beverages 4,692 5,013 5,070 57
Cigarette 20,903 20,238 22,993 2,755
Motor vehicles 44,534 44,359 42,563 (1,796)
Total 866,129 862,159 845,992 (16,167)
Income and franchise:
Individual income 1,091,884 1,218,705 1,233,602 14,897
Corporation franchise 196,133 220,000 215,283 4,717
Unincorporated business 103,328 126,999 142,598 15,599
Total 1,391,345 1,565,704 1,591,483 25,779
Gross receipts:
Public utility 145,539 146,816 144,801 (2,015)
Toll telecommunication 45,852 51,445 54,556 3,111
Insurance companies 44,500 51,600 51,495 (105)
Health care providers 11,000 - - -
Total 246,891 249,861 250,852 991
Other;
Deed recordation 179,052 159,248 169,024 9,776
Deed transfers 125,392 126,815 113,509 (13,306)
Inheritance and estate 21,420 21,420 30,125 8,705
Economic interests 4,500 8,000 30,274 22,274
Total 330,364 315,483 342,932 27,449
Total taxes 4,056,894 4,156,874 4,238,950 82,076
Licenses and Permits:
Business licenses 33,324 37,221 42,443 5,222
Nonbusingss permits 33,146 31,187 29,741 (1,446)
Total 66,470 68,408 72,184 3,776
Fines and Forfeits 114,901 110,637 112,456 1,819
Charges for Services:
Right of way - - 35 33
Other 44,173 50,513 47,591 (2,922)
Total 44,173 50,513 47,646 (2,867)
Miscellaneous:
Interest 11,516 38,000 52,628 14,628
Other 76,760 47,668 77,037 29,369
Total 88,276 85,668 129,665 43,997
Total local revenues 4,370,714 4,472,100 4,600,901 128,801
Transfers and Other sources:
General obligation bonds 40,000 40,000 10,494 (29,506)
Fund balance released from restrictions 466,930 504,439 504,439 -
Interfund transfer 73,100 72,000 73,800 1,800
Total transfers and other sources 580,030 616,439 588,733 (27,706)
Total Local Revenues and Sources § 4,950,744 5,088,539 5,189,634 101,095

See Accompanying Independent Auditors

' Report.

FY2006 CAFR

District of Columbia % 105



YAV 900244 piquinjo) fo o1asIq KKK 901

saoday saojpny mapuadapu] Suduodwosdy 208

€17'062 wrste 6P6PE £LT] 69K 701 691°701 - - YrO'88 T £66'2T 6v6'pE LT H $35(} pue saunyipuadxy
JIA() S32uN0G puE

SINUIAIY JO $$90XT

£¥1°9€T VS8'EOTS  L66'66FS L8S'96E°C y61°6v1 £1T°L6T  LOPOVY 9IT'LF 6¥6'98 1$9996'% 065 ES0°S 1LY'6V6F $3s(] pue samypuadxy eio]
997t - 997t 987°9¢ ¥69°T - ¥69°'T ¥Z8°€T [723 - F733 5¥°Cl Adsuage [pusunredap-uoN
69C°T - 69T°C 000°0§ - - - - 692°C - 697'C 00008 2A13531 Yse))
- 00081 000°8€1 000'8€1 - - - - - 000'8E1 000°8E1 000°8¢€1 UOHNQGLRUOD YB3 35IRA3 LIS
8 - 3 80721 - - - - g - 8 8071 PUTY UONEZILIZPOW S[00YIS
- £20°9C £20°59C £88'092 - - - - - £20°697 £20'697 £88°097 Jendes 08-Aeg
915} YLEPT 06097 Itb'LZ - - - - 915 PLE VT 060'9T 1¥bLZ Bunerado asea] wawdinby
sy £TH'l 89%°1 - - - - - sy [Ya 89%°1 - Suroueuy JuawWaIoul Xe
- 956°6Z 95667 $59°0T - - - - - 956°6T 95667 $59°0T puny sawawiSpn{ pue sjuwaIAg
65 1+6°01 00011 00011 - - - - 65 17601 00011 00011 uoyedionred jo smeoyma)
- 0599 059'9 005°'s - - - - - 0599 0599 008°S BUIMOLIOQ ULI3) LIOYS UO 3SAINU]
$08'0€ 961°6 000°0Y 000°0F - - - - $08°0¢ 961°6 000°0F 000°0¥ a3reyo [easy puog
33 8T1'0LE £91'0LE 8LLOLE - - - - 13 8T10LE £91°0LE 8LL°0LE 1sazonn pue spuoq Aeday
0zz 0£8°E 050y obL's - - - - 0zz 0€8°C 0s0'y opL'e Sutp|ing uos[IM
7956 - 7956 o119 - - - - 7956 - 79¢°6 011’9 SIUIUBSIAUL I2I0PHIOM
6L2°01 86L°€9¢ LLO'YLE 101°99¢ $69'L 9TS 1Y ITT6r LZL'6y ¥85°'T LTI 9$8bIE pLEDGTE SY10M 2t[qng
08Z%Z SLS'68E'T  SSR'EIP'T 0£6°L0€'] 706'L1 zI0'cE ¥16'0S p$8Ee 8L£'9 £96°9G€°] 1P6°T9E' 9L9°ELT s20tA13s woddns weumy
- ¥90°69 $90°69 - - - - - - ¥90°69 ¥90°69 - amupuadxa LOAY BOTEINPa dqng
6¥8°81 SE9TIONT  88F'0ZII £0E'681°1 018°L P68'c YoL Tl YOL 1T 6£0°11 SPLLED'T ¥8L°801°1 665°LLT'l WAISAS UOLIEINPA D1jqRd
8678 8FL V68 9¥0°€06 9£0°LT8 8LY'T ELL'YS 1STLS 1§T°LS 0z8°s SLE'6ER S6L'SH8 S8L6L sonsnf puz Aajes angng
796'601 oL 1ST vTL 19 851°'87¢ 900°€01 POS'EEE  OLS'9ET 675'97T 956°9 861811 pe1szl 629°101 uoye[n3al pue JUIWdo|3A3p SIUIOU0SY
169°91 LS EEE 8ET05€E 858'0PE 609°L (2401 £50'8¢ LTTPE 780°6 £01°€0€ $8I°T1E 1£9°96T Hoddns pue UOLIAIIP [EIUSURLIIACS
:8381) pus sarnypuadxyg
0L0YS 910685 IF6YES'S 098'L6€'S (sTo'Lr) TSEG6E  LOVOFY 9TI1'Lby $60°101 VE9'681°S 6€5°880°C YL 0S6'Y SIOMOS PUB SINUIAIY [30L
008°F 008°EL 000°ZL 001°¢L - - - - 008°1 008'¢L 000°ZL 001°€L I2)SUBH pUnpINI]
- (432 743 ZEp'RTE LE0°9Y9 - £66'€T £66'CT LOT'6L1 - 3247119 6EY'POS 0£6°99¥ SUONOLOS3I WL Paseafal 3oue[eq pumj
(505°62) verol 0000 000°0Y - - - - (905°67) yev'o1 000°0F 000°0¥ SPU0Q UOUEBIQO [2IUIL
(sz0'ty) 68€'SLE (At a4 600897 (szo'Lr) 68E°SLE  YIY'ITY 600897 - - - - Q0
LEG'ED £99°6Z1 8958 9L7'88 - - - - LE6'EY $99'6Z1 899°¢8 9L7'88 SMOJUEB)I3ISIN
(L98°D) 9Ly £Is'os LYY - - - - (£98°7) 9Ly £15°08 £LI'pY SADIAISS 10) SaBIRYD)
6181 9SHTIL LESOTI 106'%11 - - - - 6181 95H T LE9'0T1 106711 SU3}0J PUE S3UTY
9LL'E P8I°TL 80589 0LP'99 - - . - 9LL'E ¥81°TL 80789 0LP'99 sywad pue sasusor]
9L0°78 0S6'BETY  PLEISI'Y $68°950' - - - - 9L0°Z8 056'8£C'Y PL8'9STY $68°950' SIXEY [BI0]
0v¥'8T ¥BLEGS PrETS9s SSTLLS - - - - 0rP'8T Y8LE6S PrE'SOS SSTLLS saxes 1210 pue s1diaso1 ss010)
6LL'ST £8Y°165°1 YOL'$95"1 SPET6E'T - - - - 6LL'ST £87765°1 POL'S9S"1 SPET6E'T ISIYOUBY pue JWOU]
(Lot'ol) T66°5h8 651798 671998 - - - - (Lot'91) 66'5H8 6$1'798 671998 SIS pue 53k
yTO'th 1690071 £99°€91°1 $91°72T°t - - - - ¥y 169°L0T°1 £99°€91°Y £91°72T'1 S Kpadorg
saxe]
i$324N0G PUE SINUIAIY
DUBLIBA JenpRy 133png 128png dUBUEA Jenzoy 19dpng 13png NUBLIBA |enpy 193png yadpng
pastasy pasiaay reuidug pasisey L= Te]
s[e30], 32N0S PYIQ 931n0g B0

(s000%)
9002 ‘0f 3quaidag papuy JedL
SANNA 30 FDUNO0S A STANLIANIIXT ANY SANNIATY SISVE AYVLADANG 40 I 1TATHDS
aNNd TVIANID

pun.j p2usn HONDI3S JOIoUDUILL]



General Fund Financial Section

Exhibit A-6
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)
Variance
(Actual To
Original Revised Original
Budget Revisions Budget Actual Budget)
Revenues and Sources:
Taxes:
Property $ 1,222,165 (58,498) 1,163,667 1,207,691 (14,474)
Sales and use 866,129 (3,970) 862,159 845,992 (20,137)
Income and franchise 1,391,345 174,359 1,565,704 1,591,483 200,138
Other taxes 577,255 (11,911) 565,344 593,784 16,529
Total taxes 4,056,894 99,980 4,156,874 4,238,950 182,056
Licenses and permits 66,470 1,938 68,408 72,184 5,714
Fines and forfeits 114,901 (4,264) 110,637 112,456 (2,445)
Charges for services 44,173 6,340 50,513 47,646 3,473
Miscellaneous 88,276 (2,608) 85,668 129,665 41,389
Other 268,009 154,405 422,414 375,389 107,380
General obligation bonds 40,000 - 40,000 10,494 (29,5006)
Fund balance released from restriction 646,037 (117,605) 528,432 528,432 (117,605)
Interfund transfer 73,100 (1,100) 72,000 73,800 700
Total Revenues and Sources 5,397,860 137,086 5,534,946 5,589,016 191,156
Expenditures and Uses:
Governmental direction and support 340,858 9,380 350,238 333,547 7,311
Economic development and regulation 328,158 33,566 361,724 251,762 76,396
Public safety and justice 827,036 76,010 903,046 894,748 (67,712)
Public education system 1,189,303 (68,815) 1,120,488 1,101,639 87,664
Public education AY07 expenditure - 69,064 69,064 69,064 (69,064)
Human support services 1,307,530 106,325 1,413,855 1,389,575 (82,045)
Public works 366,101 7,976 374,077 363,798 2,303
Workforce investments 61,110 (51,548) 9,562 - 61,110
Wilson building 3,740 310 4,050 3,830 (90)
Repay bonds and interest 370,778 (615) 370,163 370,128 650
Bond fiscal charge 40,000 - 40,000 9,196 30,804
Interest on short term borrowing 5,500 1,150 6,650 6,650 (1,150)
Certificates of participation 11,000 - 11,000 10,941 59
Settlements and judgments fund 20,655 9,301 29,956 29,956 (9,301)
Tax increment financing - 1,468 1,468 1,423 (1,423)
Equipment lease operating 27,441 (1,351) 26,090 24,574 2,867
Pay-go capital 260,883 4,140 265,023 265,023 (4,140)
Schools modernization fund 12,208 (12,200) 8 - 12,208
District retiree health contribution 138,000 ~ 138,000 138,000 -
Cash reserve 50,000 (47,731) 2,269 - 50,000
Non-departmental agency 36,286 (33,020) 3,266 - 36,286
Total Expenditures and Uses 5,396,587 103,410 5,499,997 5,263,854 132,733

Excess of Revenues
and Sources Over
Expenditures and Uses $ 1,273 33,676 34,949 325,162 323,889

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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Financial Section General Fund
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds Financial Section

NONMAJOR GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

The Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Program Fund is used to account for activities relating to various TIF
development initiatives.

The Tobacco Settlement Financing Corporation (TSFC) Fund is used to account for the tobacco litigation
settlement activities of the District of Columbia.

The Baseball Project Fund under the Special Revenue Funds is used to account for the proceeds of baseball
related revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for baseball project purposes.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of ballpark
revenue bonds.

Capital Project Fund

The Highway Trust Fund is used to account for the motor vehicle fuel taxes and other fees collected and used
by the District for highway projects.

FY2006 CAFR District of Columbia > 109
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Fiduciary Funds Financial Section

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity.
These assets cannot be used to support the District’s programs. The District has the following Fiduciary
Funds:

The Pension Trust Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement
annuity payments at appropriate amounts and times in the future for police officers, fire fighters and public
school teachers of the District. Resources are contributed by employees and by the District and Federal
Government at amounts determined by an annual actuarial study. The funds are administered by a thirteen
member Retirement Board. Three of these members are appointed by the Mayor and three by the Council.
The other members include one each active and retired police officers, fire fighters, and teachers. The
administrative costs of the board are accounted for in the funds.

The Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for the District’s sponsored college tuition savings
plan.

The Agency Funds are used to account for refundable deposits required of various licensees, monies held
in escrow as an agent for individuals, private organizations or other governments.
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Financial Section Fiduciary Funds
Exhibit C-1
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals at September 30, 2005)
(5000s)
Totals
Police and Fire Teachers 2006 2005
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted $ 94,771 § 52,814 § 147,585 $ 329,173
Investments - restricted 2,502,870 1,394,814 3,897,684 3,167,371
Receivables:

Benefit contribution 955 1,630 2,585 -
Other current assets - B - 1,882
Due from other funds 109 61 170 -
Capital assets 51 30 81 136

Total assets 2,598,756 1,449,349 4,048,105 3,498,562

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Payables:

Accounts 14,044 16,483 30,527 23,966

Securities lending 274,501 153,727 428,228 354,912

Due to other funds - N - 4,071

Total liabilities 288,545 170,210 458,755 382,949

NET ASSETS
Net Assets
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 2,310,211 § 1,279,139 § 3,589,350 $ 3,115,613

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Fiduciary Funds Financial Section

Exhibit C-2
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2005)
($000s)
Totals
Police and Fire Teachers 2006 2005
Additions:
Benetit contributions:
Employer $ 117,500 $ 15500 $ 133,000 $ 121,300
Plan members 25,142 25,807 50,949 48,582
Investment income:
From investment activities
Interest and dividends 70,452 37,384 107,836 91,653
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 148,175 86,084 234,259 288,986
Less - investment expenses (7,143) (3,685) (10,828) (8,679)
Net income from investing activities 211,484 119,783 331,267 371,960
From securities lending activities
Securities lending income 13,043 7,121 20,164 9,287
Less: securities lending expenses (12,438) (6,790) (19,228) (8,399)
Net income from securities lending activities 605 331 936 888
Total net investment income 212,089 120,114 332,203 372,848
Total additions 354,731 161,421 516,152 542,730
Deductions:
Administrative expenses 1,817 1,010 2,827 5,999
Benefit payments 15,795 23,793 39,588 34,433
Total deductions 17,612 24,803 42,415 40,432
Change in net assets 337,119 136,618 473,737 502,298
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits:
October 1 1,973,092 1,142,521 3,115,613 2,613,315
September 30 $ 2,310,211 § 1,279,139 § 3,589,350 $§ 3,115,613

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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Financial Section Fiduciary Funds

Exhibit C-3
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)
Balance Balance
October 1 September 30
2005 Additions Deductions 2006
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted $ 134274 § 886,507 § 741,686 $ 279,095
Due from other funds 930 1,709 - 2,639
Other receivables 839 707,830 708,146 523
Total assets $ 136,043 § 1,596,046 $ 1,449,832 § 282257
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 14298 § 246,650 $ 108,394 §$ 152,554
Other current liabilities 121,745 339,280 331,322 129,703
Total liabilities $ 136,043 § 585930 $ 439,716 § 282,257

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.
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Supporting Schedules

Financial Section

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Supporting schedules are financial presentations used to aggregate and present in greater detail information
contained in the financial statements and to present additional information not disclosed in the basic financial

statements.

FY2006 CAFR

District of Columbia

AAA 117




Financial Section Supporting Schedules

Exhibit D-1
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS EXPENDITURES
Year Ended September 30, 2006

($000s)
Budget
Original Revised Actual Variance
Governmental direction and support:
City Council $ 14,039 14,038 13,430 608
DC Auditor 2,009 2,008 1,928 80
Advisory neighborhood commissions 976 981 956 25
Mayor 13,343 14,405 13,468 937
Executive secretary 4.24) 3,534 3,084 450
Citywide call center 353 399 328 n
City administrator 173,296 186,961 106,173 80,788
Risk management 1,865 1,946 1,634 312
Personnel 10,950 11,295 9,198 2,097
Human resource development 2,000 2,038 1,566 472
Finance and resource management 10,630 10,630 9,688 942
Contracts and procurement 12,989 13,324 12,602 722
Chief technology officer 319,422 46,704 46,517 187
Property management 19,551 19,508 15,908 3.600
Contract appeals 806 8438 746 102
Elections and ethics 5,042 7.060 6,502 558
Campaign finance 1,374 1,460 1,354 106
Public employee relations 801 863 767 96
Employee appeals 1,589 1,669 1.578 91
Council of governments 440 440 440 -
Corporation counsel 63,884 64,793 61,000 3,793
Inspector general 12,942 13.324 12,490 834
Chief financial officer 120,291 120,650 120,167 483
Total governmental direction and support 512,833 538,878 441,524 97,354
E i P and r
B services and ic development 42,980 47,981 35,425 12,556
Office of planning 6,673 6,772 6,383 389
Local business development 1,438 2,288 1,698 590
Mouon picture and television development 579 594 336 58
Office of zoning 2902 2,902 2,602 300
Housing and community development 210,710 251,957 151,942 100,015
Alcohelic beverage lati dmini i 4,702 4113 3,158 955
Employment services 90,514 95,362 77.280 18,082
Real property assessment and appeals 43] 431 408 23
Consumer and regulatory affairs 40,145 50,983 41,515 9.46%
C ion on ars & h iti 9,898 9,413 9,158 255
Anacostia waterfront corp - 8,000 8,000 -
Public services commission 7977 10,568 10,417 151
Office of people’s counsel 4306 4,406 4,239 167
Insurance regulation 14,158 14,308 13,157 1,151
Housing authority subsidy 4,003 10,503 10,903 -
Office of cable TV 5,054 6,302 5,385 917
Total economic develop and regulati 446,470 527,283 382,206 145,077
Public safety and justice:
Police 372,089 441215 440,074 1,14}
Fire and emergency medical services 155,900 158,503 157,674 829
Police and firefighter retirement contribution 117.500 117,500 117,500 -
Corrections 130,751 138,036 135,207 2,829
National guard 3,428 3,956 3,207 749
Emergency preparedness 5,495 5,599 5,140 459
Judicial disabilities and tenure 218 227 227 -
Judicial nomination 126 13 122 9
Citizen complaint review board 2,095 2,095 2,082 13
Advisory commission on sentencing 662 662 651 n
Office of the chief medical examiner 9,264 9,240 8,548 692
Office of adminstrative heanngs 5,893 5,893 5,580 313
Corrections information council 155 155 - 155
Criminal justice coordinating council 1,576 1,413 1.34] 72
Forensic heaith and science laboratory 800 800 516 284
Emergency and disaster - 414 - 414
Office of unified communications 31,662 31,696 28,547 3,149
Total public safefy and justice 837,614 917,535 906,416 L1,L19

(Continued)
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Supporting Schedules Financial Section

Exhibit D-1
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS EXPENDITURES
Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)
Budget
Original Revised Actual Variance
Publi¢ education system:
Public schools 979,038 961,127 945,637 15,490
AY07 public school expenditure - 2,943 2,943 -
Teachers' retirement system 15,500 15,500 £5.431 69
State education office 90,987 94,182 84,207 9,975
Public charter schools 239,284 167,076 161,069 6,007
AYO07 public charter school expenditure - 66,121 66,121 -
University 57,873 61,266 61,266 -
Public library 34,153 36,256 35,679 577
District educational investment fund 21,000 - - -
District charter schools investment fund 4,200 1,090 - 1,090
‘Total public education system 1,442,035 1,405,561 1,372,353 33,208
Human support services:
Human development 413818 441752 438374 3,378
Child and family services 192,477 197,927 194,002 3,925
Dept of mental health 186,627 204,062 201,873 2,189
Health 1,720,485 1,783,134 1,670,390 112,744
Recreation and parks 43,890 45,582 44,881 701
Aging 21.1%0 21,592 21,465 127
Unemployment compensation contribution 7125 6,349 5,056 1,293
Empl. disabulity p 1on 30,281 28,751 28,751 -
Human rights 5,032 3519 3,024 495
Children investment trust 8,068 9,249 9,249 -
Latino affairs 3,655 3679 3,652 27
Energy 20,820 21,294 20,864 430
Asian and pacific islander affairs 540 625 606 19
Veterans' affairs 251 292 266 26
Depart of youth rehabilitation services 59,090 69,101 68,157 944
Total human support services 2,713,349 2,836,908 2,710,610 126,298
Public works:
Public works 95,044 102,365 100,633 1,732
Department of transportation 38,791 40,007 38,134 1,873
Department of motor vehicles 46,368 45,828 38,056 7,772
Taxicab commission 1,362 1,389 1,149 240
Washington metropolitan area transit commission 110 1o 110 -
Washington metropolitan area transit authority 187,632 187632 187,615 17
School transit subsidy 5,169 5,169 5,169 -
Total public works 374,476 382,500 370,866 11,634
Other:
Repayment of bonds and interest 370,778 370,163 370,128 35
Bond fiscal charge paid from bond proceeds 40.000 40,000 9,196 30,804
Interest on short term borrowing 5.500 6,650 6,650 -
Certificates of participation 11,000 11,000 10,941 59
Settlements and judgments 20,655 29,956 29,956 -
Emergency planning and security costs - 4,196 4,196 -
Wilson Building 3,740 4,050 3.830 220
‘Workforce investment 61,110 9,562 - 9,562
Tax increment financing - 1,468 1,423 45
Equipment lease operating 27.44) 26,090 24,574 1,516
Pay-go capital 260,883 265,023 265,023 -
Schools modernization fund 12,208 8 - 8
District retiree health contribution 138,000 138,000 138,000 -
Cash reserve 50,000 2,269 - 2,269
Non-departmental agency 36,286 3,266 - 3,266
Storm water 6,673 6,673 - 6,673
R board ad ion 30,078 30,078 17,559 12,519
Housing finance agency - 6,070 - 6,070
National capital revitalization corporation - 52,731 - 52,731
Total other 1,074,352 1,007,253 881,476 125,777
Total budget 5 7,401,129 7,615,918 7,065,451 550,467

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report,
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Financial Section Supporting Schedules
Exhibit D-2
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS OPERATIONS BY SOURCE OF FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2006
($000s)
Tocal Source Federal Source
Original Revised Original Revised
Budget Budget Actual ¥Varinnce Budget Budget Actual Variance
Governmental direction and support:
City Council s 14,039 14,038 13.430 608 - B - -
DC Audilor 2,09 2008 1928 80 - - -
Advisory neighborhood commissions 976 98] 956 25 - . - -
Mayor 7.466 10,983 10,314 669 5,877 324 2,990 251
Executive secretary 3.825 3092 2398 194 - - -
Cnywide call center 353 399 328 71 - - - -
City admisnustrator 8,900 11,927 11,726 201 147,235 163,608 84,948 78,660
Risk management 1.865 1,946 1634 32 - -
Personnel 10,407 14,752 8944 1.808 - - -
Human resource development 2,000 2,038 1.566 472 - - -
Iinance and resource management 9782 9,782 9,688 9 - - -
Contracls and procurement 12,089 12,424 12,076 348 - . - -
Chief technology officer 39,422 46,528 46,515 13 - 176 2 174
Property management 15926 15,784 13,970 1814 - 99 17 82
Conlract appeals 806, 848 746 102 - - - -
Flections and ethics 5.042 5.207 4,684 523 - 1,853 1,818 35
Campaign finance 1,374 1.460 1,354 106 - -
Public employee relations -8 863 767 96 - - - -
Emplayee appeals 1,589 1669 1578 9] - - -
Council of govemments 440 440 440 - - - - -
Corporation counse] 40,805 41,452 0727 735 16,635 16897 15,963 934
Inspector genera) 11,646 11,966 11279 687 1.29% 1358 1,211 147
Chief financial officer 105,069 105,598 105,555 43 932 1,201 846 355
Total governmental direction and support 296,631 312,188 303,103 9,082 171,975 188433 107,795 80638
Ei ke P and reg
Business services and cconomic development 13.681 18,332 16,99 1,336 - 350 137 213
Office of planmng 6,223 6,223 5918 305 450 494 415 79
1.ocal business development 1438 2,288 1,698 590 - - - -
Motion picture and ielevision development 579 594 536 58 - - - -
Office of zoning 2,902 2,902 2,602 300 - - - -
Housing and community development 2031 2,031 1,797 234 84,294 126,541 100,557 25984
Alcoholic beverage regulation administration - - - - - - - -
Employment services 35,208 34,726 31815 2911 32772 37,102 28491 8611
Real property assessment and appeals a3 431 408 2 - - - -
Consumer and regulatory affairs 26,581 28,119 26,982 1,137 - - - -
Commission on arts & humanities 8,552 8,552 8,490 62 546 567 563 4
Anacostia waterfront corp - 8,000 8000 - - -
Public services commission - 2.053 2053 125 175 140 3s
Office of people’s counsel - . - . .
Insurance regulation - - - - -
Housng authonty subsidy 4003 10,903 10.903 . - - - -
Office of cable TV - - - - - - - .
Totwl ic develoy and regulath 101,629 125,154 118,198 6,956 118,187 165,229 130,303 34,976
Public safety and justice:
Police 353,774 418,755 418.560 195 6,154 9,097 8254 843
Fire and emergency medical services 155889 158,039 157.228 811 - 453 446 7
Police and firefighter reurement contnbution 117.500 117,500 17.500 - - - -
Corrections 104,996 112,199 109,832 2,367 - 82 - 82
National guard 2,187 2,488 2,329 159 1241 1,468 878 590
Emergency preparcdness 3621 4411 4377 34 1,874 1,188 763 425
Judicial disabihties and tenure 218 227 227 - - - -
Judicial nominaton 126 131 122 9 - - - -
Citizen complaint review hoard 2095 2,095 2,082 13 - - .
Advisory commission on seniencing 662 662 651 1 - - - -
Office of the Clief Medical Examiner 9129 9,105 8.468 637 - - - -
Oftice of adminstrative hearngs 5710 5710 5,580 130 - - -
Corregnons informauon counci 155 155 - 155 - - - -
Crimunal justice coordimaung council 276 294 275 19 1,300 LO19 992 by
Forensic health and science laboratory 00 800 516 284 - -
Lmergency and disaster - - - - - 414 - 414
Oftice of unified communicauons 12,647 13,224 12,228 996 - - - -
Tatal public safety amd justice 769,785 845,795 839,978 5820 1,569 13,721 11333 2,388
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Supporting Schedules Financial Section

Exhibit D-2
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS OPERATIONS BY SOURCE OF FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2006
(3000s)
Private Grants OTher Source
Original Revised Original Revised
Budget Budget Actual Variance Budget Budget Actual Variance
Governmental directios and support:
City Council s . - . E - : . -
DC Auditor - - - - - - - -
Advisory neighborhood commissions - - . . . - -
Mayor . 181 164 17 . . . .
[ixecutive secretary - 26 18 8 416 416 168 248
Citywide call conter - - - - - - - -
Cay admimstrator - . - - 17.16) 14,426 9,499 1,927
Risk management - - B - . - - -
Personnel - - - - 543 543 254 289
Human resource development - - - - < - - -
Finance and resource management - - - - 848 848 - 848
Contracts and procurement - - g . A0 900 526 374
Chuef technology officer - - - - - - - -
Property management . - - - 31625 3,625 1,921 1,704
Contract appeals - - . - - - - -
Elections and ethies - - - - - - - -
Campaign finance - - - - - - . .
Public employee relations - - - - - - - -
Employee sppeals - - - - - - - -
Council of governments - - - - - - . .
Corporation counsel . . - . 6,444 6.444 4310 2,134
Inspecior general - - - - - - - -
Chief financial oflicer - . - - 14,290 13,851 13,766 85
Total governmental direction wod support - 27 182 25 44,227 38,053 30,444 7,609
E i P and
Business services and econemic development - - . - 29,299 29.299 18,292 11007
Office of planning - 55 50 5 - B - -
Local business development - - . - - - - -
Mation picture and television development - - - - - - . .
Office of zoning - - - B - . . -
FHousing and community development - - - - 124,385 123,385 49,588 73797
Alcohahe beverage regulation administration - - - - 4,702 4,13 3,158 955
Employment services - - - - 22,534 23,534 16,914 6.560
Reul property assessment and appeals - - - - - - - -
Consumer and regulatory affairs - - - - 13,564 22864 14,533 8331
Commission on arts & humanitics - - - - 800 294 105 189
Anacostia waterfront corp - - - . - . . -
Public services commission 125 125 9t 34 77217 8215 8.133 82
Office of people’s counsel - - - - 4,306 4,406 4,239 167
[nsurunce regulation - 150 - 150 14,158 14,158 13,157 1001
Housing authority subsidy - - - - - - - -
Office of cable TV - - - - 5,054 6,302 5,385 917
Total ic develop and lat 125 3 C1] 189 226,529 236,570 133,564 103,46
Public safety and justice:
Police - 353 261 92 12,16) 13,010 12,999 11
Fire and emergency medical services 9 9 - 9 2 2 - 2
Palice and firchighter returement contnbution - - - - - - - -
Conecuons - - - - 25,755 25755 25375 IR0
Nauonpa) guard B - - - - - - -
Emergency preparedness - - - . - . - -
Judicial disabilitics and tenure - - - - - - .
Judicial nemination - - - - - - - -
Citizen complaint review board - - - - - - - -
Advisory commission oa sentencing - - . - - - -
Ofllice of the Chief Medical Examiner - - - - 135 135 RO 55
Office of udminsicative heanings - - - - 183 183 “ 183
Corrections information council . - - - - - - -
Criminal justice coordinating council - 100 74 26 - - - -
Forcnsic health and science laboratory - - - - - - - -
Emergency and disaster - - - - - - - -
Office of unified communications - 306 - 306 19,015 18,166 16,319 1,847
Total public safcty amd justice 9 768 335 433 57251 57,251 54,773 2478
(Continued)
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Financial Section Supporting Schedules

Exhibit D-2
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS OPERATIONS BY SOURCE OF FUNDS
Year Ended September 30, 2006

Local Seurce Federal Source
Original Revised Original Revired
Budget Budget Actual Yarinace Budget Budget Actual Variance

Public education system:
Public schools $ 794,245 816,346 812,830 3516 173347 131,520 123,653 7867

AYO7 public school expenditure - 2,943 2,943 - - - -
Teachers' renrement contribution 15.500 15,500 15,431 69 . - - -
State education office 13,085 13,004 12,684 320 73,609 76,881 71.448 5433
Public charter schools 239.284 167.076 161,069 6,007 - - - -
AY07 public charter school expenditure - 66,121 66.12) . B . . -
University 57873 61,266 61,266 - - - - -
Public library 32412 34,502 34,465 7 1,000 826 826 -
District educational invesiment fund 21,000 - - - - - -
District charter schools investment fund 4,200 1,090 - 1,090 - - - -
Total public education system 1,177,599 1,177,848 1,166,809 11,039 247,956 209,227 195,927 13,00
Humup support services:
Human development 224433 253922 253,856 66 186,385 176,983 176,041 942
Child and famuly services 152,843 166,525 165,874 651 38,470 29814 26,694 3120
Dept of mental health 179,767 196,798 196,723 15 3,052 3,396 2,783 613
Health 546,305 564,728 561,762 2,966 1,149,553 1,184,450 1,088,156 96,294
Recreation and parks 41,349 42771 42,674 97 - 121 [1F] 2
Aging 14744 14808 14.68] 127 6,446 6,784 6,784 -
Unemploy r b 7,125 6,349 5,056 1.293 - - - -
Employee disabilily compensation 30,281 28,751 28,751 - - - - -
Humao rights 2.285 2,399 2322 7 2,747 1,120 02 418
Children investment trust B.O68 9.249 9.249 - - . -
Fanne affairs 3,655 1674 3652 27 . - . -
Energy 2,940 2944 2,934 10 7863 9,683 9488 195
Asan and pacific islander aftairs 540 623 606 19 - - - -
Vewerans' affairs 251 292 266 26 - - - -
Depart of vouth rehabilitation services 59,090 69,101 68,157 Y44 - . - -
Total human support services 1,273,676 1,362,941 1,356,563 6378 1,394,516 1,412,351 1,310,767 101,584
Public worka:
Public works 91,572 97,622 97,588 34 - - - -
Department of transportation - 1.805 1,805 - 8,375 7316 5.961 1355
Department of motor vehicles 31.069 31669 29327 2,342 - 637 637 -
Taxicab commission 822 849 658 K2 - - -
hi politan area transit s 110 110 110 - B - -
Washington metropolitan area transit authority 187,632 187,632 187,615 17 - - -
Schoo transit subsidy 5,169 5,169 5,169 - - - - -
Totul public works 316,374 324856 322,272 2,584 3375 1953 6598 1,358
Other:
Repayment of bonds and interest 370,778 370,163 370,128 35 - - -
Bond fiscal charge paid from bond proceeds 40,000 20,000 9,196 30,804 -
Interest on short ferm borrowing 5.500 6,650 6,650 - - - - -
Cernficates of paricipauon 11,000 11,000 109241 59 - - - -
Sertlements and judgments 20,655 29,956 29,956 - - - - -
Emergency planming and secunty costs . - . - - FRES 4,196 -
Wilson Building 1740 4050 3.830 220 . - - -
Workforce investment 61010 9.562 . 9.562 - - - -
Tax increment financing - 1468 1,423 45 - - - -
Equipment lcase operating 27441 26,090 24574 1516 - - - -
PPay-go capilal 260,883 265023 265,023 - - - -
Schonls modemization fund 12,208 3 - 8 - - . -
District retiree health conwibution 138,000 138,000 138,000 - - - - -
Cush reserve 50,000 2,269 - 2,269 - - - -
Non-deparimental agency 12,462 512 - 5N - - - -
Storm waler - - - - - - - -
Retirement board admimsteation - - - - -
Housing linanee agency - - - - - - - -
National capital revitalization corporation - - - - - - - -
Total other 1,013,777 4811 859,721 45,090 - 4,196 4,196 -
Totul budget 5 4,949,471 5,053,590 4,966,641 86,949 1,951,578 2,001,110 1,766,919 234,191

See Accompanying [ndependent Auditors' Report
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Supporting Schedules

Financial Section

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY BASIS OPERATIONS BY SOURCE OF FUNDS

Year Ended September 30, 2006

Exhibit D-2

($000s)
Privaic Cranis Other Source
Originat Revined Original Revised
Budger Budget Actual Varlance Budget Budget Actua) Variance
Public education system:
Public schools 3 4,666 6,481 5,704 777 6,780 6,780 3,450 3330
AY07 public schoal cxpenditure - - - - - - - -
Teachers' retrement contnbution - - - - - -
State education office - 4 4 - 4,293 4,293 71 4,222
Public charter schools - - - - - - -
AY07 pubhic charter school expenditure - - - - -
University - - - - - . - -
Public library 110 297 15 282 631 631 373 258
Distnict educational investment fund - - - - - - -
Distriet chanter schools investment fund - - - - - - -
Total public education system 4,776 6,782 5,723 1,089 11,704 11,704 3,894 7810
Humau support services:
Human development - - - . 3000 10,847 8,477 2370
Child and fanuly services 414 838 684 154 750 750 750 -
Pept of mental health - 60 16 44 3808 3,808 2,351 1457
Health 95 2n 127 84 24,532 33,745 20,345 13,400
Recreation and parks 941 Lo%o 1,069 21 1,600 1600 1.9 581
Aging - . . . . . . .
Unemploy . b . . . . . . . .
Employee disability compensation - - - - -
Human rights - - - - -
Children investment trust - - - - - .
Latino aftars - . - - - - - .
Energy 9,853 8,503 8372 131 164 164 0 94
Asian and pacitic wlander affairs - . - -
Veterans' aflairs - - - - -
Depart of youth rehabilitation services - - - - - - - .
Totul bumun support services 11,303 10,702 14,268 434 33854 50914 33,012 17,902
Public works:
Public works - - - - 3472 4,743 3.045 1,698
Department of transpontation - 470 470 - 30,416 30416 29,898 518
Depanment of motor vehicles - - - 15.299 13,522 2092 5430
Taxicab commission - - - 540 540 491 49
arca transit - - - N - . - -
Washinglon metropolitan area transil authority - - - - - - -
School transit subsidy - - - - .
Totul public works - 470 470 - 49,727 9221 41,526 7,698
Other:
Repayment of bonds and interest - - . - N .
Bond fiscal charge paid from bond proceeds - - - - - - .
Interest on short lerm borowing - N - - - - -
Centificates of participation - - - - - N -
Setements and judgments - - - - - -
Emergency planning and seeuriy costs - - - - -
Wilson Building - - - . _
Workforee investment - - - - - -
Tax mcremen! financing - - - - -
Equipment lease operating - - - - - - -
Pay-go capital - - - - - - .
Schools medermzation fund - - - - . -
District retivee: health contribution - - - - - - -
Cash reserve - - . - - - -
Non-departmental agency - - - 23824 2694 - 2,694
Storm water - - - - 6,673 6,673 - 6,673
Reurement board admimsteaton - - - - 30,078 30078 17,559 12,519
Housing finance agency - - - 6070 - 6,070
National capital revitalization corporation - - - - - $2,731 - 52,731
Total other - - - - 60,575 98,246 17,559 80,687
Total budget 16,213 19,259 §7,11% 2,140 483,867 541,959 314,772 221,187

FY2006 CAFR

District of Columbia

A 123



Financial Section Supporting Schedules

Exhibit D-3
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET REVISIONS
Year Ended September 30, 2006

(3000s)
Local Source Federal Resources
Original Repro- Revised Qriginal Repro- Revised
Budget gr ing Budget Budget gramming Budget
Revenues and Sources:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 1,222,165 (58,498) 1,163,667 - - -
Sales and use taxes 866,129 (3.970) 862,159 - - -
Income taxes 1,391,345 174,359 1,565,704 - - -
Other taxes 577.258 (11,911) 565,344 - - -
Total taxes 4,056,894 99,980 4,156,874 - - -
Licenses and permits 66,470 1,938 68,408 - - -
Fines and forfeits 114,901 (4,264) 110,637 - - -
Charges for services 44,173 6,340 50,513 - - -
Miscellaneous 88,276 (2,608) 85,668 - - -
Other - - - - - .
Federal contributions - - - 45,738 31,259 76,997
Operating grant - - - 1,905,840 18,273 1,924,113
General obligation bonds 40,000 - 40,000 - - -
Fund balance released from restrictions 466,930 37,509 504,439 - - -
Transfer in from Louwery Board 73,100 (1,100) 72,000 - - -
Total revenues and sources 4,950,744 137,795 5,088,539 1,951,578 49,532 2,001,110
Expenditures and Uses:
Govemnmental direction and support 296,631 15,554 312,185 171,975 16,458 188,433
E ic develop and regulati 101,629 23,525 125,154 118,187 47,042 165,229
Public safety and justice 769,785 76,010 845,795 10,569 3,152 13,721
Public education system 1,177,599 (68,815) 1,108,784 247,956 (38,729) 209,227
Public education AY07 expenditure - 69,064 69,064 - - -
Human support services 1,273,676 89,265 1,362,941 1,394,516 17,835 1,412,351
Public works 316,374 8,482 324,856 8,375 (422) 7,953
Workforce investments 61,110 (51,548) 9,562 - - -
Wilson Building 3,740 310 4,050 - - “
Repayment of bonds and interest 370,778 (615) 370,163 - - -
Bond fiscal charge paid from bond proceeds 40,000 - 40,000 - - -
Interest on short term borrowing 5,500 1,150 6,650 - - -
Certificates of participation 11,000 - 11,000 - - -
Tax increment financing - 1,468 1,468 - - -
Equipment lease operating 27,441 (1.351) 26,090 - - -
Pay-go capital 260,883 4,140 265,023 - - -
Schools modemization fund 12,208 (12,200) 8 - - -
District retiree health contribution 138,000 - 138,000 - - -
Cash reserve 50,000 (47,731) 2,269 - - -
Non departmental 12,462 (11,890) 572 - - -
Emergency planning and security costs - - - - 4,196 4,196
Storm water - - - - - -
Reti board administration - - - - - .
Housing finance agency - - - - - -
Settlements and judgments 20,655 9,301 29,956 - - -
National capital revitalization corporation - - - - - -
Total expenditures and uses 4,949,471 104,119 5,053,590 1,951,578 49,532 2,001,110
Excess of Revenues
and Sources Over
Expenditures and Uses 3 1,273 33,676 34,949 - - -

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report.
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Exhibit D-3
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET REVISIONS
Year Ended September 30, 2006
(5000s)
Private and Other Totals
Original Repro- Revised Original Repro- Revised
Budget gr ing Budget Budget gr ing Budg
Revenues and Sources:
Taxes:
Property taxes - - - 1,222,165 (58,498) 1,163,667
Sales and use taxes - - - 866,129 (3,970) 862,159
Income taxes - - - 1,391,345 174,359 1,565,704
Other taxes - - - 577,255 (11,911) 565,344
Total taxes - - - 4,056,894 99,980 4,156,874
Licenses and permits - - - 66,470 1,938 68,408
Fines and forfeits - - - 114,901 (4,264) 110,637
Charges for services - - - 44,173 6,340 50,513
Miscellaneous - - - 88,276 (2,608) 85,668
Other 304,760 213,206 517,966 304,760 213,206 517,966
Federal contributions - - - 45,738 31,259 76,997
Operating grant 16,213 3,046 19,259 1,922,053 21,319 1,943,372
General obligation bonds - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Fund balance released from restrictions 179,107 (155,114) 23,993 646,037 (117,605) 528,432
Transfer in from Lotiery Board - - - 73,100 (1,100) 72,000
Total revenues and sources 500,080 61,138 561,218 7,402,402 248,465 7,650,867
Expenditures and Uses:
Governmental direction and support 44,227 (5,967) 38,260 512,833 26,045 538,878
Economic development and regulation 226,654 10,246 236,900 446,470 80,813 527,283
Public safety and justice 57,260 759 58,019 837.614 79,921 917,535
Public education system 16,480 2,006 18,486 1,442,035 (105,538) 1,336,497
Public education FY07 expenditure - - - - 69,064 69,064
Human support services 45,157 16,459 61,616 2,713,349 123,559 2,836,908
Public works 49,727 (36) 49,691 374,476 8,024 382,500
Workforce investments - - - 61,110 (51,548) 9,562
Wilson Building - - - 3,740 310 4,050
Repayment of bonds and interest - - - 370,778 (615) 370,163
Bond fiscal charge paid from bond proceeds - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Interest on short term borrowing - - - 5,500 1,150 6,650
Certificates of participation - - - 11,000 - 11,000
Tax increment financing - - - - 1,468 1,468
Equipment Jease operating - - - 27,441 (1,351} 26,090
Pay-go capital - - - 260,383 4,140 265,023
Schools modemization fund - - - 12,208 (12,200) 8
District retiree health contribution - - - 138,000 - 138,000
Cash reserve - - - 50,000 47,731) 2,269
Non departmental 23,824 (21,130) 2,694 36,286 (33,020) 3,266
Emergency planning and security costs - - - - 4,196 4,196
Storm water 6,673 - 6,673 6,673 - 6,673
Retirement board administration 30,078 - 30078 30,078 - 30,078
Housing finance agency - 6,070 6,070 - 6,070 6,070
Settlements and judgments - - - 20,655 9,301 29,956
National capital revitalization corporation - 52,731 52,731 - 52,731 52,731
Total expenditures and uses 500,080 61,138 561,218 7,401,129 214,789 7,615,918
Excess of Revenues
and Sources Over
Expenditures and Uses - - - 1,273 33,676 34,949
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Statistical Section

Statistical Section

This section contains statistical tables that reflect financial trends information, revenue capacity
information, debt capacity information, demographic and economic information, and operating
information. These tables differ from the financial statements because they usually cover more than two
fiscal years and may present non accounting data.

The Statistical Section is divided into 5 sections as follows:

Section Page
1. Financial Trends........cccceeververnees seresserssessnennsnssasensantanssasesas e nesresrasants verressssrnasanesaseresanees ceesnssansaneres 129
2. Revenue Capacity ............. S vraresnesairsaressasesaaseansane S sreresseeeseeses ceasssenssaniane R 135
3. Debt Capacity.....ceenreessessensressnrssessascesenenne craresssnsssanees cessressntsssnnressenanessasasse corenresssnessaneresstasananasene 141
4. Demographic and Economic Information....... eesaacenssanseresnssnntersrasassasenennnssareseesenesnatsenserse rresranes 145
5. Operating Information.........ccevvcencecreesensenca Hbessrssasiesttssssesrs iR aT Rt sssases R Es s nee R Re RS s R LS Rs s atssnbes R anes 147
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Statistical Section

1. Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to better understand how the District’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.
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Statistical Section

Net Assets By Component Exhibit S-1A
Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting, dollars in thousands)

NET ASSETS 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Governmental activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 656,901 § 518,223 § 774,533 § 1,069,731 § 958,597
Restricted 834,006 870,284 807,839 930,021 987,650
Unrestricted (625,908) (593,786) (370,474) (249,088) 167,779
Total governmental activities net assets 864,999 794,721 1,211,898 1,750,664 2,114,026

Business-type activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,495 1,354 17,927 16,183 17,391
Restricted 271,361 262,148 288,224 322,893 347,938
Unrestricted 1,990 37,442 34,829 34,968 29,000
Total business-type activities net assets 274,846 300,944 340,980 374,044 394,329

Primary government

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 658,396 519,577 792,460 1,085,914 975,988
Restricted 1,105,367 1,132,432 1,096,063 1,252,914 1,335,588
Unrestricted (623,918) (556,344) (335,645) (214,120 196,779
Total primary government net assets $ 1,139,845 § 1,095,665 % 1,552,878 § 2,124,708 $ 2,508,355

Note: As a result of GASB 34 implementation in FY2002, only five fiscal years are presented.
Source: Information was extracted from Exhibit 1-a, Statement of Net Assets, Page 38.
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Statistical Section

Changes in Net Assets Exhibit S-1B
Last Five Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting, dollars in thousands)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Governmental activities
Expenses
Governmental direction and support $ 471,609 $ 525,072 % 554614 $ 641,964 % 574,097
Economic development and regulation 323,804 252,716 253,311 283,186 391,203
Public safety and justice 920,599 936,797 1,007,755 1,036,120 1,124,896
Public education system 1,153,719 1,168,545 1,301,807 1,374,538 1,486,112
Human support services 2,267,597 2,572,881 2,537,195 2,663,556 2,967,372
Public works 279,506 312,704 313,580 307,247 351,917
Public transportation 184,883 272,726 162,602 167,783 187,615
Interest on long-term debt 175,241 178,301 189,697 201,882 269,725
Total governmental activities expenses 5.776,958 6.219.742 6,320,561 6.676,276 7,352,937
Program revenues
Charges for services, fees, fines &
forfeitures:
Fines and forfeitures 88,495 20,237 102,828 111,146 112,919
Licenses and permits 52,003 62,189 62,968 82,093 81,222
Charges for services 145,546 170,735 134,314 133,923 131,272
Operating grants & contributions 1,890,544 1,833,060 2,060,973 2,098,723 2,155,035
Capital grants & contributions 161,450 176,449 151,334 112,704 119,715
Total governmental activities program
revenues 2,338,038 2,332,670 2,512,417 2,538,589 2,600,163
Net expenses (3,438,920) (3,887.072) (3.808.144) (4.137,687) (4,752,774)
General revenues
Taxes:

Property taxes 809,069 899.665 1,017,653 1,150,672 1,272,998

Sales and use raxes 750,060 779,920 828,391 957,394 1,004,471

Income and franchise taxes 1,160,423 1,167,452 1,299,009 1,472,432 1,591,483

Gross receipts taxes 231,786 261,643 271,897 295,819 278,453

Other taxes 283,146 273,191 379,521 377,213 390,542
Grants and contributions - unrestricted - 25.070 24,543 - -
Investment carnings 19,283 13,341 16,211 39811 73,207
Miscellaneous 333,943 325,529 314,596 311,662 431,182
Special items (171.094) - - - -
Transfers 63,000 37.574 73,500 71,450 73,800

Total governmental activities general
revenues 3,479.616 3,783,385 4,225321 4,676,453 5,116,136
Change in net assets --- governmental
activities $ 40,696 $ (103,687) $ 417,177 _§ 538,766 _§ 363,362
Business activities
Expenses
Lottery and games $ 148,670 $ 166,185 $ 167,938 $ 164,066 % 193,907
Unemployment compensation 191,043 165,045 113,888 92,728 102,749
Nursing home services - 34,687 33,023 35,066 35,548
Total business-type activities expenses 339713 365,917 314,849 291,860 332,204
Program revenues
Charges for services, fees, fines &
forfeitures:
Lottery and games 211,151 237,890 241,133 234,931 266,391
Nursing home services - 34,124 30,907 32,184 29,154
Operating grants & contributions 49,308 55.356 26,588 16,707 14,825
Capital grants & contributions - - 15,464 =~ -
Total business-type activities program revenues 260,459 327,370 314,092 283,822 310,370
Net expenses (79,254) (38.547) (757) (8,038) (21,834)
General revenues
Taxes:

Other taxes 104,945 82,626 97,196 92,985 95,888
Investment carnings 18,978 19,332 16,847 18,887 19,321
Miscellaneous - 261.00 250.00 680 710
Transfers (63,000) (37.574) (73,500) (71,450) (73,800)

Total business-type activities general
revenues 60,923 64,645 40,793 41,102 42,119
Change in net assets --- business-type
activities $ (18,331) $ 26098 §$ 40,036 _$ 33,064 $ 20,285
Total primary government
Expenses 3 6,116,671 % 6,585,659 $ 6,635,410 % 6,968,136 $ 7,685,141
Program revenues 2,598,497 2,660,040 2,820,257 2,822 411 2,910,533
Net (expenses)/revenues (3,518,174) (3,925.619) (3,815,153) (4,145,725) (4,774,608)
General revenues 3,540,539 3.848.030 4.272.366 4,717,555 5,158,255
Change in net assets --- primary government § 22,365 $ (73,090) $ 457213 $ ‘571,830 § 383,647

Note: As aresult of GASB 34 implementation in FY2002, only five fiscal years are presented.
Source: Information was extracied from Exhibit 1-b, Statement of Activitics, Page 39,
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Fund Balances, Governmental Funds Exhibit $-1C
Last Five Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting, dollars in thousands)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
General Fund
Reserved $ 545414 % 568,243 § 607,903 $ 1,110,770 § 1,045,560
Unreserved 319,914 329,114 607,112 473,913 389,582
Total general fund 865,328 897,357 1,215,015 1,584,683 1,435,142
All other governmental funds
Reserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 292,936 249434 239,291 249,911 321,878
Capital project funds 148,760 52,607 43,914 86,530 732,602
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds 31,751 - - - -
Capital project funds (472,305) (169,287) (273.432) (312,161) -
Total all other governmental funds $ 1,142 § 132,754 $ 9773 $ 24,280 $ 1,054,480

Note: As a result of GASB Statement No. 34 implementation in FY2002, only five fiscal years are presented.
Source: Information was extracted from Exhibit 2-a, Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, Page 40.
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Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds Exhibit S-1D
Last Five Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting, dollars in thousands)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
REVENUES
Taxes $ 3,229,809 $ 3,384,093 $ 3,806,906 $ 4,251,191 §$ 4,472,845
Fines and forfeits 88,495 90,238 102,828 111,146 112,919
Licenses and permits 52,003 62,189 62,968 82,093 81,222
Charges for services 145,546 170,736 134,314 133,923 131,273
Investment ¢arnings 19,283 13,341 16,211 39,811 73,206
Miscellaneous 332,861 320,460 305,039 311,573 489,067
Federal contributions 490,373 380,100 393,928 382,966 362,075
Operating grants 1,561,621 1,555,404 1,842,922 1,828,461 1,912,675
Total revenues 5,919,991 5,976,561 6,665,116 7,141,164 7,635,282
EXPENDITURES
Governmental direction and support 366,981 415,591 483,185 590,344 611,620
Economic development and regulation 223,760 224811 236,220 267,335 348,091
Public safety and justice 899,116 907,670 984,062 1,034,456 1,133,800
Public education system 1,143,281 1,155,297 1,284,448 1,340,767 1,439,510
Human support services 2,249,303 2,445,336 2,563,646 2,657,848 2,952,637
Public works 149,302 164,753 164,231 175,300 184,200
Public transportation 184,883 272,726 162,602 167,783 187,615
Debt service:
Principal 138,575 149,792 152,086 183,845 205,654
Interest and other charges 189,006 178,301 189,697 202,387 225,195
Fiscal charges - 15,338 13,721 9,277 31,958
Total debt service 327,581 343,431 355,504 395,509 462,807
Subtotal expenditures 5,544,207 5,929,615 6,233,898 6,629,342 7,320,280
Capital outlay 905,418 762,145 666,649 615,089 901,204
Total expenditures 6,449,625 6,691,760 6,900,547 7,244,431 8,221,484
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (529,634) (715,199) (235,431) (103,267) (586,202)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of bonds 408,180 1,019,873 325,726 386,370 1,459,087
Premium (discount) from sale of bonds - - - 14,478 39,944
Payment to escrow agent (69.487) (234,179) - - (136,137)
Proceeds from bond escrow restructuring - - 9,557 89 -
Proceeds from capital lease - - 503 19 -
Equipment financing program 51,944 17,094 20,822 15,036 30,167
Transfers in 63,000 77,119 109,717 193,439 685,200
Transfers out - (34,476) (36,217) (121,989) (611,406)
Total other financing sources 453,637 845,431 430,108 487,442 1,466,861
Net change in fund balances $ (75997) $ 130,232 § 194,677 $ 384,175 § 880,659
Other capital expenditures beside capital outlay 31,262 49,529 23,960 33,706 65,197
Total capital expenditures 936,680 811,674 690,609 648,795 966,401
Debt service as a percentage of nencapital
expenditures 5.94% 5.84% 5.72% 6.00% 6.38%

Note: As a result of GASB Statement No. 34 implementation in FY2002, only five fiscal years are presented.
Source: Information was extracted from Exhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Govemmental Funds, Page 41.
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Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds Exhibit S-1E
Last Five Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting, dollars in thousands)

Property Tax Income and Gross Other
Fiscal Year Real Personal Rental Sales and Use Franchise Receipts Taxes Total

2002 $ 726014 § 65,208 § 13,172 § 750,060 $ 1,160,423 § 231,786 § 283,146 § 3,229,809

2003 822,845 67,294 11,749 779,920 1,167,452 261,643 273,191 3,384,094
2004 947,690 63,558 16,840 828,391 1,299,009 271,897 379,521 3,806,906
2005 1,058,100 72,068 18,165 957,394 1,472,432 295,819 377,213 4,251,191
2006 1,163,598 55,548 22,336 970,885 1,591,483 278,453 390,542 4,472,845

Note: As a result of GASB Statement No. 34 implementation in FY2002, only five fiscal years are presented.
Source: information was extracted from Exhibit 2-b, Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds, Page 41.
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2. Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information regarding the District’s most significant local revenue sources:
property, income, and sales and use taxes.
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Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit §-2A

(dollars in thousands)
Estimated Actual Value Tax exempt as a
Commercial Residential Total Direct % of total
Fiscal Year Property Property Total Taxable Tax Exempt Total Value Tax Rate estimated actual
HAG@
1997 $ 19,373,225 § 22,884,675 § 42,257900 § 30,170,470 § 72,428,370 N/A 41.7%
1998 19,726,319 23,461,404 43,187,723 31,517,981 74,705,704 N/A 42.2%
1999 18,734,933 23,710,565 42,445,498 30,620,782 73,066,280 N/A 41.9%
2000 19,357,631 23,912,435 43,270,066 30,900,682 74,170,748 1.43 41.7%
2001 21,960,148 22,268,968 44,229,116 32,086,134 76,315,250 145 42.0%
2002 27,619,604 24,902,543 52,522,147 33,812,037 86,334,184 1.3% 39.2%
2003 29,684,430 28,379,237 58,063,667 35,728,289 93,791,956 1.38 38.1%
2004 33,752,889 32,701,220 66,454,109 43,234,068 109,688,177 1.35 39.4%
2005 36,905,213 49,982,554 86,887,767 43,219,725 130,107,492 1.37 33.2%
2006 40,400,447 58,090,888 98,491,335 59,664,865 158,156,200 1.34 37.7%
Note: Assessed value 1s 100 percent of estimated actual value.
Total direct tax rate for years 1997 - 1999 could not be determined
(1) After deduction of h d ption and credits against tax
(2} Does not reflect the 2002 & 2003 Cap Assessment of 25% for Class 01 with Homestead Exemptions
(3) Does not reflect the 2004 & 2005 Cap Assessment of 12% for Class 01 with Homestead Exemptions
(4) Does not reflect the 2006 Cap Assessment of 10% for Class 01 with Homestead Exemptions
Source: Office of Tax and Revenue
Direct Property Tax Rates Exhibit S-2B
Last Six Fiscal Years
Direct Property Tax Rate
(Per $100 Assessed Valuation)
General Obligation Redevelopment
Fiscal Year Basic Rate Debt Service Program Total Direct
2000 0.73 0.70 - 1.43
2001 0.75 0.70 - 1.45
2002 0.79 0.60 - 1.39
2003 0.78 0.60 - 1.38
2004 0.90 0.45 - 1.35
2005 0.92 0.45 - 1.37
2006 0.94 0.40 - 1.34
Note:

Information prior to FY2000 is not available.

The total direct rate is the weighted rate of all taxable real property. The basic rate is the direct rate, less

general obligation debt service and redevelopment program costs per $100.

Source: Office of Tax and Revenue
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Major Tax Rates Exhibit §-2C
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Property (per $100 of assessed value) Sales and Use Income and Franchise Gross Receipt
Residential Commercial Public Utility (6)
Owner Tenant Motor Fuel
Fiscal Year occupied  occupied  Hotels  Improved  Unimproved  Persomal  General (1} Cigaretie (2) (3) Individual (4)  Business(5) _Commercial ~ Residential
1997 0.96 |.54 1.85 215 5.00 340 0.0575 0.65 020 .060-.095 0.09975 0.10 0.10
1998 0.96 1.54 1.85 215 5.00 340 0.0575 0.65 020 .060-.095 0.09975 010 0.10
1999 096 1.54 1.85 215 5.00 340 0.0575 0.65 020 .060-095 0.09975 a0 0.10
2000 0.96 1.34 1.85 205 208 340 0.0575 0.65 0.20 .050-.095 0.09975 0.10 0.10
2001 0.96 115 1.85 1.95 1.95 340 0.0575 0.65 020 .050-.093 0.09975 0.10 0.10
2002 0.96 0.96 1.85 185 1.85 340 0.0575 0.65 020 .050-.093 0.09975 010 0.10
2003 0.96 0.96 1.85 1.85 5.00 3.40 0.0575 1.00 020 .050-.093 0.09975 011 0.1
2004 0.96 0.96 185 1.85 5.00 3.40 0.0575 1.00 020 .050-.093 0.09975 011 011
2005 0.96 096 185 1.85 5.00 340 0.0575 1.00 020 .050-.090 0.09975 011 0.10
2006 092 0.92 1.85 1.85 5.00 340 0.0575 1.00 020 .045-087 0.09975 011 0.10
Source Office of Tax and Revenue
(1) Of sales value
(2) Per package of 20
(3) Per gallon
(4) Of taxable Income
{5Y0f net income
(6) Of gross charges (gas, hghting, telephone)
Principal Property Taxpayers Exhibit S-2D
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
(dollars in thousands)
2006 1997
% of Total % of Total
Taxable Taxable
Taxable Assessed Assessed * Taxable Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
MANUFACTURERS LIFE INSURANCE $ 348,411 | 0.354% $ 114,481 5 0271%
13TH & F ASSOCIATES LP 288,142 2 0.293% 137,008 4 0.324%
WASHINGTON SQUARE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 281,135 3 0.285% 193,642 ** | 0.458%
CARR CRHP PROPERTIES LL.C 263,842 4 0.268% 165,640 ** 2 0.392%
WARNER INVESTMENTS LP 255,096 5 0.259% 101,383 ** 6 0.240%
HARBOUR 1 LLC 220,000 6 0.223% 57,491 ** 9 0.136%
WELLS REIT/INDEPENDENCE SQUARE LLC 219,744 7 0.223% 142,638 ** 3 0.338%
1301 K STREET LP 218,194 8 0.222% 95,717 8 0.227%
TEACHERS INSURANCE & ANNUITY ASSOCIATION 212,478 9 0.216% 90,069 ** 7 0213%
PARCEL 49C LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 205,780 10 0.209% 10,780 o 0.026%

* Source 1997 RPT Account Status Report (Folio)
** Different ownership in 1997

***¥ 1997 exact rank can not be determined

Source: Office of Tax and Revenue
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Ten Highest Assessed Values For Tax Exempt Properties

Current Year
(dollars in thousands)

Exhibit S-2E

Property Value
INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION 407,780
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT 340,772
GEORGETOWN UNIVERSITY 262,281
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 257,799
INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND 243,827
INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND 227,225
PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL CATHEDRAL FND DC 176,072
AMERICAN UNIVERSITY 173,648
WASHINGTON HOSPITAL CENTER 150,333
INTERNATIONAL BANK FOR RECONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT 140,640

Source: Office of Tax and Revenue

Note: Duplicate property listings resulted from properties with multiple addresses.

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Exhibit S-2F

Percent of Collections to

Tax Collections (1) Levy
Fiscal Year Subsequent Years

Ended Sep 30 Taxes Levy Current (2) Total Current Total
1997 b 648,166 $ 606,435 $ 21,002 $ 627,437 93.6% 96.8%
1998 638,569 590,249 30,548 620,797 92.4% 97.2%
1999 637,647 554,064 29,078 583,142 86.9% 91.5%
2000 613,385 569,190 23,587 592,777 92.8% 96.6%
2001 669,016 576,965 58,359 635,324 86.2% 95.0%
2002 740,387 649,895 57,729 707,624 87.8% 95.6%
2003 847,980 774,989 63,110 838,099 91.4% 98.8%
2004 1,011,891 898,352 47,701 946,053 88.8% 93.5%
2005 1,198,319 1,021,836 46,314 1,068,150 85.3% 89.1%
2006 1,234,062 1,102,954 47,422 1,150,376 89.4% 93.2%

(1) Approximately 40% of real property tax collections are deposited with fiscal agents, such as commercial banks, for

payment of matured bonds and interest.

(2) Subsequent year collections related to collections on prior year levies.

Calculations for Exhibit S-2F were done based on methodology used for the FY2003 CAFR. Current year tax levy amounts

include new billings for prior year penalties and interest. Subsequent year collections relate to collections on prior year levies.

Source: Office of Tax and Revenue
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Personal Income Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit S-2G

Top Income Tax Rate Is Applied to

Taxable Income in Excess of

Married * Average
Top Filling Head of Effective
Year Rate Single Jointly Household Rate
1997 9.50% 20,000 20,000 20,000 6.32%
1998 9.50% 20,000 20,000 20,000 6.39%
1999 9.50% 20,000 20,000 20,000 6.47%
2000 9.50% 20,000 20,000 20,000 6.39%
2001 9.30% 30,000 30,000 30,000 6.60%
2002 9.30% 30,000 30,000 30,000 6.55%
2003 9.30% 30,000 30,000 30,000 6.66%
2004 9.30% 30,000 30,000 30,000 6.65%
2005 9.00% 30,000 30,000 30,000 6.68%
2006 8.70% 40,000 40,000 40,000 N/A
N/A: Not Available
* Fiscal year personal income tax collections divided by prior-year personal income,
Source: Office of Tax and Revenue
Personal Income Tax Filers and Liability by Income Level Exhibit §-2H
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
2006 1997
Personal Personal
Number Percentage Income Tax Percentage Number Percentage Income Tax Percentage
Income Level of Filers of Total Liability of Total of Filers of Total Liability of Total
$100,001 and higher 31,800 11.11% $ 586,347,984 56.91% 17,372 6.05% $ 274,911,804 42.64%
$75,001 - $100,000 17,005 5.94% 94,204,648 9.14% 10,846 3.78% 66,174,296 10.26%
$50,001 -- $75,000 33,500 11.70% 122,903,167 11.93% 23,714 8.26% 96,732,747 15.00%
$25,001 - $50,000 76,406 26.68% 142,878,370 13.87% 70,668 24.62% 144,917 839 2248%
$10,001 -- $25,000 65,025 2.71% 42,956,067 4.17% 80,585 28.08% 56,409,900 8.75%
$10,000 and lower 62,606 21.86% 41,001,765 3.98% 83,796 29.20% 3,579,571 0.87%
Total 286,342 100.00% $ 1,030,292,001 100.00% 286,981 100.00% $ 644,726,157 100.00%

Source: Office of Tax and Revenue
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3. Debt Capacity

These schedules present information showing the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
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Ratios of General Obligation Bonds Qutstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

Exhibit S-3A

GO Bonds as a

General Percentage of Actual GO Debt
Obligation Actual Value of Value of Taxable Per

Fiscal Year Bonds (GO) Taxable Property Property Capita *
1997 $ 3,084,763 § 42,257,900 7.30% 5,433
1998 3,091,403 43,187,723 7.16% 5,469
1999 3,098,582 42,445,498 7.30% 5,426
2000 3,109,728 43,270,066 7.19% 5,436
2001 2,582,017 44,229,116 5.84% 4,472
2002 2,670,573 52,522,147 5.08% 4,613
2003 3,251,118 58,063,667 5.60% 5,630
2004 3,418,933 66,454,109 5.14% 5,898
2005 3,632,198 86,887,767 4.18% 6,240
2006 3,773,863 98,491,335 3.83% 6,490

* The prior year per capita amounts were updated to reflect the revised census population estimates.

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Four Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands)

Exhibit S-3B

Tax Increment Financing Debts

Sales Tax Real Property Debt Service
Fiscal Year Increment Tax Principal Interest Coverage
2002 h) 33 % - $ - h) 33 100.00%
2003 1,236 - 1,104 132 100.00%
2004 2,222 112 1,515 4,265 40.38%
2005 6,733 2,537 6,484 4,933 81.19%%
2006 11,562 1,652 7,219 5,348 105.15%
Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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Statistical Section

4. Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic data to help explain the environment within which the
District’s financial activities take place. This information also facilitates comparisons of financial
statement information over time and among governments.
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Demographic and Economic Statistics Exhibit S-4A
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Popula- Personal Per Capita Median Employ- Unemploy- Claims Claims
Fiscal Year tion (1) Income (2)(3) Income (2) Age (1) ment (4) ment Rate (4)  Accepted (5) Rejected (5)
1997 567,736 19,579,959 34,488 36.0 619,100 83% 38,851 15,898
1998 565,230 20,562,335 36,379 36.3 614,600 8.2% 28,202 8,412
1999 571,042 21,114,995 37,030 372 620,600 6.9% 22,440 7,475
2000 572,059 23,102,223 40,456 34.7 645,200 5.8% 22,113 6,002
2001 577,357 25,525,115 44,834 349 654,400 6.0% 18,189 6,514
2002 578,907 25,786,286 45,670 35.0 661,800 6.6% 26,166 10,706
2003 577,476 27,168,871 48,703 35.0 665,900 7.0% 21,527 7,342
2004 579,720 29,277,663 52,825 35.0 670,500 7.8% 18,554 6,450
2005 582,049 31,010,231 56,329 352 677,900 7.5% 17,223 6,074
2006 581,530 N/A N/A N/A 689,300 5.7% 17,021 6,212

N/A: Not Available

(1) Source: Federal Bureau of the Census (As of July 1 - Updated each year for all of the years after the 2000 census)

(2) Source: Federal Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA). BEA does not incorporate the latest census population
estimates in its calculation of per capita income,

(3) In thousands

(4) Source: D.C. Department of Employment Services

(5) Source: D.C. Unemployment Compensation Office

Principal Employers Exhibit S-4B
Current Year and Nine Years Ago **

20085 ** 1996
% of Total % of Total
Employer Employees Rank  Employment Employees Rank Employment
Howard University * 1 * * 4 *
Georgetown University * 3 * * 1 *
The George Washington University * 2 * * 8 *
Washington Hospital Center * 4 * * 2 *
Children's National Medica! Center * 5 * * 7 *
Fannic Mae * 6 * * 10 *
Georgetown University Hospital * 7 * * 9 *
American University * 8 * * 1 *
Howard University Hospital * 9 * * 13 *
Providence Hospital * 10 * * 12 *
George Washington University Hospital * 16 * * 3 *
Washington Post * 12 * * 5 *
Potomac Electric Power Company * 30 * * 6 *
Total 47,880 10.9% 40,950 10.8%

* This data is produced through the Quarterly Covered Employment and Wage (QCEW) Program, a Bureau of Labor Statistics federal/state
cooperative statistical program. Release of data under this program is subject to the Confidential Information Protection and

Statistical Efficiency Act of 2002. The District cannot release company specific employment information without the written consent of
each of the companies that are included in the release of such data. As a result, we are only presenting rank and total employment
information for the top ten principal employers.

** 2006 data will not be available until fiscal year 2007
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5. Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to better understand how the information in the
District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.
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Statistical Section

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program Exhibit S-5B
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Fiscal Years
Function/Program 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Police
Police Stations Including Satellites 9 10 i 13 13 14 14 16 16 16
Number of Patrol Cars N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,207 1,199 1,234
Fire
Number of Fire stations 3 33 33 34 34 34 34 34 34 33
Number of Fire Fighting Equipment 64 62 62 70 78 78 91 9 92 107
EMS
Number of Ambulances 42 57 57 53 53 53 65 62 62 91
D.C. Public School System
Schools 147 149 149 146 146 146 147 147 165 144
Number of school buses N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 650 669 712
Public Library
Number of Main and Branch Buildings 2 2 22 22 22 22 22 22 2 22
Number of Community and Kiosk Facilities 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 b 5
Parks and Recreation
Acreage 800 800 $00 800 800 800 800 800 800 832
Number of Recreation & Community Centers 71 77 77 77 77 78 75 75 72 70
Number of Day Camps 3 3 3 3 3 78 57 70 51 86
Number of Outdoor Swimming Pools 34 34 35 35 35 22 32 27 26 24
Number of Indoor Swimming Pools 6 7 6 7 7 7 6 6 8 6
Public Works/Public Transportation
Number of Refuse collection trucks 74 52 52 52 52 52 52 52 71 7
Primary Street Miles 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126
Secondary Street Miles 1,007 1,007 1,007 1007 1,007 1007 1,007 1,007 1,007 1,007
Number of Street Lights 66,364 66429 66507 76,565 64349 66,089 66,570 66,562 66,650 66,630
Number of Signalized Intersections ,S62 1,504 1,510 1,519 1519 1,529 1,533 1,534 1,538 1,563
Number of Trees N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 106,000 110,000 114,000 118,000 120,934
D.C. Water & Sewer Authority
Miles of water mains 1,300 1,300 1,300 1300 1,300 L300 1,300 1,300 1300 1300
Miles of sewer mains 1,80 1,800 1,800 1,800 1800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1800 1800
150 > District of Columbia FY2006 CAFR
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OFFICE OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
ROOM 203, JOHN A, WILSON BUILDING
1350 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE, NW
WASHINGTON, DC 20004

TEL 202.727.2476

FAX 202.727.1643

HTTP://CFO.DC.GOV

PHOTOS
ERNEST GRANT
CFO'S OFFICE OF COMMUNICATIONS
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